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Dear Shareholders, 

As I write this tor our 28th Annual Report, for FY 2019-20, we are experiencing an unpreoedented pandemic that 
has resulted in economically challenging times. 

Fy20 was perhaps the most unpredictable year or the decade due to COVID 19 pandemic. There is an overall 
pessimism among the people all over the world due to wide spread infection and its consequent effect on 
economy. The Governments of all countries have imposed locl<downs, restricted movement of people, enforoed 
social distancing, compelled usage of masks etc. to control this pandemic. As no specific medicine/vaccine Is 
available, adherence to the preventive norms suggested by WHO and the Government are the only way to stay 
safe. In view of this situation. we are forced to hold this Annual General Meeting through AudioNideo 
Conterencing Instead of physical presence of the esteemed shareholders. 

I pray that you and your families are safe and in good health. Ensuring the salety and well-being of our employees 
and their families being highest priority, I am glad to report that all are safe and doing well. We enabled work from 
home as soon as lockdown was announoed and I commend our HR and IT teams in getting this executed quickly 
and ensuring all customer commitments were met without delay. We believe work-from-anywhere will become the 
new norm, creating new business models and opportunities. 

The Company is one of the rapidly growing consuttancy firms in India with the presence in segments like, Roads 
and Highways, Affordable Housing, Water Management, Urban Development, Sustainability Environment and 
Solid Waste Management Public Financial Reforms. These crisis has provided new opportunities. 

With zero travel. we actively engaged with our clients/customers and associates on video calls to explore how we 
could continue rendering services such as, formulation of detailed project report, feasibility study, project 
management consultancy, independent engineer, authority engineer, surveys etc., to various Government 
departments and other clients across the country. 

The technology roadmap for the future Is rebus~ and the current crisis has only accentuated the need for 
businesses to deploy digital technologies urgenUy. When we emerge out of this crisis, the world will be a very 
different place. We are witnessing many of those changes already. With cloud and the new class of collaboration 
tools, people are discovering that they are able to oollaborate with each other just as well working from home, as 
they did in person in the pre-COVID era. 

The next few months will be difficult, but your company Is sllong with deep relationships with customers and 
assoc1ates. enviable scale, a diversified business mix, a robust and resilient business model, and strong 
financlals. Your Company is well positioned to weather the storms ahead and take advantage of opportunities that 
come up during the downturn to acquire new capabilities and galn market share. In the post pandemic world, 
technology will play an ever larger rote in helping enterprises adapt to the new normal and differentiate 
themselves. Your company is well poised to take the lead in partnering customers to recover and rebound on to 
their growth and transformation journeys. On behalf of the Board of Directors of Paramone Concepts Limited, I 
want to thank you for your continued trust. confidence. and support. 

Sd/-
Govind Ram Patodia 
Managing Director 
DIN No:-02794184 
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

To, 
The Members. 
Paramone Concepts Limited 
We are pleased to present the Twenty Eighth Annual Report on the affairs of the Company along with the Audijed 
Financial Statements and Auditor's Report for the year ended on March 31, 2020. 

1) Financial Highlights 

The table below gives the financial highlights of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 on standalone & 
consolidated basis compared to the previous financial Year. 

Fi nancial Highlights ofthe Company (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars I Standalone Consolidated 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 
31 03 2020 31032019 31 03 2020 31 03 2019 

Total lnoome 5593 25 1371 79 5593 25 1371 79 

Total Expenditure 5458.59 2143.75 I 6060.67 2151.09 
-
Proht BefO<e Tax 134.66 (771.961 I (467.42) (779.30) 

- -
Pro\lisioo lot Tax 199.84 (177.83) I 

199.64 ( 177.83) 

Prollt After Tax (64.98) (594. 13) 

t 
(687.05) (601.47) 

Add: Other Comprehensive inoome (net of tax) 

Items ttlet wtll not be reclassified to profit & Loss ( 1.02) (637.55) (0.43) (390.20) 

Ae-measurement of net defined b&n.efit Obligations {637.55) (390.20) 
1. 

(537.55) (390.20) 

Ae .. measurement ot lnvestm91u tn eqult~ {703.55) (984.76) I {1305.63) {992.11) 

2) Company's Performance: 

On Consolidated basis, the total income of the Company for the Year under Review is Rs. 5593.25Lakhs as 
compared to Rs. 1371.79 Lakhs In the previous year. On Standalone basis, the total Income of the Company 
for the Year under Review Is Rs. 5593.25 Lakhs as compared toRs. 1371.79 Lal<hs in the previous year. Net 
Profit after Tax stood at Rs. (64.98) Lakhs as compared to Net Profit of Rs. (594.13)Lakhs in the previous year. 

During the Nationwide Lookdown, economic activities across all sectors are adversely affected. Gradually all 
activities are resuming, however it is very much uncertain to assume the time by which the same will return to 
normalcy. This will certainly affect the operations including revenue and profitablllly and liquidity or the 
company. However your Company Is In the position to mitigate the uncertanities. 

No significant and material orders have been passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and the company'soperations in future during the year under review. 

3) Reserves 
No amount is apportioned from Profit and Loss Account and transferred to any Reserve Account in Financial 
Year2019· 20. 

4) Dividend 

Considering the loss Incurred in the current financial year and accumulated losses, your Directors have not 
recommended dividend the financial under review. 
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

5) Share Capital 

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31 sl March, 2020 wasRs. 151 ,276.000. During the year under review, 
the Company has not issued any shares. The Company has not issued shares with di fferential voting rights. It 
has neither issued employee stock options nor sweat equity shares and does not have any scheme to fund its 
employees to purchase the shares of the Company. 

6) Subsidiary Company I Associate 

Your Company has one wholly owned subsidiary Mls. Choice Realty Private Umited, which is engaged in the 
activity of Development & Construction. Pursuant to Section 129(3) or the Companies Act , 2013 the 
oonsolldated financial statements of the company and its subsidiary, prepared In accordance with the relevant 
acoounting standards specified under section 133 of the oompanies Act , read with rule 7 of the Companies 
Aooount rules , 2014formpartof this Annual Report. 

7) Meeting of Board of Directors 

During the Year under review, four Board Meetings were held, the details of which are given in the Corporate 
Governance report. 

8) Board of Directors 

The details of Board of Directors of the Company as on date of Report are as follows: 

Sr . No. Name of the Dlfector DIN No Nature of Directorship 

1. Mr. Govind Ram Patodia 02794184 Managing Director 

2. Mr. Mushtaq Shaikh 08144509 Executive Director 

3. ' Mr. Surendra Kumar Kulhari 00727964 Additional Executive Director 

4. Mr. Sundarlal Sanwarmal Bagaria 07269962 Independent Director Non Executive 

5. Mrs. Ekta Gupta 08353871 Independent Director Non Executive 

6. Mr. Vijendra Jain 073188n Independent Director Non Executive 

• Mr. Surendra Kumar Kuthari (DIN No. 00727964) was appointed as Additional Executive Director with effect from 
November 06, 2020 subject to his appointment being regularised at the scheduled Annual General Meeting to 
be held on December 28.2020. 

Note : Mr. Deepak Ranjan (OliN No.08406471) Executive Director of the Company has resigned from the post of 
Directorship of the Company with effect from November 03, 2010. However Mr. Deepak Ranjan shall oontinue 
to act as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. 

9) Key Managerial Personnel ( KMP's) of the Company 

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as follows: 

Mr. Govind Patodia 

Mr. Mushtaq Shaikh 

Mr. Oeepak Ranjan Nayak 

Mr• . Amit Soni 

Managing Director 

Executive Director 

CFO & Executive Director 

Company Secretary 

'Mr. Amit Sonl was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company , In place ot Mrs. Swati Gupta with effect from 
September 10, 2020. 

1 
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

1 0) Board Committees 

The constitution of the Board Committees, their scope, role and terms of reference are as per the provisions of 
the Act, the rules made thereunder and the listing Regulations. All the recommendations made by the Audit 
Committee were accepted by the Board of Directors. The Constitution of the Board Committees is provided In 
the Corporate Governance Report. 

1 1) Corporate Governance 

Adetailed report on Corporate Governance as required under Regulation 34 of the listing Regulation forms 
part of this Annual Report. The Auditor's certificate on Compliance with the conditions or the Corporate 
Governance requirements by the Company is attached to the Report on Corporate Governance. 

1 2) Management Discussion & Analysis Report 

As required by Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (Listmg Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (Listing Regulations), a Managemenl Discussion and Analysis Report forms part or this report. The 
detailed state or activities along with developments have been discussed in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report. 

13) Whistle Blower Policy 

The Company has in place a Whistle BlowerNigil Mechanism Policy through which i ts stakeholders, 
Directors and employees can report genuine concerns about unethical behavior and actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of the Company's code of Business Conduct and Ethics. The said policy provides for 
adequate safeguards against victimization and also direct access to the Audit Committee. The policy as 
approved may be accessed on the Company's website http://pararnoneooncepts.com 

14) Internal Anancial Controls 

The Company has proper and adequate system of internal controls which ensures that all assets are 
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and all the transaction are authorized, 
recorded and reported correctly. Regular Internal audits and checks are carried out to provide assurance that 
the responsibilities at various levels are discharged effectively and that adequate systems are In existence. 
The management continuously reviews the internal control systems and procedure for efficient conduct of 
business. 

15) Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or courts 

There are no significant and material order passed by the Regulators/courts that would impact going concern 
status of the Company. 

16) Auditors 

Statutory Auditors 

As per Section 139 (1) or lhe Companies Act. 2013 (Act), the term of appointment or M/s. Agarwal Desai & 
Shah, Chartered Accountants, expires at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment 

Section 139 (2) of the Act provides that every company, existing on or before the commencement of this Act 
which is required to comply with provisions of this sub-section, shall comply with the reqUirements of this sub· 
section within three years from the date of commencement of this Act. Accordingly, M/s.Agarwal Desai & 
Shah, is eligible for re-appolnlmentforthe Anancial Year 2020·2021. 

The Company has received letter from them 10 the effect that their reappointment, if made, would be within 
prescribed limit under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4(1) of the Companies (Audit & 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 and that they are nol disqualified for reappointment. 
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

The Auditors ol the Company have Issued an unmodilled opinion on the Financial Statements lor the 
Financial Year ended March 31 , 2020. The Auditor's Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 on 
the Financial Statements (Standalone & Consolidated) of the Company is part of this Annual Report. 

Internal Auditors 

The Internal Auditors, M/s Tibrewal Chand & Co .. Chartered Accountants have conducted Internal audits 
periodically and submitted their reports to the Audit Committee. Their reports have been reviewed by the 
Statutory Auditors and the Audit Committee. 

Secretarial Auditors 

As required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Company has appointed NIDHt BAJAJ & 
ASSOCIATES, Company Secretaries, Mumbai to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company lor 
theY ear 2019-20.The Secretarial Audit along with the Compliance Audit Report Is annexed herewith the 
report. 

The Statutory Audit Report and the Secretarial Audit Report lor the finandal year 2019-20 does not contain 
any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks by the Auditors. 

17) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments by he Company 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
along with the applicable Rules of the Act are given in the notes to the Financial Statements forming part of 
this Annual Report. 

18) Extracts of Annual Return 

As provided under Section 92 olthe Act and rules lramed there under, the extract of annual return in Form 
MGT9 is annexed here with which forms pan of this report. 

19) Related Party Transactions 

All the Related Party Transactions entered into during the finandal year were on arm's length basis and were 
in ordinary course ol business. The Company has not entered into any transactions with Related Parties 
which could be considered material In terms of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the disclosure 
of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) ol the Companies Act, 2013ln Form AOC 
2 is not applicable. 

2.0) Declaration from Independent Directors 

The Company has received declaration !rom all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that 
they meet with the criteria ol Independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) ol Section 149 ol the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

21) Board Evaluation 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, performance evaluation ol the Board, Its 
committees, the Chairman & Managing Director and the Independent Directors was carried out .The manner 
in which the evaluation is carried out has been detailed below: 

Evaluation Process: 

The Company believes In value for Its stakeholders through ethical prooess and Integrity. The Board plays a 
very important role in ensuring the Company's performance to monitor and provide timely inputs to enhance 
the Company's Performance and set right direction lor growth. Hence It Is Important that every individual 
Board Member effectively contributes In the Board deliberations. 
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

The Company follows annual evaluation for our Key Managerial Persons and other eligible employees 
including the senior management team. A process sculpted on this method has been designed for evaluation 
of Directors under this process, the company management will: 

• Formulate the process for evaluating and rating Directors 

• Design the evaluation template/questionnaire and implementation process 

• Peer review of each Director 

• Analyse feed back received from each Director 

• Weighting the Evaluation summary of each Director. 

Key Evaluation Criteria: 

• AHendance and contribution at Board and CommiHee meetings 

• Hislherstature. appropriate mix of expertise. skills, behavior. experience, leadership qualities. 

• Sense of sobriety and understanding of business. strategic direction to align company's value and 
standards. 

• His/her knowledge of finance, aooounts, legal, investment, marketing, foreign exchange/hedging, internal 
controls, risk management, assessment and mitigation, business operations, processes and Corporate 
Governance. 

• Hlsfherabilityto create a performance culture that drives value creation and a high quality of debate with 
robust and probing discussions. 

• Effective decisions making ability to respond positively and constructively to implement the same to 
encourage more transparency. 

• Open channels of communication with executive management and other colleague on Board to maintain 
high standards of Integrity and probity. 

• Reoognize the role which he/she is expected to play, internal Board Relationships to make decisions 
objectively and collectively in the best interest of the Company to achieve organizational successes and 
harmonizing the Board. 

• Hlsfherglobal presence, rational, physical and metal fitness, broader thinking, vision on corporate social 
responsibility etc. 

• Quality of decision making & understanding financial statements and business performance, raising 
offinance. best source olfinance. working capital requirement, lorex dealings. geopolitics. human 
resources etc. 

• His/her ability to monitor the performance of management and satisfy himse11 with integrity of the financial 
controls and systems in place by ensuring righllevel of contact with external stakeholders. 

• His/her contribution to enhance overall brand image of the Company. 

Criteria for Determining Remuneration of Director's, Key Managerial Personnel and Particulars of Employees: 

The Remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with the Nomination & Remuneration Policy formulated In 
accordance with section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Usting Regulations (including any statutory 
Modification(s) or re· enactment(s)thereoflorthe time being in force. 

22) Nomination & Remunerat ion Policy 

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration CommiHee, has adopted a policy for 
selection, appointment and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managenal Personnel and Senior Management 
Team. The details of this policy are given hereunder. The Policy is available on website 
http://paramoneconcepts.com. 
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

The remuneration policy is designed to attract talented Personnel and remunerate them fairly and responsibly 
at each level ol the organization. The Policy broadly lays down the guiding principles. philosophy and the 
basis of payment of remuneration. 

The policy also provides the criteria for determining Qualifications. positive attributes and Independence ol 
Directors and criteria lor appointment of Kay Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and perfonnance 
evaluation which are considered by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors 
while making selection of the candidates. 

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), which is responsible for formulating 
the criteria tor appointment of Directors on the Board of the Company and persons holding Senior 
Management positions in the Company including their remuneration and other matters as provided under 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Usting Regulations. The rote of the NRC Committee 
encompasses conducting a gap analysis to refresh the Board on a periodic basis, including each time a 
Directors appointment or re- appointment Is required. The NRC Committee Is also responsible for revlewlng 
the Profiles of Potential candidates the required, competencies and due diligence and meeting of potential 
candidates prior to making recommendations of their nomination to the Board. 

23) Deposits 

Pursuant to Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014, the Company has not accepted or renewed any public deposits during the year. 

24) Reporting of Fraud 

There were no Instances of Fraud aroused during the year under review. 

25) Material changes affecting the Company 

The Change in Name, Address & Change of Director& Key Managerial Personnel are detailed above in the 
Report 

During the Year under review, the main object of the Company was changed pursuant to Postal Ballot Notice 
dated November14, 2019 passed on December 18,2019. 

Furlher the Company has received reclassification request from its existing Promoter M/s. Choice 
International Limited & M/s. Choice Equity Braking Private Limited to reclassify themselves from Promoter 
Category to Public . The Board has approved the Reclassification at their Board meeting held on September 
10, 2020 and has recommended the same for the approval of Members . The Resolution for reclasslficatlon 
forms the part of the 28th AGM Notice. 

The earlier request tor reclassification by the promoter's of the Company which was put to vote vide Postal 
Ballot Notice dated November 14, 2019 was rejected by the Exchange on Technical grounds. 

26) Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressat) Act, 2013 

The Company has in place a policy on Prevention, prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the 
work place in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace( prevention, 
prohlbttion and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

There were no Incidences of sexual harassmenl reported during the year under review, In lenns of the 
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. 

-------------0-------------PARAMONE CONCEPTS UWTED 



DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

27) Code of Conduct: 

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board and 
all employees In the course of day to day business operations of the company. The Company believes In 
"Zero Tolerance' against bribery, corruption and unethical dealings I behav•ors of any form and the Board has 
laid down the directives to counter such acts. The Code has been posted on the Company's webs~e 
http://paramoneconcepts.com. 

28) Director's Responsibility Statement 

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act (Including any statutory modification(s) or re· enactment(s) thereof for time 
being in force), the Directors of the Company State that: 

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31 , 2020 the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating 10 material departures if 
any. 

b. the Directors have seleC1ed such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements 
and estimales that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2020 and of the profits of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 
2020. 

c. proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other Irregularities. 

d . the Annual accountsllinanciaf statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

e. Internal Jlnanclaf control were In place and that the financial control were adequate and were operating 
effectively. 

I. proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively. 

29) Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Conservation of Energy 

1. Steps taken or Impact on conservation of Energy 

The Operations of the Company are not energy intensive. However adequate measures have been 
initiated lor conservation of energy. 

2. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of energy 

Though the operations of the Company are not energy Intensive, the Company promotes green energy 
and energy saving Initiatives among its employees. 

3. The Capital Investments on energy conservation equipments bythe Company: Nil 

Technology Observation 

i. The eHorts towards technology absorption: 

The minimum technology required lor the business has been absorbed. the Company has also adopted 
an online enterprise wide Human Resource system which eliminates manual working, encourages 
paperless working & easy availability of data on the system. 

li. The benefits derived like product improvement. cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution· encourages paper1ess working & reduces manual working. 

Ill. In case of Imported technology(imported during last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
Financial Year): NA 

iv. The expenditure incurred on Research & Development: Nil 
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Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo 

There are no Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the Year underreview. 

30) Health &Safety 

Health and Safety are addressed systematically, meritoriously and proactively. 

31) Acknowledgement 

The members or the Board of Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation lor the devoted 
services rendered by all the employees and the continued co-operation and confidence of shareholders. The 
Soard expresses their sincere thanks to the Bankers, Government and Semi-Government Authorities, 
Esteemed Customers, Suppliers, Business Associates and all other well-wishers lor their consistent 
contribution at att levels to ensure that the Company continues to grow and excel. 

Date: November06, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Sdi-

(Govlnd Patodia) 

Managing Director 

DiN:02794184 

By Order ol the Board of Directors 

Sdi-

(Mushtaq Shaikh) 

Director 

DIN: 081 44509 
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FORM NO. MGT 9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
as on financ,ial year ended on 31.03.2020 

Pursuant to Se<:tion 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company 

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014. 

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

CIN L45400MH1992PLC070070 

Registration Date 21/12/1992 

Name ot the Company Paramone Concepts limited 

Category/Sub·category of the Company Company Umited by Shares/ Indian Non Govemmerll 
Company 

Address of the Registered Office 12A, Narayan Plaza, Near Boomerang Building, 
& Contact Details Chandivali, Mumbal • 400 072. 

Whether listed company listed 

Name, Address & contact detalls of the "Skyline Financial Services Private Limited, 0.153A, 
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, 

New Delhi·11 0020" 

If PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the totaltumover of the company shall be staled 

Ill PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sr arne ress o CINIGLN SUBSIDIARY APPLICABLE N & Add I I HOLDING I 

No. the Company 1 ASSOCIATE" SECTION 

Choice Reality Private limited I 
Address : 374, 3rd Floor, Powal Plaza U70102MH2010PTC198599 Subsidiary 2(87) 
Building. Powal . Mumbai· 400072. 

I 
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IV SHAREHOLOING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity) 

No of Shares held at tho I No of Shares held at the 0 h 
. oC ange 

Category of begmmng of the year end 01 the year , • _ • • dunn 

Shareholdefs Demat Physteal Total I o .... of Total Demat I Physical I Total oo of Total the ye~r 
Shares Shares 

A. Promoters 
r--

(1) lndoan ~~ _ 
a) Individual / HUF 

'b) CA<ltral Govt 

. -1- . . . . ... -!-- -1-

f r--
04 State Govt " 

f .cJ Bodies Corporales ... r- · 
d) Bank I Fl 

e) Any other 
-.......--- -- +-- - - +---- -~ - -__ ..,_ -_ 1- ·--+-----~~---!<---

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 
(2) Foreign 

a) NRI -Individuals 

b) Olhor Individuals 
C) Bodies Corp 

f ~) Banks/Fl 

~ ~ Any other ..• 
SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 

1-i0i81 Shareholdlng of 
Promoter 
(A)• (A)(1)+(A)(2) 
B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING 

(1) ln.t:tituUons 

a) Mutl!!'-' Fu~ 
b) Banks / A 

c) Canlral GoVI-

d) State GovL r.) Venture Capllal Fund 

Q Insurance Companies 
g) FitS 

'"'h) Foreign Vonlu"' 
Capital FundS" 
1) OU>e<s (specify) 
~OTAL (B)(1): 

(2) Non Institutions 

~)_Bodies corpomtes 
q Indian 

11) Ove~seas, 
b) lndlvkfuii~S 
I) lndMdualshareholders 
llotding nomtnal shllle 
enpzlal~pto Rs.2 taklls 
I~ Individuals Sh8teholdellS 
hokfing nominal shart> eaprta.l 
In excess at Rs. 2 lakhs 

e) OlhetS (speedy) 

. -
... -I-

• 300 

... -
• 300 

- -"'-7356345 7900 

51()006 

233740 

I 

I 
j 

I 
. . -

t-----t--· -- .:..__ 

I 
.- . 
0 - . 

·-

I 
I 

- -
300 0 . 

-
-·---- - - --

7364245 -'S.ea 7463415 

. I . 

772996 5.11 537076 

6917Eaa 45.73 6548618 

~~-- --r-Z:54C:93 -t--:0 ~~ 0.04 5493 
HUF 66848 0 6684ll 0.44 Ea198 

1-cldotlng Member so o so o.oo o 
I-suB TOTAL (B=')'=(2,..):----~14"'a-='22700 5~ 1s12noo 100.00 __ 14&22600 

-1-- ..._ --
·TQI31 Public Shareholding 
(B); (B)(1)+(B)(2)" 14622700 504900 15127600 100.00 14622600 

I 

I 
I 

I I 
! I 
I I 

. . . 
-1--.--~,--.--7--.--

! I 
l ! 

300 300 0 

I I 
I . . 

300 300 0 

0.71 

262860 799936 5.29 0 .18 

233740 6782358 44.84 -0.89 

I 

0 5493 0.04 0-~-
0 68198 1 o.•s _,_,o"'m 
D 0 D 0.00 

504800 151273ooTloo o -I-. ".::..l- . ~ 
605100 15127600 100.00 0 

Cu-5todlen tor GOAs & ADRs" - - • - -
·c. Shares held by I 
Grand Total (A+Il•C) 146;2700 504.9001 s"1"';7:::6::00::+-1::-:00:-::---r: 11..,46::2::1-=-oo=o+-=sos= s=o-=o-f-"'1s:-:1-:2:::7600= -r-::1-:-0o=-.o=o,---=-o--l _____________ _, ____________ _ 

PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 



(II) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS 

SL 
No. 

2 I 
I 

Shareholders Name 

... 
Umitod 

Choice Equll)' Broklng 
Private Umhed 

Total 

Sharoho!ding at the 
begmn1ng of the year 

Sharohokitng at the end 
of the year ~'·Q change m 

e----------------------------------------------------------------------· shareholdlng 
Q·o or shares (>.c of total Q·o or shares 

I 

NO of 
shares 

0 

o~ of total 
shares ol 

the company 

0 

Pledged NO of pledged dunng 
shares ol 

encumbered shafes encumbered the yea1 the company 
to total shares to total shares 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

t" 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 ' " 

(Ill) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING (SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE) 

Choice Equity Braki ng PVT LTD 

AI the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0 
Putchase/Salo Or Shat& 0 0 0 I 0.00 

- - ---
At the end ot the year 0 0 0 0 

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of 
GDRs& ADRs) 

i Shareho!dtng Brough! Sold Shareholding Sold 
Sl Name of Shareholdres 

~ at the begtnnLflg dunng dunng at tho end of dunng 
No 

I 

ol the yeat the year tho year the year tho year 
01.04.20 19 31.032020 . -- ------ -- -

I 

No. (I" o! total shares No :~ Jf total sl'l4.'i'!S 

of Shares ollhe Company of Shares ot the 0.l'f~r·; 

• . . ' AGRAWAL : ' 

I ... : :•: ! I ' ... " 

AZURA PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 2880874 

FLORENCE SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED 2243909 2243909 

I I ,, 
" .. 

BIND I VIr<!\ Y VORA 1000000 1000000 

CHARTERED CAPITAL RESEARCH 
PRIVATE LIMITED 725569 4.80 725569 

ORStS FINANCIAL CORPORATION LIMITED 579250 383 

CARRON INVESTMENTS PAIVA TE LIMITED 339510 224 

I -9 BLUE DIAMOND PLASTOWARE 
PRIVATE LIMITED 1.92 0 0 290000 1.92 

10 MANOHAR G KODAM 148054 0 .99 0.00 148054 0 0 

I I MANJUSHA SARAF 128836 0 .85 148054 360 276330 1.83 
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(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP 

Date wise increaseJdacrease in Promoters Share 
hokUng during the year specifying 1he reasons lor 
tncrease/Oecrease (e.g. allotmentllransler 
lbonuslsweat equ1ty etc) 

Atlhe end ot the year 

0 

2000000 

0 0 0 

13.22 2000000 13.22 
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V INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment {standalone) 

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Total exclud1ng deposrts 
(Long Term) Deposits 

Indebtedness (Long Term) 

lndobtne-s.s at tho beginning of tho financial year - - I 

j) Principal Amount 6.772.000 252.418.000 I 
U) lntorc.st due but not pafd . I 
Ill) Interest accrued but not due . I 
Total (1+11+1111 6,772,000 252,4 18,000 I 
Chango tn lndebtednoss during the flnancJaJ yoar 

Additions 82,246,694 

ReduebOn 136,430.2« 2,553,683 -Net Change 
Indebtedness at the end of the financi-al ye.ar 198,234,450 4 ,218,317 

I} Principal Amounl 

l1) Interest due but not pald . 
IU) lntoroat accrued but not due . 

t + 
Totol(l+ll+lll) . 

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and I or Manager: 

Sl No Part•culars oi RemuneraiiOfl 
Name ol the 

I 
Name ol the 

Manag•ng D~rector ExecutJVe Ouector 
' 

1 Gross salary Govind PatOdla Musht.aq Shaikh 

(a) Salaty a5 per provision$ contained in section 17(1) 
ollhe tncomo Tax. 1961 . 1,800,000 728,202 

(b) Value ol perQU!srll>• uls 17(2) of the tln>rne 1rut Act. 1961 . . 

(e ) Proflls in beu ol salary uncter section 1 7(3) of the 

1ncomo Tax Act. 1961 . . 
2 S1oclc opuon . . -
3 Sweet £qu1ty . . 
4 Commission . . 

as % or profit . . 
olhers (specify) . . -

5 01hers. please specUy . . 
Totai(A) 1.800.000 728.202 

Ceiling as par the Act 
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B. Remuneration to other directors: 

N Name of the O~rectors Category board wmm11tee (b) CommiSSIOn ic) ers 
1 

Tola~ mount 
Sl II a) Fee lor attend1ng Oth A 

o meehngs pease spac1 y atd 

Mr. Sundertal Bogoria 

Mrs. Ekta Gupta 

Mr. Vijendra Jain 

Independent Director 

lndopendent Director 

Independent Olfeotot 

60.000 

60.000 

60.000 

C. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD 

C·ompany Secretary CFO & Executive Dlroctor 

Sw&tti Gupta Deepak RanJan Nayak 

Gross Salary 

(a) Salary as per ptovl$1ons 
contained In section 17(1)ol the 
lnoome Tax Act, 1961 297,837 902,743 

(b) Value of perqu!SIIos u/s 17(2) of 
lhe Income Tax Act, 1961 

(c) Prot1ts m tieu of salary under secuoo 
11 (3) of lhe Income Tax Ac~ 1961 

2 Stock Option 

3 Sweat Equity 

4 Commission 

as % ol Profit 

others. specify 

5 Others, PJoase specify 

Total 297,837 902,743 

.. 

Total 

60.000 

60,000 

60,000 

1.200.580 

1,200,580 
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VII Penalties/punlshment/comppounding 01 Offences 

Details of Penalty/ 
Aulhonty Appeal made 

SectiOn of the Punishment/ 
Type 

Compan,es Act 
Bnef Oescr1pt,on 

Compoundmg fees tRDINCLTI 11 any 

1m posed Court I tg•va deta•lsl 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
~ 

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
-

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

B. DIRECTORS 
1-

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL -- - -
Compounding NIL NIL NIL Nil NIL - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS 

IN DEFAULT 

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
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Statement containing the Silent featutes of the financial statement of subsidiaries /associate companies/ Joint Ventures AOC-1 

PART • A• SUBSIDtARIES 

(Pursuant to first proviso to Sub-sectlon (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act,2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies Account Rules, 2014) 

G 
51'll\f(} 

Resen..·es 
Total 

Pfolrt p I OVl~l Otl Prolrt 
Proposod "·.·of S• Name ol rne Svbsld~rv Rf'I,Xlt1•nq £:: :c:ctl<tr.gc 

& 
Tmal 

tn .... esrme"fs T vmo ... er Below lor Aflm No Pur«! Rate Cacrlc:tl 
Sllolus A sscts Lrabr i1Tres 

T axahon T .Hal ron 
[)y1(1ond Sharuholdtng 

t;oa!l()n 

'ro•.y.r;rr;IW't_.., ~• . : . " : " ··; i ~~ I ; 

= 

PART " B": ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act,2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

Note: There Is no "ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE • company. 

~ 

~ 
m 

I 
c 

" ~ 



FORM NO. MR. 3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

The Members 
PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 

(CIN: L45400MH1992PLC070070) 

Unit No: 67, 6th Floor, A Wing, 

Silver Astra. J .B. Nagar, 
Village Kondivitta, Andheri East, 

Mumbai·400059. 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Paramone Concepts Limited(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 
(hereinafter called the " Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books. forms and returns filed and otherrecords maintalned by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on March 31 , 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board·processes and oompliance·mechanism in place to the extent, In the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the provisions of: 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there· under; 

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act. 1956 ('SCRA') and the Rules made there-under: 

Ill. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye· laws framed there-under; 

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there-under to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment. Overseas Directlnvestmentand External Commercial Borrowings; 

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board ol lndia Act. 
1992 ('SEBI Act' ) to the extent applicable to the Company; 

a. The Securilies and Exchange Board ol India (Substantial Acquisition ol Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations. 2011 ; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board ollndia (Prohibition ol lnsider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c . The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)Regulatlons, 
2009; 
(Nat applicable to the Company during the Audit period); 
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d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (De listing or Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 

{Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period); 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Buyback of Securhles) Regulations, 1998 
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period). 

VI. During the financial year, the Company is engaged in business activities which are not subject to any specific law 
and hence no specific law is applicable to the Company. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following; 

(i) Secretarial Standards Including the amended Secretarial standards applicable with effect from 1st October, 
2017 issued by the Institute or Company Secretaries or India under the provisions of the Act 

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 

(Ill) Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

We repor1 that, during the financial year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions ol the Act, rules, 
regulations. guidelines as mentioned above. 

We fur1her repor1 that, there was no action/event in pursuance of; 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board ollndia (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board or India (Issue or Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board or India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines 1999 

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the 
Company and test verification on random basis carried out for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and 
Regulations to the Company 

The compliance by the Company of the applicable direct tax laws, indirect tax laws and other financial laws has not been 
reviewed in this Audit, since the same have been subject to review by the other designated professionals and being relied 
on the reports given by such designated professionals. 

We fur1her repor1 that, based on the information provided and representation made by the Company and also on the 
review of compliance repor1s of the respective depar1ment heads/Company Secretary/CFO taken on record by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. in our opinion adequate system and process exits in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable general laws like 
labour laws, competition law and environmental laws. 

We fur1her repor1 that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly consbtuted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with provisions of the Act. 

However during the period under review, Mrs. Swati Gupta was appointed as the Company Secretary w.e.f. 14th August, 
2019 in place of Ms. Sweta Bajaj who resigned w.e.f 14th June, 2019 which resulted in vacancy of Company Secretary 
for the period of two months. 
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Adequate notice Is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent generally at least seven days in advance, and in view of the non~existenoe format system, we are not in position to 
comment on existence of system tor seeking and obtalning further Information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and lor meaningful participation at the meeting. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes In the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, majority decision carried through while the 
dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that the Company has complied with all the provisions related to Change of Name ollhe Company. The 
name of the Company has been changed to "PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED" from AQUA PUMPS INFRA 
VENTURES LIMITED w.e.l. April 03, 2019 and accordingly there was allera~on In Memorandum of Association and 
Artldes of Association of the Company. 

We further report that the Company has complied with all the provisions related to Alteration of Object Clause of the 
Company w.e.l January 07, 2020 and accordingly there was alteration 1n Memorandum of Association of the Company. 

We further report that there were no specific events/actions in pursuance of any of the above referred laws, rules. 
regulations, guidelines etc., having a major bearing on the Company affairs. 

We further Informed that due to lockdown and social distancing guidelines issued by the Minostry of Home Affairs (MHA) 
on different dates vide orders dated 29th March, 2020, 15th April, 2020 and 1st May, 2020 for containment of spread of 
Covid-t 9, the abovementioned documents, registers, forms, etc. have not been physically verified by us, as being 
maintained by the Company at their offices. While we have taken all possible steps to verity the records as made 
available to us by the Company through electronic medium. wherever required but the audit was done subject to 
limitation of availability of documents. 

For Nidhi Bajaj & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Sdi-
Nidhl Baja) 

Proprietor 

ACS-28907, 
COP- 14596 
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Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as "Annexure A" and forms and 
integral part of this report. 

The Members 
PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(GIN: L45400MH1992PLC070070) 
Mumbai 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter; 

Annexure ·~>A"' 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit: 

2. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the oorrectness of the contents of the secretarial reoords. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected In secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices. we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion; 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company; 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulation and happening of events etc.; 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis; 

6. The Secretarial Audit report 1S neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Nldhl Bajaj & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Sdi­
NidhiBajaj 
Proprietor 
ACS·28907 
COP-14596 
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Economic Outlook 

The Global economy showed wakening trend from the beginning of 2019, mainly on the account of rising trade and 
geopolitical crisis. The Spread of corona virus (Covid-19) across the world in the end of the 2019 compelled all major 
economies to impose forced lockdown to reduce the impact of pandemic on the health of their people. The imposition of 
lockdown had severe implications on Global as well as Indian economy and financial staibillty. IMF had to revisit Its 
forecast and projected negative growth of the world economy, which would be worse than the financial crisis In 2008-Q9. 

Several financial stimulus packages has been introduced by different countries for revival of economy and are 
anticipated boast, once the effect of the pandemic and supply chain disruptions stan wearing-off. The global economy is 
estimated to pick up to 5.8% In 2021. Apart from pandemic, the Indian economy is facing several crisis such as falling 
consumer demand, slow credit off-take, lower capacity utilization, rise in unemployment, drop in household savings, 
reduction in corporate earnings and declining trend of tax collections. Further, the nabonwide lockdown restrictions, to 
control the spread of corona virus from March 2020, and further extension beyond May 2020, is likely to Impact the 
overall growth In the country. 

To offset these impacts and to provide support to the financial markets, the RBI took several measures to infuse liquidity 
such as reduction In repo rates and allowed banks 10 provide a three month mora!orium on all types of loan repayments. 
The Government also inlroduced several measures to curtail the implications of economic slowdown and to boost 
economy, which includes reduction of personal and corporate taxes and announcement of financial packages, largely 
targeting the MSMEs and weaker section ofthe society. 

Infrastructure Sector Performance in FY 2019-20 

The infrastructure sector Is the key drive of Indian economy and contributes to overall development of Country. 
Henoe, !he sector receives attenllon from both State and Central Governments. The spread of COVID·19 pandemic 
towards the end of the financial year and the consequentiallockdown has posed severe concerns for the economy. 
Infrastructure development activities across the country have been impacted due to the Lockdown. 

FY 2019·20 was a challenging year for both the Indian economy. which performed below Its true potential, as well as 
infrastructure sector, which recorded lowest growth in last six years. The infrastructure sector saw downfall due to 
imposition of nationwide lockdown, Inadequacy of funds with Governments, slow tendering of process. challenging 
payment terms In Government tenders, uneven fund flows from ongoing projects. 

Despite the challenges, the Government's thrust areas continued to provide a business opportunities for the Company. 
The Government's focus on segments such as, Improvement of road connectivity across the country, renewable sources 
of energy, water management and augmentation of local water resources under Jal Jeevan Mission are also given rise to 
good business prospects for the Company. 

Business Structure 

As one of the rapidly growing organization in the field of infrastructure consultancy, the Company continued to contribute 
towards nation building by its expertise conducting Feasibility studies. preparation of Details Project Report, rendering 
Project Management Consultancy. Independent Engineer Services, Aulhority Engineer Services etc. to various 
Governmen~ PSUs and other cllenls across the country. 

The Company has its presence In the following business verticals: 
1. Affordable Housing 

2. Roads and Highways 
3. Water Management 
4. Environment and Solid Waste Management 
5. Public Rnancial Reforms 

6. Urban Development and Sustainabillty. 
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The Company is already rendering its services in the verticals viz. affordable housing, water management, roads and 
highways and solid waste management in Odlsha, Madhya Pradesh, Chhattisgarh, and Maharashtra. The Company is 

working aggressively to expand its foot prints in other parts of the country by identifying best opportunities across the 
business verticals and developing rational bidding process. 

Trading Business 

The Company Is also engaged activities of trading and investment in equities, mutual funds. commodities. The 
Company's diverse investment portfolio Includes wide range of securities such as equities, debt securities, mutual funds 

unHs, Govt. securities etc., which yields a persistent income for the Company. The Company is managing its portfolio by 
investing In securities which ensure concurrent return for the Company on long term basis with the professional support 

of investment advisors and portfolio managers. 

Opportunities 

The key opportunities include Govt. funded projects in the verticals like Water Management (Jal Jeevan Mission), Solid 
waste management, Roads and Highways and affordable housing where some momentum is expected. In water 
projects, the Central, State and municipal bodies continue to provide large opportunities. The affordable housing 

projects and water & solid waste treatment projects viz. river, pond, nuiiah or stream cleaning, are likely to drive the 
business opportunities for the Company. The future project management is key for Company's business and the 

Company will continue to emphasis on rational bidding, maintaining quality of service, timely execution and prompt 
certification and receipt of tunds. 

Threats 

Various factors like economic slowdown, liquidity crisis and adverse Impact of lockdown due to the pandemic are some 
challenges faced by the economy. Further the availability of limited resources with the Government due to inadequate of 
tax collection is likely to effect the Government spending on Infrastructure projects in the near future. A delay Is expected 
In finalization of new infrastructure development projects and realization of funds from the Government for ongoing 

projects. 

Comparison with Peer Group 

The Covid-19 pandemic has severe impact on infrastructure development activities in the Country. The tockdown has led 
to stoppage of all ongoing infrastructure projects which adversely affected almost all participants or the infra-consultancy 

business in terms of progress and collection. As compared to Peer Group, the Company is working aggressively to tap 
the news opportunities in the business verticals having attention of Governments. The Company is focusing to adapt new 

set of norms required for resumption for existing projects. so as to ensure timely execution of work and uninterrupted 
receipt of funds. 

Risk Management 

The Board of Directors of the Company has advised for and formed a Risk Management group to devise, execute and 
monitor the risk management plan for the Company. 

The group has been primarily responsible for monitoring and reviewing the risk management pian and ensuring Its 

effectiveness. The Audit Team has additional oversight in the area of financial risks. The major risks identified by the 
businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. The creation 

and execution of risk management policy entail few of the below mentioned factors. 

Risks are assessed and managed at various levels with a top-down and bottom-up approach covering the company, the 
business units, and projects. 
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Key Risks Impact on the Company Mitigation 

Business and process The company's business processes might Establishment of a Covid·19 Emergency 
disruption due to Covid· be adversely impacted due to exposure to Response to drive a holistic action plan and 
19 pandemic the pandemic, reduced productivi1y due to coordinate efforts. 

employee stress and Impact on emotional 
Guidance and protocol for appropriate 

health while being under locallockdowns or 
social distancing measures and workplace 

quarantines, inablllty to provide work from 
and home functioning advisories. 

home access to some employees due to 
logisticalor security challenges. Counselling and regular team meeting 

carried out by leaders and personnel teams 
to ensure well being. 

Drawing up of plans and Identification of 
opportunities for proposing new and re· 
purposed offerings and solutions during 
and post the Covid·19 disruption. 

Business model Rapidly evolving business scenarios are Staying connected and maintaining 
challenges changing consumption patterns, creallng significance for the customers by 

new classes of buyers withinthe business constantly updating and on boarding new 

ecosphere. gMng rise to entirely new service practices and technology solutions. 

business modelsand therefore new kinds 
of competitors. This is resulting inincreased 
demands on the company's ability and 
adaptabili1y to keep pace with the changing 
customer expectatlons. 

HR and Health and Safety 

The exlsllng economic scenario and the pile-on ol covld·19 crisis mounted ommeasurable pressure both on the 
management as well as the workforce . ln view of that, to mitigate the adverse effect. the human resource (HR) team on 
continuous basis engaged woth the employees periodically to ensure their mental well·being.Specific measures were 
taken to ensure the mental health of the employees by means of regular meeting and head-on deliberation session. 

Further, to enhance knowledge and productove engagement, the Company Initiated funclfonal online trainings and 
workshops for its employees and other allied partners on various need-based modules. Many refresher courses were 
conducted In addition to the training and mandatory annual elements. 

In addition to that secondary referral-based source of revenue streams were popularized so ass to enable the employees 
to bolster theirfinancial standing while working from home. 

A variety of employee engagement activities were carried out round the year. Increased emphasis was put on medical 
insurance coverage for the employees and their family members so as to enable them In the face of health emergencies if 
any. 

Date: November OS, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Sdl· 
(Govlnd Patodia) 
Managing Director 

DIN:02794184 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Sdl· 
(Mushtaq Shaikh) 
Director 

DIN:08144509 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Your Director's present the Company's report on Corporate Governance as per SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015'), for the year ended 31st March, 2020. 

Good Corporate Governance leads to long-term shareholder value and enhances interests of all stakeholders. 

COMPANY'$ PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Paramone Concepts limited believes In the highest level of accountability towards its stakeholders and actively 
promotes fair, transparent and ethical Corporate Governance practices. The Company is committed to maintain the 
highest standards of Corporate Governance and continue to improve the same from time to time. 

The Company has adopted the best practices of corporate governanoe over a period of time as per the provisions of the 
Securities Exchar~ge Board of India (listing Obligatior~s and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 20t5 and the 
Companies Act, 2013. ll is also committed to sound Corporate Governance principles and practioes. Stakeholders' 
interests are considered, before making any business decision. 

Corporate governance is essential for the growth, profitability and stability of any business. Aligning itself to this 
philosophy, the Company has placed Corporate Governance on a high priority. Thus, the Company, through its Board, 
Committees and Senior Managerial Personnel endeavor to strike and deliver the highest governing standards for the 
benefits of its Stakeholders. 

A report on compliance with principles of corporate governanoe as prescribed by SEBI in Chapter IV read with Schedule 
V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given below: 

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

COMPOSITION AND SIZE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of Directors of the company has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors with not 
less than fifty per oent of the Board of Directors comprising ol non-executive directors. 

The Board of Directors of the company as on March 31,2020 comprises of (six) directors, out of which one is Managing 
Director, two are Executive Director and the remaining three directors are Non-Executive & Independent Directors. 

As mandated by Regulation 26 of the listing Regulations. none of the Directors holds directorship In more than 10 public 
limited companies nor Is any of them a member of more than ten committees of the prescribed nature or holds 
Chairmanship of more than five such committees of the across all public limited companies in which they are directors. 

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT BOARD MEETINGS, LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) AND 
NUMBER OF OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS: 

Board Meetings Whether 
Number of 

I 

Number ol Commrttee 
Nature of Director Ship 1n 

Name of Ouectors 
Directorship 

attended anended other Public 
pos1ttons 1n other 

dunng the year last AGM Companies 
Pubhc Compan1es 

Member Chairman. 

Mr. Govlnd PatodJa. MO.ED 4 Yes . . . 
Mr. Mushtaq Shaikh I EO 4 Yes . . . --- - -
'Mr. Oeepak Aan)an Nayak 

1 
EO&CFO Yes . . 

- - - - - -
Mr. Sundarta l Bagaria ID,NED 4 Yes 2 . . 

Mrs. Ekta Gupta tO,NEO 4 No . . 
- - - -

Mr. Vijendra Jain tD,NEO 4 Yes . . 

{MD-Managlog DirectOf, EO· Executlv& DiteC1of, ID · lndepend&nl Director, NED· Non· E.xectJIIve Ouoc:tor. CFO • Chk!f f:lnancl.a.J Otflcet} 
None ot Uut d (ret1,0JS Is related Loanyotherdlrector. 

Directorships in Foreign Body Corporales-. Private Umited Companies. seclion 6eompanies and Associations are excluded. 

• Mr. Oeep.a:k Ranjan has resigned from lhe Olrec:lorshlp oil he Company with effee1 from November 03.2020. Howevet" Mr Oeepak Ranjan shall 
con11nue to act as the Chief Finel'l<!iaiOfficer of the Company. 

Funher Mr. Surendra Kumar Kulhan ( DIN No. 00727964) 1\as been appoB1ted as the Addttlonal Executive Director Wflh effect from November 
06.2020 subject to approval of the Member's on his appointment e~t the schedule Annual General Meeting to be held on December 28, 2020. 
R.esolutloo for Mr Kulhari's appointment fOtms part ot the Notice ol the 281h Annuat General Meeting. 
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NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS 

During the year under repon, 4 (Four)Board Meetings ware held during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020. The 
dates are· 30th May 2019, 14th August2019. 14th November 2019. and 10th February 2020.The Board has reviewed 
the compliance of all laws applicable to the Company. 

The intervening period between two Board Meetings was well within the time limit prescribed in the Companies Act. 2013 
and the maximum gap between any two meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days as stipulated under 
Regulation 17 of the Usllng of Secretarial Standards. 

a) The Board Meetings were usually held at the registered office of the Company. 

b) To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively, the members of the Board are briefed at every Board 
Meeting on the overall performance of the Company. Senior Management 1s anvited to attend the Board Meetings as 
and when required, so as to provide additional Inputs to the items being discussed by the Board. 

c) The Minutes of the proceedings of the Meetings of the Board of Directors are noted and the draft minutes are 
circulated amongst the Members of the Board for their perusal. 

limit on the number of Directorships 

In compliance with the listing Regulations, Directors of the Company do not serve as Independent Director in more than 
seven Listed Companies or in case he/she is serving as a Whole· Time Director In any Listed Company, does not hold 
such position in more than three Listed Companies. 

Independent Directors 

Independent Directors are Non·Executive Directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria 
as mentioned under Regulation 16(1 )(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in compliance with the Act. The Company has on its Board, eminent 
independent Directors who have brought in Independent judgement to Board's deliberations Including issues ol strategy, 
risk management and overall governance. They have played a pivotal role in safeguarding the interests of all 
stakeholders. 

The terms and conditions for appointment of the Independent Directors are disclosed on the website of the Company. 

Performance evaluation of Independent Directors 

The Board ol Directors upon recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee have laid down the criteria 
for performance evaluation of Board of the Company, its Committees and the individual Board Members, including 
Independent Directors. 

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board and in the evaluation lhe Director 
who was subject to evaluation did not participate. On the basis of performance evaluation done by the Board. it shall be 
determined whether to extend or continue their term of appointment, as and when their respectave term expires. 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR'S MEETING: 

Independent Directors' Meeting held on February 10, 2020 to address matters prescribed both under the Act & SEBI 
Regulations, was attended by Mr. Sunde rial Bagaria, Mrs. Ekta Gupta and Mr. Vijendra Jaln. 
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A. Familiarisation Programme For Independent Director 

Your Company has put in place a system to lamlliarlze its Independent Directors about the Company, its Business 
Segment, the Industry and Business model of the Company. In addition 11 also undertakes various measures to update 
the Independent Directors about theon-go1ng events and development relating to the Company. 

All the Independent Directors of the Company are made aware ol their role, responsibilities & liabilities at the time of their 
appointmenV re ·appointment, through a formal letter of appointment, which also stipulates various terms and condllions 
of their engagement. 

B . Compliance with Code Of Conduct 

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct applicable to all the employees and Board of Directors of 
the Company. The Code provides a lramework as to the ethical practice & compliances required to be followed by the 
employees and the Directors of the Company. 

A Code adopted by the Company is posted on the Company's Website i.e.: www.paramonconcepts.com 

All the Board Members and Employees have affirmed compliance with the said code for the year ended March 31, 2018. 
A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director annexed to this report. 

The Code lays down the standard procedure ol business conduct which is expected to be lollowed by the Directors and 
the designated employees In their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity in the work place, in 
business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through examples on the expected 
behaviour from an employee in a given situation and the reporting structure. All the Board Members and the Senior 
Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. All Management Staff were given appropriate 
training in this regard. 

2. COMMITTEESOFTHEBOARO: 

The Board has constituted various committees of Directors to take an informed decisions in the best interest of the 
Company which caters to specific areas and activities. The Committees constituted are in line with the Companies Act. 
2013 & Listing Regulations. Following are the Committees constituted by the Board ol Directors which comprises ol the 
members ol the Board &the Senior Management of the Company. 

A. Audit Committee 

B. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

C. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

D. Risk Management Committee 

E. Investment Committee 

The above mentioned committee meetings are held at regular Intervals to track the day to day affairs of the Company. 
The decisions taken by the Committees are reviewed by the Board of Directors at the Board Meeting conducted for each 
quarter. 

A. AuditCommittee 

The Committee acts as a link between the Management, External and Internal Auditors and the Board of Directors or the 
Company. 

Audit committees Is Identified as an effective means for corporate governance that reduce the potential for fraudulent 
financial reporting. Audn committees oversee the organization's managemen~ internal and external auditors to protect 
and preserve the shareholders' equity and Interests. The Composition, quorum, powers, role & scope of the Audit 
Committee are In accordance with Section 177 ol the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions olthe Listing Regulations. 

-------------G)-. ------------PARAMONE CONCEPTS UMITED 



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

As on 31st March 2020, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises of three Directors. majority of which are 
Independent directors. All the members of the Commlnee are financially literate and holds a varied experience In the 
Financial Market. 

The audit committee met lour Urnes during the year i.e on May 30, 2019, August 14 2019, November t 4,2019& February 
10,2020. The maximum interval between any two consecutive Meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of 
t 20 day. The Minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee are noted by the Board. The details of the composition of 
the Commitlee, meetings held, atlendance at the meeting are given in the below mentioned table: 

COMPOSITION & ATTENDANCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 

No ol Mee~ngs 
attended 

Mr. Sundertal Bagar1a 

Mr. MU$h1loq Shaikh 

Mrs. Ekta Gupta 

Chairman 

Member 

Member 

lndepende.fl1 Owector 

Execuuve Director 

tndepe:ndenl Dwector 

• 
• 
• 

Note: (I.) Company SBcretruyof the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

Briel description of terms of reference: 

a) Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and disclosure of financial informatlon. reviewing 
with the management, the quarterly and annual financoal statements before submosslon to the Board for 
approval. 

b) Review of the adequacy of accounting records as maintained in accordance with the provisions of the 
CompaniesACI, 2013. 

c) Review of the adequacy of internal control system. 

d} Suoh other powers and role as stipulated under Usting Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
20t3. 

B. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises ot three Directors, all being Non· Executive Director as 
on the date of the Report the Committee constitutes of two Independent Director & one Non- Executive Director. 
The details of the Members of the Committee & the Committee Meetings held during the yea/ under review are 
mentioned below In the table; 

The details of attendance of the Members is as under: 

' 
Name ol Duectors Posrt1011 Category No ol Mee~ngs 

auendeo 
' 

M~Sundarlal8agaria Chairman __ ~ependenl Director 2 --
Mrs Ekta Gupta Member lndepenOOnl Oirecto1 2 

L Mr. Vljendra Jain Member ln~epondem Dlrecoor 2 -
NOTE: (i) Company Secretary of the Company acts es the Secretary to the Committee. 

During the year under revlew,the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met two times on 30thMay, 2019 
and 14thAugust, 2019 respectively. 
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The roles and responsibilities of the Committee are in accordance with the requirements as specified In 1t1e 
Listing Regulations, Companies Act. 2013 and other applicable laws. if any. Apart from the above. the 
Comminee also exercises the role and powers entrusted upon It by the Board of Directors from lime to time. 

Performance Evaluation 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an 
annual performance evaluation of the working of its own performance & the Directors Individually as well. 

The evaluation was carried out through structured process covering various parameters such as Composition of 
Board, Board Participation, Good Governance, Level of Integrity &Ethics. Expansion & Diversification, Risk 
Management, strategies adopted, financial operations , In ternal Control, Marketing, Corporate 
Communications. 

c) Remuneration to Executive Director 

I) The Remuneration to be paid to Executive Directors of the Company shall be such as may be proposed by 
the Nomination & Remuneration Commlnee and subsequenlly approved by the Board of Directors wllhln the 
overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013. 

ii) The remuneration payable to the Managing Director& Executive Director is broadly divided in to fixed and 
variable component. The fixed componenl comprises of salary, allowances, perquisites and the variable 
component comprises of performance bonus and may include commission subject to the approval of the 
members. 

d) Remuneration to Non· Execut ive/Independent Director 

The Non • Executive /Independent Director of the Board shall be enlilled for sitting fees for attending the 
meeting of the Board or committees thereof. The sitting fee paid to the Directors shall be within the limits 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be such as may be 
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. An 
Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to participate in 
any share based payment schemes of the Company. Any remuneration paid to Non· Executive I 
Independent Directors for services rendered which are ol professional in nature shall not be considered as 
part of the remuneraJion. 

e) Remuneration paid to Senior Management Employees 

The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and 
incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and In accordance with the 
Company's Polley. The Rxed pay shall Include monthly remuneration, employer's contribution to Provident 
Fund, contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from to time. The Incentive pay shall 
be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company and performance of the Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or at such Intervals as may be 
considered appropriate. 

C. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

As on March 31. 2020 the Stakeholders· Relationship Committee consists of Members as stated below. 

During the Financial Year 2019·20 the Committee mettwo times on May 30, 2019 and August 14, 2019. The 
details of attendance of Members are given below: 
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Composition & Attendance of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

I 

No oi Mee~ngs 
Name ollhe Member Des•gnal1on Ca1egor1 

Held Allended 

Mr. Sund:arlal Bag aria 

Mr. Mushtaq Shaikh 

Mrs. Ekte Gupta 

Chalrman 

Member 

Independent Director 2 
--r--

E_xecuUve Director 2 

Independent Director 2 

2 

2 

2 

The Stakeholder Relationsh•p Committee's composition and the terms or reference meet wi th the requirement of 
Listing Regulations and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Committee focuses on Shareholder's grievances and strengthening of Investor relations. The role & 
responsibilities of Stakeholder's relationship Committee are as follows: 

Consider, resolve and monitor redressal of shareholder grievances o f the company with respect to transfer of 
shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividend. etc. 

Review the performance of the Company's Registrar & Transfer Agents. 

Ensure expeditious share transler process in line with the proceedings of the Share Transfer Committee. 

INVESTOR GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL 

Statement of lrwestor Grievances for the quarter ended March 31 . 2020 as per Regulation 13 (3) of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 

SrNo 
I 

Part1culars of Investors Complaints 
I 

Number of Compla~nls 

I Pend1119 at the beginning of lhe quarter NIL 

2 Received during the quatt.ef NIL 

3 Disposed ol during the qunrtor NIL 

4 R&maining unu~solvod aJ lh& &nd of the quartm NIL 

D) RISKMANAGEMENTCOMMITIEE 

The composition of the Committee is in conformity with the Listing Regulations. with majority of Members being 
Directors. 

Name ol the Member 

Mr. Muahtaq Shai kh Chairman Executive Director 1 

Mrs. Ekla Gupta Member ExecuUve Director 1 1 
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The Role of the Risk Management CommiHee is as follows : 

Framing of Risk Management plan and Polley 
Reviewing the Company's Financial and Risk Management policies 

Monitoring the process of Risk Management 

Monitoring the process of Risk Minimisation 

E) lNVESTMENTCOMMITTEE 

The Investment Comminee Is entrusted wilh the clay to day operations with respect to investments to made In the 
name and on behalf of the Company. The maximum amount up to which the Investment shall me made by the 
Investment Committee is already predefined by the Board of Directors. 

The decisions taken by the Investment Committee with respect to the Investments made on behalf of the 
Committee are reviewed by the Board or Directors at the Board Meeting; the decisions taken by the Investment 
Committee can be altered by the Board of Directors. 

The Investment Committee constituted by the Board comprises of Executive & Independent Directors. The 
details of the Committee Meeting held during the Year along with the Constitution or the Committee are detailed 
as follows: 

Name olthe Member Des•gnatJon Category 
No of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mr. Muahtaq Shaikh Chairman executive Oitector I 1 

Mrs. Deepak Ranfan Nayak Member ExecutJve Director 1 

Mr. Sunderlal Bagarla Member lndopendonl Director t 

The Commrttee meeting was held on July 30. 2019 & during the year under review. 

10. AFFIRMATIONS & DISCLOSURES 

a) Compliance Framework 

The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements under the Listing Regula lions. 

b) Relaled Party Transactions 

All transactions entered in to by the company with related parties, during the financial year 2019· 20, were in 
ordinary course of business and on arms -length basis. The details of the Related Party Transactions are set out in 
the notes to the Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report. The Related Party Transactions 
undertaken by the Company were in compliance with the provisions set out in the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
rules issued there under and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. 

There were no material significant lransactrons with Related Parties during the financial year, which ware In 
conflict wi th interest of the Company at large. The Company has in place policy on Related Party Transaction and 
the same is available on Company's website hltp://paramoneconcepts.com. 

c) Matenal Subs•diary 

There is no material Subsidiary of the Company as on March 31,2020. 

d) Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice 

The Company has received a certnlcale from NIDHI BAJAJ & ASSOCIATES, Company Secretaries, that none of 
Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of Companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authorilles. 
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e) Recommendations of the Committee 

The Board has accepted all the recommendations of the Committees of the Board given from time to time during 
the financial year under review, 

f) Totallees paid to the statutory auditors 

The total fees paid by the listed entity and its subsidiary on consolidated basis , the statutory auditor of the listed 
entitles In the network firm/ network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part during the financial year2019· 
2020 aggregates to As. 40,000/·. 

g) Compliance with Mandatory Requirements of the listing Regutatlons 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses 
(b) to (i) of the Sub Regulation 46 olthe Listing Regulations. 

h) Disclosure on Commodoty Price Risk and Commodity Hedging Activities 

The Company has In place a mechanism to Inform the Board Members about the Risk assessment, mitigation 
Plans and periodical reviews laced by the Company. Risk based internal audit plan is approved by the Audit 
Committee which also reviews adequacy and eHectlveness of the Company's internal financial controls. 

The Company does not Involve in commodity hedging activities. 

I) Brief Profile ot Director seeking appointmenV reappointment 

As required, a brief profile and other particulars of the Director retiring by rotation seeking appointment I 
reappointment Is given In the Notice of the 28th AGM and forms a part of this Annual Report. 

j) Adoption of Non· Mandatory Requirements of the Listing Regulations 

a) During the year under review, there is no audit qualification on the Company's financial statements. The 
Company continues to adopt the best practises to safeguard the practice of Unmodified audit opinion. 

b) The Internal Auditor has a direct access to the Audit Committee, he participates in the Audit Committee 
Meetings and presents his reports with the observations to the Audit Committee. 

k) Disclosures In relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace(Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 201 3 

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year: 0 

b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: 0 

c. number of complainls pending as on end ol the financial year. 0 

I) Means of Communication 

Effective Communication ol lnlormation Is an essential component of Corporate Governance. It Is process of 
sharing information, Ideas, thoughts, opinions and plans to all stake holders which promote management • 
shareholders relations. The Company regularly interacts with its members through multiple channels of 
Communications such as results, announcements. annual reports and the website of the Company and the stock 
exchanges. 

a) Quarterly Result 

The Unaudrted quarterly/ half yearly financial results are announced within 45 days of the end of the respective 
quarter. The audited annual financial resulls are announced within 60 days of the close of the financial year as per 
the requirement of the Regulation 33 or the Listing Regulations. The aforesaid financial results are sent to BSE 
Llmlted (BSE) where the shares olthe company are listed. These resulls are thereatter published within 48 hours 
in one English Newspaper(Financial Express) & one local newspaper (NavshaktiiAplamahanagr) as well as 
placed on the website of the Company. 
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b) Website 

In Compliance with Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, a separate dedicated section under "Investors 
Relation• on the Company's website gives Information on various announcements made by the Company, status 
of unclaimed dividend, Annual Report, Quarterly I Hati Yearly/ Nine Months and Annual Financial results along 
with the applicable policies of the Company at http://paramoneconcepts.com. 

c) Stock Exchange 

The Company makes timely disclosures of necessary information to BSE Limited in terms of Listing Regulations 
and other rules & regulations Issued bythe SEBI. 

d) BSE Listing Centre 

The Financial Results, Shareholdlng Pattern and Quarterly report on Corporate Governance and other filings 

required to be made to the stock exchanges are electronically filed at BSE portal i.e. llsting.bselndia.com. 

pursuant to Regulation 1 0(1) of the SEBI (LODR Regulations) BSE has mandated the Listing Centre as the 

"Electronic Platform" tor filing all mandatory and any other Information to be filed with the Stock Exchanges by 

Listed Entities. BSE also mandated XBRL submissions tor Shareholdlng Pattern & Corporate Governance. All 
the data relating to financial results. various submissions/ disclosure documents etc .. have been electronically 

filed and Shareholding pattern & corporate governance Report have been filed in XBRL mode with the Exchange 

on the "listing Centre". (http:/nisting.bseindia.com). 

5. General Shareholder Information 

A Annual GonoraJ MMting 28th Annual Gensial Meeting 

Date and Time of AGM Oeoember 281h 2020 at 11 ,00 A.M 

VenucofAGM VC (VIdeo Conference) 

B Financial Year 2020~21 {Tenlabve Dates) 

Flnanc1al reportJng for the quarte-r ending June 30, 2020 2nd weel< of Augus~ 2020 

Financial roportJng for the half year ending September 30, 2020 2nd woet.k of November. 2020 

Floancial reponJng for the qusrter ending December 31.2020 2nd week of February, 2021 

Flnanc1al reporting for the year ending March 31. 2021 2nd,_ of May. 2021 

Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 31. 2021 By Septembar 30, 2021 
- 1- - r-
c Date ol Book Closure Deoember 22no 2020 to O<>cembe< 28th 2020 

(both <lays InClusive). 

0 Registered Office Near Boomer""9" Budding 
Chandlvafl. Mumbal • 400 072 

E Us ling on Stoc:k Exchange Bombay Srock Exchange Umltod (BSE ltd.) 

F Stock Code/ISIN No. BSE • 53136411NE005E01013 

G Registrar & Transfer Agent Sl<yNne Financial SeMoes PvL Ltd 
0-t53A, 1st FloOf. Oklllalndustna.l Area, 
l'tl8se-f, New De1111-tt0020 

H Payment of Annual LlsUng Fees Usllng fees for lhC 11nanclal year 2020·21 has 
been paid to the BSE Umfted. 

I CustOdial Foes to Dopo.silotloa: Th& Company has paid custodial fooa lOr tho year 
2020~2021 to NAtional Secunltes Cktpos1tory 
Umitod (NSOL) & Contra! Depository Services 
(India) Umlted (CDSL). 
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3. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

The details of the Annual General Meeting in the last three years and the number of special 

resolutions passed thereat are as follows: 

I 
No ol Specoal 

For lhe year Date and T1me Venue R 
1 1 

p eel eso u 1ons ass 

2111S.19 

20t7-18 

2016-17 

27.09 2019 • 10.00 am. Hot~ Kohlnoor Corumental 
I Andheri (E.asl), Mumba._ 400099 

27.09. 2018 • 1.00 pm. Hotel Ra<llsson One X·22. MtOC Cen~al Road. 
Hanuman Nagar. An<lheri (East). Mumba~ 400093 

20.09 2016. 2.00 p.m. Anchorage Hal~ Holel Suba lntemauonal, 211, 
Chakala Sahar Road. Andhen )East), Mumbai • 400099 

Four 

One 

None 

During !he Year under review, Postal BaUot was counded by the Company llide Notice Dated , November 14, 2019 for passing the 
special business such as change in Object olthe Company and ReclaSsifiCIJon ol Promote r group. 

J . Market Price Data 

Month 
PCLHogh PCL Low 

I 

PCL Pnce 
(BSE) (SSE) (BSEJ 

April, 2019 21.00 16.00 16.00 

May, 2019 16.00 15.50 16.00 

Juno. 2019 16.00 16.00 16.00 

July, 2019 16.60 14.45 14 45 

Auguit;2ii19 --
13.73 13.05 13.70 

Septemb<>r, 2019 13.02 11.16 11.80 

October. 2019 1075 1000 10.30 

November, 2.019 12.50 10.30 12.50 

December. 2019 15 43 12.50 14.6 1 

January, 2020 15 75 14.25 14.95 

February, 2020 15.69 14.20 14.20 

March, 2020 13.60 13.60 13.60 

K. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31 , 2020: 

No of Shares 

1·5000 

6001·10000 

10001-20000 

20001·30000 

30001 ·40000 

40001·50000 

50001 ·1 00000 

100001 and above 

TOTAL 

1364 

140 

84 

32 

15 

8 

19 

37 

1699 

80.28 

8.24 

+ 4.94 

1.88 

I 
0.68 

0.47 

1.12 

2.18 

100 

G 

BSE Sensex I BSE Sensex SSE Sensex 
H•gh Low Close 

39,487.45 38,460.25 39,031.55 

40. 124.96 38,956.10 37,714.20 

40~312.07 3B,870.96 39.394.64 

40.032.41 37,128.26 37,481.12 

37.e07.55- 38,102.35' --. .--31,332.79 

39,441.12 35,987.80 

40.392.22 37,415.83 

41 .163.79 40,014.23 

41 ,609.96 40,135.37 

42.273 87 40,476.55 

41 ,709.30 38,219.97 

39.083.17 25,638.90 

1660980 

11 58320 

1271500 

810610 

536880 

373950 

1413930 

144029830 

151276000 

38,687.33 

40,129.05 

40,793.81 

41,253.74 

40,723.49 

38,297.29 

29,468.49 

0 o to total 
share cap1tal 

1.11 

0.77 

0.64 

0.5' 

0.35 

025 

0.93 

95.21 

100 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

L. Categories of Shareholders as on March 31, 2020: 

Sr No Descnplton No of Sharfrs 
', of Cap11a1 1 as at March 31 ,2020) 

A Pmmol:ers I . . 
---a- --

Public Shareholdlng: 

~ Ananclal lnslttulionsiBanks 300 0 

• Bodies Cotpotate 7471315 49.39 

• NRVOCBs 5493 0.04 

• lnc!Mdu<rls 7582294 
i 

50.12 
~ 

• Clearing Members 

• Oirectots & Relatives 

TOTAL 

M. Registrar & Transfer Agents (AT A) 

Skyline Financial Services Pvt. ltd. 
D-153A, 1st Aoor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, 
New Delhi-11 0020 
Tel No.- 011 41044923 
Emall-id: inlo@skyinerta.com 

N. Share Transfer System 

0 0 

0 0 

15127600 100 

The Share Transfer received in Physical form are processed by the Registrar and Transfer Agent and 
approved by the Board. The Share certificates are returned to the members within the stipulated period, 
subject to the documents being valid and complete In all respects. 

0 . Dematerialization of Shares and liquidi ty 

As on March 31. 2020, 96.66% comprising 14.622,800 equity shares of the Company were held in 
dematerialized form and 3.34% comprising 5,04,800 equity shares were held In physical form. 

I 
'• of Total share 

Partrculars No of shares Cap•IBJ 

Held In demcnerfaUzed in NSDL form 

Held In dematel'laUzed In CDSL form 

Physical 

Total 

P. Request to Investors: 

11,31 ,176 

1.34,91.624 

5 .04.800 

15127600 

7.48 

l 89 18 

3 .34 

100.00 

a. Investors are requested to communicate change of address, if any, on all matters relating to transfer 
of shares and credit of shares In Demat Account dlrecUy to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of 
the Company. 

b. Investors holding shares In electronic form are requested to deal only with their respective depository 
particlpam for change of address. nomination facility. bank account number etc. 

c. Members may contact for aU Investor related matters at the registered olflce of the company at the 
following address: 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Mr AmitSoni 

To 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Near Boomerang Building, Chandivali, Mumbai -400072 
Emafl ld: info@paramoneconcepts.com 

Te1No:02262360263 

Place : Mumbal For and on behalf of the Board 

Date : November 6th, 2020 

Sd/-

(Govlnd Patodia) 

Managing Director 

DIN:02794184 

Sdi-
(Mushtaq Shaikh) 

Director 

DIN: 08144509 

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Members of Paramone Concepts Limited. 

Mumbai 

I, Govind Patodia, Managing Director of Paramone Concepts Limited, confirm that all the members or the 

Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance wllh the Codes or 

Conduct lor the year ended March 31 , 2020. 

For Paramone Concepts Ltd. 

Place: Mumbal 

Date: November 6th, 2020 

Sdi-

Govind Patodia 

(Managing Director) 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNACE 

The Members 
PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 

(CIN: L45400MH1992PLC070070) 
Unit No: 67, 6th Aoor, A Wing, 

Silver Astra. J.B. Nagar. 
Village Kondivttta, Andheti East. 

Mumbai· 400 059. 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Paramone Concepts Limited, lor the 

year ended March 31 , 2020 as stipulated in Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 ,22,23,24.25,26,27 and clauses (b) to (i) ol 
sub-regulation (2) or regulation 46 and Para C, 0 and E of Schedule V or the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Collectively referred to as' SEBI Usttng 
Regulations, 20i5}. 

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibillly of the Company's Management. Our 
examination was carried out in accordance wilh the guidance Note on certification of Corporate Governance, Issued by 
the institute of Chartered Accountant of India and was limited to procedures and Implementation thereof, adopted by 

!he Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It Is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best ol our information and according to the explanation given to us, we certiiy that the 
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated In the SEBI UstJng Regulations, 

2015. 

We state that such compliance Is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness wilh which the management has conducted the affairs altha Company. 

For Nldhl Bajaj & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Sd/· 
Nidhi Bajaj 
Proprietor 

ACS· 28907 
COP - 14596 

Date: 05.12.2020 
Place: Mumbai 
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To the Members of Paramone Concepts Limited, 
(formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

Report on the Audit of Standalone lnd-AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audiled the standalone Jnd· AS financial statements of Paramone Concepls Limited (formerly known as Aqua 
Pumps Infra Venlures Limited), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020. and the statement of Profit and 
Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 

then ended, and notes to the lnd AS financial statements, Including a summary of sign1ficant aocountlng pollcles and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the lnd AS financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanalions given to us, Jhe aforesaid lnd AS 
financial stalements give the Information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (' the Act") In Jhe manner so 

required and give a true and fairview in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state 
or allalrs of Jhe Company as al March 31, 2020. and loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equily and i ts 
cash flows lor the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducled our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143( 1 O) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities 
lorthe Audit of Jhe lnd AS Financial Statements section of our report We are independenr oflhe Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit or the lnd AS nnancial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Rules thereunder, and we have fulftlled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that lhe audil evidence we have oblained Is sufflcienl and appropriate 10 provide a basis for 
our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matlers that, in our professional judgmenl. were of most significance In our audit of the lnd 
AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31 , 2020. These matters were addressed In the context of our 
audil of the lnd AS financial statements as a whole, and In forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. 

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
(described in Note 2 (J) of the lnd AS financial statements) 

Revenue from conll'aC1S with customers is recognized 
when serv•ces are lfansferred to the customer, at an 
amounl that reflects the consideratron to which the 
Company expects Jo be entitled In exchange for those 
goods or services. 

The Company Is engaged In business of multi·experlise 
consuiUng operations and related acbvities. It has 
developed procedures to record the revenue on the basis 
or the movement of the cargo and revenue accrues as per 
Indian Accounting Standard 115. 

We assessed the Company's process to Identify the 
impact ol adoplion ol new revenue accounting standard. 

We assessed the deSign and tested the operating 
ellecflveness of Internal controls related Jo revenue 
recognition, discounts and rebates. 

We performed sample tesls of Individual sales transaction 
and Jtaced Jo related documents, considering Jhe terms of 
performance. 

We tested cut-oil procedures with respect to year-end 
sates transactions made. 
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Due 10 diflerenl terms wrlh diflerenl customers and 
trallSSC!Ion price, thoro is a risk that the revenue or 
discountsorrebates: might not be recorded COfl'ecdy. 

Revenue Is a key parameter to ascertain the Company's 
performance. The Company focuses on revenue as a key 
performance measure, which could create an Incentive for 
revenue to be recognized before the risk and rewards 
have been transferred. 

Accordingly, due to the significant rfsk associated with 
revenue recognition fn accordance with terms of lnd AS 
115 'Revenue from contracts wllh customers·. ll has been 
considered 10 be a key audit maHer in our audit of these 
financial statements. 

We also performed monthly anatyUcaJ procedures of 
revenue by streams to Identify any unUStJal trends. 

Based on our combination or procedures Involving enquiry 
and observation, performance and inspection of evidence 
In respect of operation of these controls, we have 
concluded that the revenue has been recognized In 
accordance with the relevant accounting standands. 

Information Other than the Standalone Rnancial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other Information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the financial statements and 

our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the lnd AS financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do not express any form ol 

assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the lnd AS linancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other lnlormatlon is materially Inconsistent with the lnd AS financial statements or our 

knowledge obtamed In the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If. based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that facL 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the lnd AS Financia l Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible lor the mailers staled in section 134(5) of the Act wi th respect to the 

preparation of these lnd AS financial statements that give a true and lair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other 

comprehensive Income. changes In equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, Including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 ol the Act. The respective 

Boand of Directors of the company are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in aocondance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other i rregularities: the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively lor ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant 

to the preparation and presentation of the lnd·AS financial statements that give a true and lair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the lnd AS financial statements. management is responsible lor assessing the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible lor overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor' s Responsibilities lor the Audit ofthe lnd AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as a whole are tree 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 1n accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, Individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these lnd AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence rhat Is sutrlcient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulling from 
fraud is higher than lor one resulting from error. as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, lnreni!Onal omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override ofintemal control. 

Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audtt In order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) ol the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate Internal financial controls system In place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of managemenfs use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obrained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
signiftcant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. II we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures In the lnd AS 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS Hnancial statements, including the 
disclosures. and whether the lnd AS financial sratements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves lair presentation . 

We communicale with those charged with governance of the Company regarding , among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we Identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevanl ethical 
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requirements regarding independence, and to communicate wllh them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the mailers communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those mailers that were of most 
significance in the audit of the fnd AS financial slalements for the year ended March 31 , 2020 and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these mailers in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances. we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public Interest 
benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government in 
terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary tor the purposes of our aud~; 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books; 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and loss (Including other comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes In Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant 
books of account; 

d) tn our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards speclfled 
under Section 133 of the Act; read with Companies (Indian Accounllng Standards) Rules, 201 5, as amended ; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the d11ectors of the company as on March 31. 2020 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being 
appointed as a director In terms ol Secbon 164 (2) of the Act; 

I) With respect to the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over linancial reporting 
with reference to the lnd AS financial statements of the Company refer to our separate Repon in •Annexure A" to 
this report; 

g) In our opinron and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to Its directors during the current year Is In accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 
The remuneration paid to any directoris not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Acl 

h) With respect to the other matters to be Included In the Auditor's Report In accordance with Rule 1 1 of the 
Companies (Audi t and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

I. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

n. The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses as at March 3 t , 2020. 
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iii . There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020. 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : June 26, 2020 

For Agawal Desai & Shah 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number : 124850W 

Sd/-

Rishi Sekhri 

Partner 
Membership Number : 126656 

UDIN : 20126656AAAANA 1348 
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors' Report 
Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ' Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our report 

of even data to the members of Paramone Concepts Limited (formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures 
Limited) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

1. We have audited the Jntemat financial controls over financial reporting of Paramone Concepts Limited (formerly 
known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) ("the Company'1 as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of 
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management' s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Board of Director's are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over flnanc.al reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated In the "Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting• issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants o f India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance o l adequate internal financial controls which were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and aftlclent conduct of Its business, Including adherence to the respe01lva company's policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation ol reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with 
reference to these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit In accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143( t 0) of the Companies Act. 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal financial controls over financial reporting with 
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and II such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 

4. Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy or the •nternat financial 
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audh of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements. assessing the risk that 
a material weakness e.>dsts, and testing and evaluating the design and oparattng effectiveness ol tmernal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial 
statements. 

Meaning ot Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Financial Statements 

6. A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles A 
company's Internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements includes 

-------------·- -------------PARAMONE CONCEPTS UWTED 



those policies and procedures that: 

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dlsposillons ol the assets of the company; 

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance wllh authorisations ol management and directors of the 
company; and 

(lil) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Financial 
Statements 

7. Because ol the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the inlernalllnancial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, and to the best ol our Information and according to the explanations gJVen to us, the Company has, in 

all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting with relerence to these 
Rnancial statements and such Internal Rnancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial 

statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of Internal control stated In the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over FinanclaJ Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants ollndia. 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : June 26, 2020 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 124850W 

Sd/· 
Rlshi Sekhri 
Partner 
Membership Number: 126656 
UDIN : 20126656AAAANRt343 
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Annexure B to Independent A uditors' Report 
Referred to In paragraph 1 under the heading ·Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements• of our report o l 

even date to the members of Paramone Concepts Umited (formerly known as Aqua Pumps Intra Ventures 
Umited) 

I. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
of property, plant and equipment. 

(b) The property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a phased 
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having 
regard to the size of the Company and the natura of its assets. No matenal discrepancies have been noticed on 
such veriticalion. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed In Note 3 on Property, Plant and Equipment to the financial 
statements, are held In the name of the Company. 

ii. The company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any inventory. Therefore, the 
provisions of clause 3(ii) of the said order are not applicable to the company. 

iii. The Company has granted unsecured loan to the subsidiary company covered in the register maintained under 
Section 189 of the Act. 

a) In respect of the aforesaid loan. the terms ancJ conditions under which such loan was granted are not prejudicial to 
the Company's Interest. 

b) In respect or the aforesaid loan, the same is repayable on demand and hence the schedule of repayment of 
principal has not been stipulated. 

c) In respect of the aforesaid loan, there is no amount which is overdue. 

iv. The company has not granted any loans or made any Investments, or provided any guarantees or securities to the 
parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore. the provisions or Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73. 74. 75 and 76 of the 
Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. 

vi. The Central Government of India has not specined the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 
t48ofthe Act roranyolthe products or the Company. 

vii. (a) According to the Information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in 
our opinion, the Company is regular In deposltJng the undisputed statutory dues, InCluding provident fund, 
employees' state insurance, Income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods & service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, and other material statutory dues, as applicable. with the appropriate authorities. 

(b) According to the Information and explanations gillen to us and the records of the Company examined by us. 
there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods & service tax, duty of customs. duty of excise or 
value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

vm. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or banks at the balance 
sheet date. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from Government. Further, the Company has not 
issued any debentures. 
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ix. During the year, the Company has not raised moneys by way of Initial public offer or further public offer (Including 
debt Instruments). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have 
been applied by the Company for lhe purposes for which they were raised. 

x . During the course ot our examination of the books and records ot the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to lhe information and explanations given to us, we 
have neilher come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor we have been informed of any such case by lhe Management. 

xi. The Company has paid/ provided managerial remuneration In accordance with lhe requisite approvals mandated by 
lhe provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, lhe provisions of Clause 
3(xif) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xill. The Company has entered Into transactions with related parties in compliance wilh the provisions of Sections 177 
and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in lhe linancial statements as 
required under lhe Indian Accounting Standard (lnd·AS) 24, "Related Party Disclosures• specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

xiv, The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement at shares or lully or partly convertible 
debentures during the yearunderreview. Accordingly, the provisions ol clause 3(xiv) of lhe Order are not applicable 
to the Company. 

xv. The Company has not entered Into any non·cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, the provisions ol Clause 3(xv) ollhe Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. The Company Is not required to be registered under Section 45·1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvQ of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : June 26, 2020 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Number: 124850W 

Sd/· 

Rlshi Sekhri 

Partner 
Membership Number: 126656 

UDIN : 20126656AAAANR1348 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT MARCH 31, 2020 

(INA In Lakhs) 

Parttculars 
Note As at As at 
No March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

I ASSETS 

1. Non Current Assets 

(a) p,_.ty, Plrulland Equipment 3 159.73 170.80 

(b) Gaptiiil Wor1<-ln-Progress 3 t24.65 124.65 

(c) Intangible AsseiS 4 - 6 .55 - (d) Financial Assets 

(I) Investments 5 2,409.03 2.430.32 

(II) 01ilef5 6 -
(e) Oefoood Tax Asseos (Net) 7 18.40 1&5.31 

2.711.81 2,935.63 

2. Currenl Asset:s 

(a) F"inanciaJ As~ls 

(I) Trade Re<lOivob!M 8 184.12 336.14 

(II) Casll and Cash EqulvaJeniS 9 291.97 252.45 

(~i) LOOO$ 10 3,449.78 2,501.14 -
(lv) O!he<a 11 82.-45 84.65 

(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 12 162.73 232.61 

(c) O!he< Culrent Assets 13 33.91 3.55 
4·.184.96 3,410.54 

Total Assets &&96.n 6.346.17 

II EQUfTY AND UABILITIES 

Equity 

(o) Equity Shale Capital t4 1.512.76 1,5t2.76 

(b) Olher Equity 15 179.97 883.53 
1 692.73 _2,396.29 

UABILmES 

1. Non Current LJabllrlle.s 

(a) Flnanoal U.bihbos -
(l) Bo<rOWtng$ t6 2.024.53 2,59t.90 

(b) Provisions t7 13.5t 0.92 

2 038.04 2 592.82 

z. Current Llablllll&a 

_ (a) Flnanoal Uablhlles -
(o) T"'de Payables 18 

(a) tol!tJ outatandlng dues of mlcro tmta-1prises and 106.55 65.58 
small enterpn.:ses 

(b) totaJ outstanding duas ol creditor.s othat than 70.97 23.09 

micro enterp~lses and small enterprises 

(b) Other CuNonl UabM"'s 19 2,979.50 t ,2.S8.53 

(e) Provisions 20 6.97 9.86 

(d) Cunent True Loablll!les (Net) . -
3,166.00 11357.06 

Total Equity and Liabilities e.&96.n 6.346.17 

Summary of $1Q(lifieanl Accounting Policies 2 

The notes referred lo above ere en Integral pert of the flnenctal 5tatementt: 
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As per our report of even date auaclled 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration Number: 1248SOW 

Sdf· 
Rishi Sekhri 

Partner 
Membership Number: 126656 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : June 26. 2020 

For and on behall of the Board of Di rectors 

Sd/· 
Govind Patodla 

Managing Director 
DIN : 02794184 

Sd/· 
Swat! Gupta 

Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbal 
Date : June 26, 2020 

Sctl· 
Mushlaq Shalkh 

Director 
DIN : 08144509 

Sctl· 
Deepak Nayak 

Director & CFO 

DIN : 08406471 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2020 

(INA in lal<hs) 

Parttculars 
Note For the Year ended For the Year ended 
No. March 31 . 2020 March 31, 2019 

I Revenue 

Revenue 1rom OperatiOnS 21 5 ,415.75 1.046.31 

Other Income 22 177.50 325.48 
Tolallnt:Ome 5.593.25 1,371.79 

II Expenses 

Oper•t.ng Expenses 2ll 3,369.29 949.89 

~yee Benefit Expenses 24 723.45 644.06 

6eprooatio~ AmortisaUon Expense - -25 33.00 31.17 

F.nanoo Costs 26 303.00 127.80 
Other EXpenses 27 1,029.65 390.82 
Totet E'_xpens:es 5,458.59 2,143.75 

Ill Prom I (Loss) belore tax P·ll) 134.66 (771 .96) 

IV Len: Ta_x E.apenM: 

Curront Tax 16.00 . 
Ea11ier Year Tax 6.36 --
Deterred Tax 177.27 (177.83) 

Total Tax E.x-pan&o ~ !177.83) 

---v Profi1/ (Loss) for the Year (III-IV) (64.98) (594.13) 

VI Other Comprehensive Income 

Hems th.a1 will no1 be reclassified to proh1 or loss 

Ae·measurement gains/ {losses) on defined bene•d o~agatioo& (1 .38) (0.58) 
Re~mettsuremont of lnvt~stmcn1 tn equity {637.55) (390.20) 
Tax effect on above 0 .36 0.15 

Other Comprehensive lncomo for tho year, net of tax !638.58) @90.83) 
VII Total Comprehensive Income for the year (V+VI) {703.55) (984.76) 

VIII Earning& Per Share (Face Value INR 10 Per EQuity Share); 
Basio and Diluted (INA) 28 (0.43) (3.93) 

- -
5""""81)' ol Slgnlllcant A<:counUng Policies 2 

The notea referred to above are an Integral part of the financial statements 

A$ per our report or even date attached 

For Agarwal Des:a_l & Shah 
cnanered Accountants 
Arm AeglsllaliOn Number. t24850W 

Sdl· 
Rl•hl Sekhrl 
Partnct 
MambefOhip Number : 126656 
Plaoe : Mumbal 
Date :June 26, 2020 

For and on behaH o·f the Soard o·r Directors 

Sd/· 
Govlnd Patodla 
Managing Director 
DIN • 02794184 

Sdi·Sdl· 
SwaUGupla 
Company Secrewy 

Place : Mumbal 
Date : June 26, 2020 

Sdl· 
Nushtaq Shaikh 
Director 
DIN: 06144509 

Deepak Nayak 
Director & CFQ 
DIN : 08406471 _____________ , _____________ _ 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Particulars 
For the Year ended 

March 31 . 2020 
A. Cash Flow from Oper-atfng Ac11vltle.s 

Nel Proftt before Tax - 134.66 

Adjustments: 
Depreciation and amortisation 33.00 
~C~nce Cost$ --- 303.00 

- Olhot Income (142.63) 

Interest lnoome (15.54) 

Allowance tor Cfedil tosses 0.85 

Fair value gain I (los$) on quofed equrly in~trumt'lnts. 

Dividend Income (6.39) 

OpereUng profltl(loss) before working changes 306.96 

Movement In working c.apJlat 

Docroasel(lncrease) on Trade Reeeovables 171 .17 

tncreas~(Oeaeaso) 11'1 Trade Poyabk!S 88.85 
-

lncrease/(Oeerease) .n Other CUrrootllatu!ities 1.120.97 
--Oecreasel(lncrease) en Other Curre nt Fina:nctal Assets 2.20 

Oecrease/(lncroase) In Other CUrrent Auets (30.37) 

I nor ease I {Decrease) In Long Term Provlston:s 11.21 

Increase f{Ceaeasejln ShOrtT arm PrOVISionS (0.89) 

Decroesei(lnaease) In Financial asseos - loans (948.54) 

Cash generated from operations 1,321.46 

Income taxes pttJd (net ol rctonds) 47.52 - Nel cash iTOW lro"mOPeraung aC1Jvltles (A) 1,368.98 

B. Cash Flow from lnvestln; Actlvilies 

Purchaso or constroction of Propec'ty, Plant & 
Equtpment (Inducting capdal wor1<-1n1)logress) (13.38) 
Investment in Equ1ty InStruments (610.26) 

Sale ot inveSiments m equity ln$tluments of othe-r en,ilm -
- intecost tncomo ;-ece1ved 158.18 

Dividend Income Received 6.39 
Not Cash used In 1nve$ling •ctlvltle• (B) (459.09) 

C. Cash Flow from Flnanelng Activl ttea 
Proceeds hom/ (Repaymenl ol) Non-<:urren1 FlnanclaiBo<rowlngs (nel) (567.37) 
Finance costs !303.00! 
Nat Ca~om financing ac11vftloa (C) (870.37) 

Net cash Increase/( decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B...C) 39.51 -
Cash and caSll equivalents at the beginning ol the year 252.45 
Cash and eash ...!9~s at tho end of lhe ye:u- 291.97 
Net cash lncreas.e/(decreasc) In cash and eas.h equivalents 39.51 

Note : The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ' lndbeet Method' as set out ln lnd AS 7, 

'Statement ol Cash Flows' 

The notet referred to above are an Integral part of these financial statem-ents.. 

(INA in Lakhs) 
For the Year ended 

March 31, 2019 

(n1.96) 

31 17 

127.80 
(275.82) 

(14.13) 

0 .04 
(35.53) 

(938.43) 

(152.25) 

(399.91) 

(3.554. 16) 

(31.78) 

1.321.90 

(6.04) 

9.81 

1,838.07 

(1,912.78) 

(78.14) 

(1,990.92) 

_!_56.¥) 
(2.720.53) 

2,318.21 

289.95 

-
(168.91) 

2,294.51 

!'27.80! 
2,168.71 

6.88 

245.57 
252.45 

8 .88 
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As per our report o f even date auaclled 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 

Chartered Accountants 

Finn Registration Number: 1248SOW 

Sdf· 
Rlshl Sekhrf 

Partner 
Membership Number: 126656 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : June 26. 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sdf· 
Govlnd Patodla 

Managing Director 

DIN : 02794184 

Sdf· 
Swatf Gupta 

Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : June 26, 2020 

Sdf· 
Mushtaq Shaikh 

Director 

DIN : 08144509 

Sdf· 
Deepak Nayak 

Director & CFO 

DIN : 08406471 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

A : Equity Share Capital (Equity shares of INR 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully paid) 

Note Numbers Amount 
Part1cutars No (In Lakhs) (In Lakhs) 

Balance as at the Aprll 1, 2018 151.211 
Ctwlgas in equity sluuo capl1at dU11f'l9 tho yaar 2018-2019 

Balance as at Match 31 , 2019 14 151.28 1.512.76 
Changes In oqU<ty share capllal d•nng the year 2019-20::0 

Balance at tho March 31, 2020 151.211 1,512.78 

B :Other Equity (INA in Lal<hs) 

Reserve and Surplus 
Note ·--------~ Total Other 
No General Secunt1es Retamed Equoty 

Reserve Premoum Eamongs 

Balance as at Aprn 1, 2018 30.00 1,400.00 436.29 1.868.29 
'T'otal Comprehen&we income for the yeor 
Profit/ (loss) for lhe year (594.13) (594.13) 

Other Comprehensive Income (39o.63) (390.63) 

Balance as a1 Match 31 , 2019 15 30.00 1,400.00 (546.47) 883.53 
Total Comprehensive ineomo rot !.he year 
Pro6l/ (loss) lor the year (64.98) (84.98) 

Other Comprehenslve Income (638.58) (638.58) 

Balance as at March 31 , 2020 15 30.00 1,400.00 (1.250.03) 179.97 

The notot referred to above are an Integral part of tho financial atatomontL 
As per our r·epon of even date attadled 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 
Ct\artered Accountants 
Firm Regi$b'SbOn Number; 1248SOW 

Sdl· 
Rishi Sekhn p...,.,, 
MemberShip Number 126658 

Place · Mumbai 

Dete : JtJne 26, 2020 

Fot and on behaJf of the Board of Directors 

Sdi-

GovlnCI Patod1a 
Managlng Director 
DIN . 02794184 

ScJI. 
Swatl Gupta 

Company Secretary 

Pt3Ctl : Mumbal 
Date : June 26. 2020 

Sdl· 
Muslltaq Shail<h 

Director 

DIN : 08144509 

Sdl· 
Deepak Nayak 
Director & CFO 
DIN : 084ll847 1 
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Note 1: Company Overv iew 

Paramone Concepts Limited (the "Company") is a Public Limited Company domiciled in lnd1a and incorporated 
on December 21. 1992 underthe provisions or Companies Act. 1956. 

The Company Is engaged In the business of multi·expertise consulting. The Company is preferred partner lor 
mega projects involving direct government & ministries, unilateral & multilateral companies, further company is 
an active members of some of the biggest projects In the fields of economic and urban development across the 
planet. Company also excel in rehabilitation & resettlement plans. raising state level municipal development 
funds, designing a-governance strategy, housing & social development projects, bind Issues helping raise 
funds & social development. The equity shares of the company were listed on the BSE Limited. 

The financial statements are authorized lor issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Dlree1ors on 
June 26, 2020. 

Note 2 : Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

(I) Statement of complianc·e 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("tnd·AS") 
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are 
measured at fair values, the provisions or the Companies Act , 2013 ('Act') (to ihe extent notified) and 
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The lnd·AS are prescribed under 
See1ion 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 and 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

The Company had adopted the Indian Accounting standards in accordance with lnd·AS 101 "First time 
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards" during the year ended March 31, 2018 . 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change In the accounting policy 
hitherto in use. 

(ii) Basisofpreparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except the following: 

certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at frur value; 
assets held lor sale· measured at fair value less cost to sell; 
defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value: and 

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee. These financial statements are presented in 
Indian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearestlakhs, except when otherwise s tated. 

(iii) Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities In the balance sheet based on currenV non-current classification. 
An asset is treated as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in nonnel 
operating cycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading. expected to be realised within twelve months after the 
reporting period and cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period. A ll other assets are class~ied as non-current. 
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A 11ablllty Is current when It Is expected to be settled In normal operating cycle,lt Is held primarily for the purpose 
of trading, It is due to be settled within twelve months alter the reporting period and there is no unconditional 
right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The Company 
classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classnied as non·current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In cash and 
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

B. Use of estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with lnd·AS requires management to make est1mates. 
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. 
Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates Involving complex and subjective 
judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note C below. 
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Appropriate changes In estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes In circumstances 
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which 
changes are made and, if material. their eflects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

C. Critical accounting estimates 

{1) Income taxes 

The Company's ma1or tax jurisdiction IS India. Significant judgements are involved in determining the provis1on for 
income taxes. including amount expected to be paid/ recovered lor uncertain tax positions. Also refer to note 12. 

(ii) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in 
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the 
expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are 
determined by management at the lime the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically. lncludlng at each 
financial year end. The fives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future 
events. which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. 

(iii) Defined benefit plans 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the 
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the 
discount rate, future salary Increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved In the valuation and i ts 
long-term nature. a defined benefit obligation Is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

The parameter most subject to change Is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans 
operated In India, the management considers lhe interest rates of government bonds In currencies consistent 
with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. 
The mortality rate is based on publicly ava1lable mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at 
Interval In response to demographic changes. Future salary Increases and gratuity Increases are based on 
expected future Inflation rates. 
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Further details about gratuity obligations are given on Note 35. 

{lv) Fair value measurement ofllnanclal lnstruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded In the balance sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices In active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to 
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this Is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required In establishing fair values. Judgements Include considerations of inputs such as liquidity 
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes In assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of 
financial instruments. See Note 29·33 for further disclosures. 

{v) Revenue from co ntracts wi th cus tomers 

The Company's contracts with customers Include promises to provide the goods & services to the customers. 
Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either 
fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as schemes. incentives. 
cash discounts etc. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the 
extent that it is highly probable thai a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not 
occur and Is reassessed at the end of the each period. 

Estimates of rebates and discounts are sensitive to changes In circumstances and the Company's past 
experience regarding returns and rebate entitlements may not be representative of customer's actual returns and 
rebate entitlements In the future. 

Costs to obtain a contract are generally expensed as incurred. The assessment of this criteria requires the 
application of judgement, In particular when considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to 
satisfy future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered. 

D. Property, Plantand Equipment 

Land (induding land Developments) is carried at historical cost. Afl other items of property, plant and equipment 
are slated in the balance sheet at cost historical less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, If any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for 
long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised In profit or loss as Incurred. 

Properties In the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less 
any recognized Impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets. borrowing costs 
capitalized In accordance with the Company·s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the 
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready lor Intended use. 
Depreciation ol these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences w hen the assets are ready 
for their intended use. 

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment (excluding freehold land) are measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When signincant parts of property, plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced In intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as Individual assets with 
specilic useful lives and depreciation respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is 
recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement cost only if the recognition crijeria 
are satisned. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 
Incurred. 
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Depreciation Is rocognlsed so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and land developments) 
tess their residual values over the useful lives, using the straight- hna method ("SLM")-Management based on a 
technical evaluation, believes that the useful lives of the assets reflect the periods over which these assets are 
expected to be used. which are as follows: 

Descnpt10n of Asset Estimated usetul lives 

Ofllce Pteml$es 

Computer$ and Punters. ~tng Computer P&ipherals 
(lfldudlog se<ver alld fletwortdng) 

Oflice Equlpments 

Fum11ure and A•1ures 

Mota< Vehldes {Including busses aod trucks) 

30 years 

3 ~years 

Syears 

10 years 

8-20 years 

Depreciation on additions/ delebons to property, plant and equipment IS calculated pro-rata from/ up to the date of 
such additlons/ deletions. 

Assets Individually costing lass than As. 5,000 ara fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. 

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for Impairment when events or changes In 
circumstances Indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The residual values. useful life and 
depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure that the amount, method and period of 
depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future 
economic benelits embodied In the items of property, plant and equipment. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset Any gain or loss arising on disposal or ret.irement of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the dllference between sale proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss. 

E. Investment properties 

Investment properties are properties that Is held for long-term rentals yields or for capital appreciation (Including 
property under construction for such purposes) or both, and that Is not occupied by the Company, is classified as 
investment property. 

Investment propenles are measured Initially at cost, Including transaction oosts. Subsequent to initial recognltlon, 
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

Though the Company measures investment property usmg cost based measurement, the fair value of 
investment property is disclosed tn the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation 
performed by an accredited external independent valuer. 

Investment propenies are de recognised either when they have been disposed ol or when they are permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of 
derocognllion. 

F. Intangible Assets 

Intangible asset including Intangible assets under development are stated at cost, net of accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated Impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on 
Initial recognition at cost. 
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Intangible assets In case of computer software are amortised on straight-line basis over a period of 5 years, 
based on management estimate. The amortization period and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of 
each financial year. 

The useful lives of Intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives 
are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the 
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an Intangible asset 
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end or each reporting period. Changes in the expected uselulllfe 
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to 
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with Infinite lives is recognised In the statement of profit and loss 
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

G. Impairment or Non-Financial Assets 

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible and 
Intangible) may be Impaired. For the purpose ol assessing Impairment. the smallest Identifiable group of assets 
that generates cash inflows lrom continuing use that are largely Independent or the cash Inflows from other assets 
or groups of assets, Is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the 
recoverable amount of the asseV cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their 
recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. An Impairment loss Is recognized in the profit or 
toss. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's net selling price and Hs value in usa. 
Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an 
asset end I rom Its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to 
whether there Is any Indication that an Impairment loss recognised for an asset in pnor accounting penods may no 
longereKist or may have decreased. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

H. Financiallnstruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enlity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument or another entity. Rnanclal lnstruments are further divided in two parts viz. Rnancial Assets and 
Financial liabilities. 

Part f. Financial Assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation 
or convention In the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, I.e., the date that the 
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

a) Subsequent measurement 

For purposes or subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

Financial Assets at amortised cost: 

A Rnanclat Assets Is measured at the amortised cost if both the fallowing conditions are met: 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective Is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
!lows, and 

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on spoofied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 
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This category Is the most relevant to the Company. After Initial measurement, such 1lnanc1al assets are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and lees or costs that 
are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is Included in finance Income In the profit or loss. The losses 
arising from impairment are recognised in the pro lit or loss. 

Financial Assets at FVTOCI (Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income) 

A Financial Assets is classified as at the FVTOCIII following criteria are met: 

The objective of the business mod ells achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows (i.e. SPPI) and selling 
the financial assets 

Financial instrumenis Included within the FVTOCI c11tegory are measured initially as well as at each reporting 
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the 
Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss In the 
statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised In OCI 
is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and toss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt 
Instrument is reported as lnterestlncome using the EIR method. 

Financial Assets at FVTPl (Fair Value through Profit or loss) 

FVTPlls a residual category for financial Instruments. Any financial instrument. which does not meet the criteria 
lor categorization as at amortrzed cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition. the Company may elect to designate a financial instrument. which otherw1se meets amortized cost or 
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election IS allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has not 
designated any financial instrument as at FVTPL. 

Financial instruments included within the FVTPl category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and loss. 

Equity investments 

All equity Investments in sccpe of lnd·AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for 
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which lnd·AS 103 
applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable 
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes 
such election on an instrument by lnstrumenl basis. The classification is made on Initial recognition and is 
Irrevocable. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on 
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There Is no recycling of the amounts from OCIIo 
P&l. even on sale of Investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 
Equity mstruments included within the FVTPl category are measured at lair value with all changes recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Investment In subsidiaries is carried at cost in the financial statements. 

c) De·recognition 

A financial asset (or. where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
primar~ly de·recognised (I.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when: 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
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The Company has transferred Its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to 
pay the received cash flows In full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; 
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the 
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered Into a pass­
through arrangement, It evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control 
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing 
Involvement. In lhat case, the Company also recognises an assoc1aled liability, The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has 
retained. 

Continuing Involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset Is measured at the lower ot 
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be 
required to repay. 

d) Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with lnd-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit toss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

Financial assets that are debt Instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposrts. trade 
receivables and bank balance; 

Financial assets that are debt Instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 

Lease receivables under lnd·AS 116 

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from 
transactions that are within the scope of lnd·AS 18 (referred to as 'contractual revenue receivables' In these 
financial slatements) 

Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL 

Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of Impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or 
contract revenue receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require lhe Company to track changes In credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lilellme ECLs at each reporting date, rtght from its initial 
recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that 
whether there has been a significant Increase in the credit risk since Initial recognition. If credit risk has not 
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased 
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, In a subsequent period, credit quality of the Instrument improves such that 
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since Initial recognition, then the Company reverts to 
recognising impairment loss allowance based on t 2-month ECL Ufetime ECL are the expected credit losses 
resulting from all possible default events over the expected lite of a financial Instrument. The 12-month ECL Is a 
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months alter the reporting 
date. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company In accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (I.e .• all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original 
EIR. When estimating the cash flows. the Company considers: 
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AU contractual terms of the financial Instrument (Including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) 
over the expected tile ol the financial instrument However, in rare cases when the expected life of the 
financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company uses the remaining contractual term of 
the financial Instrument; and 

Cash flows from the sale ol collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 
terms 

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine Impairment loss allowance on 
portfolio of Its trade receivables. The proviston matrix is based on Its historically obsetVed default rates over the 
expected life of the trade receivables and ts adJusted for iorward-looklng estimates. At every reporting date, the 
historical obsetVed defaull rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that 
basis, the Company estimates the foiJowing provision matrix at the reporting date: 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in 
the statement of profit and toss. This amount is grouped under the head 'other expenses'- The balance sheet 
presentation for various financial Instruments Is described below: 

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost. contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL 
Is presented as an allowance, I.e .. as an Integral part ol the measurement of those assets 1n the balance 
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company 
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, 
i.e. as a liabilily. 

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Smce tinanciaf assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment 
allowance is nol further reduced from Its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as 'accumulated 
Impairment amount' In the OCI. 

For assessing Increase In credit risk and Impairment loss, the Company combines financial Instruments on the 
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable 
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-Impaired (POCIJ financial assets, I.e., financial 
assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. 

Part II- Financial Liabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

The Company's financial liabilities Include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial Instruments. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at lair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
loans and borrowings, payables. or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon lniUal recognition as a1 fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are ciassilied 
as held for trading if they are Incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes 
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derivative financial Instruments entered Into by the Company that are not des1gnated as hedg1ng Instruments In 
hedge relationships as defined by lnd-AS 109. Separated embedded denvatives are also classified as held for 
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upcn initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss is designated as such at 
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria In lnd-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as 
FVTPL, fair value gains! losses attributable to changes In own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ 
loss are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss w ithin equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the 
statement of profit or foss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit 
and loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
us1ng the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as 
well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 
This category generally applies to borrowings. 

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classHied as liabi lnies under 
borrowings. The dividends on these preference shares. if any are recognised in the profit or loss as finance cost. 

Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to 
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fal ls to make a payment when due in 
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised Initially as a liability 
at fair valve, adjusted lor transaction costs that are directly attributable to the Issuance of the guarantee. 
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per 
impairment requirements of lnd-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

c) De-recognition 

A financlal llablllly Is de-recognised when the obligation under the llablllty Is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de· 
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised In the statement o1 profit or loss. 

d) Offsetting of financiallnstruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there Is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is anlntenlion to settle on a net basis, 
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

I. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement: 

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps 
to hedge its foreign currency nsks and interest rate risks, respectively. 

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at falr value on the date on which a derivative 
contract Is entered Into and are subsequently re·measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial 
assets when the fair value is pcsitive and as financial liabilities when the fair value Is negative. 
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The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a denvative under fnd-AS 109 are recognised In the statement 
of profit and loss. Any gains or losses arising from changes In the talr value of derivatives are taken directly to profit 
or loss. 

J . Recognition of Revenue 
The Company derives revenues primarily from engineering , procurement and construction raclllties for 
Infrastructure projects. 

lnd AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" provides a control· based revenue recognition model and 
provides a five step application approach to be followed tor revenue recognition. 

Identify the contract(s) with a customer: 

Identify the performance obligations; 
Determine the transaction price; 

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations: 

Recognize revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligations 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recogmzed when control of the goods or services are transferred to the 
customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration to wh1ch the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
lor those g.oods or services. Revenue is recognized when no significant uncertainty exists as to Its realization or 
collection. 

The amount recognised as revenue in Its Statement of Profit and Loss Is exclusive ot Goods and Service Tax and 
is net of discounts. 

Contract balances 

Trade receivables 

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (I.e., only the 
passage of lime is required before payment of the consideration is due) . Refer to accounting policies or financial 
assets In section (H) Financial Instruments. 

Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to perform the services as agreed with the customer lor which the Company has 
received consideration (or an amount or consideration is due) from the customer. A contract liability is recognised 
when the payment Is made or the payment is due (whichever is eartler) . Contract liabilities are recognized as 
revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

Export benefits are accounted lor in the year or exports based on eliglblllty and when there is no uncertainty in 
receiving the same. 

K. Other Income 

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been 
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of 
Income can be measured reliably). 

Interest Income from financial assets is recognized when It is probable that economic benefits will flow to the 
company and the amount of income can be measured reliably . Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which Is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life or the financial assets to that asset's net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

L Provisions and Contingent liabilities 

General 
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Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some 
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, lhe expense relaling to a provision Is presented in the statement of profit and 
loss net of any reimbursement 

If the elfect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the !lability. When discounting is used, the Increase In the provision 
due to the passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence w11i be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a 
present obligation that is not recognized because 11 Is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence In the 
linanciat statements. Payments in respect of such liabiUties, if any are shown as advances. 

M. Accounting for Taxation ollncome 

(I) Currenttaxes 

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates 
to Items recognized directly In other comprehensive Income or equity, In which case it is recognized in other 
comprehensive Income or equity respectively. Current Income tax Is recognized at the amount expected to be 
paid to or recovered from the tax authorities. using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The Company offsets, on a year to year basis, the current tax 
assets and liabilities, where it has legally enforceable right to do so and where il intends to sente such assets and 
liabilities on a net basis. 

On March 30, 20t9, Ministry of Corporate Affairs Issued amendments to the guidance In lnd AS 12 , ' Income 
Taxes', in connection with accounting lor dividend distribution taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall 
recognise the Income tax consequences ol dividends In profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity 
according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. Effective date lor 
application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or alter April 1, 2019. The effect on adoption would 
be insignificant in the financial statements. 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified lnd AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax 
Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable prom (or loss) , tex bases, unused 
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. when there is uncertainty over Income tax treatments under lnd AS 
t 2. According to the appendtx, companies need lo determine the probability of the relevant tax authority 
accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the compan1es have used or plan to use in their 
income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value o f the tax 
treatment when determ•nlng taxable prof•! (tax loss). tax bases. unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax 
rates. 

The standard permits two possible methods oftransltlon: 

I) Full retrospective approach • Under this approach, Appendix C wfll be applied retrospectively to each prior 
reporting period presented In accordance with lnd AS 8 • Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight 

II) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equi ty on initial 
application, without adjusting comparatives. 

The effective date lor adoption ol lnd AS 12 Appendix CIs annual periods beginning on or after April!, 2019. The 
Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative elfect in equity on the 
date of Initial application I.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives. The effect on adoption of lnd AS 12 
Appendix Cis insignificant in the financial statements. 
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{II) Deferred taxes 

Deferred tax Is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities In the llnancial 
statements and the corresponding tex bases used In the computation or taxable profit and are accounted tor using 
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized lor all taxable temporary 
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognized lor all deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences 
can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or 
from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities In a transaction that 
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either In OCI or directly In equity. 

The carry1ng amount ol deferred tex assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 
It is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or pan of the asset to be 
recovered. 

Del erred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there Is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
Company intends Ia settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

Del erred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reponing dale. 

N. Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at lair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to settle a liability In an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique 

In estimating the lair value of an asset or liability. the Company ta.kes Into account the characteristics ol the asset 
or liability if market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability. assuming that market participants act 
In their economic besllnterest. 

All assets and liabilities for which lair value Is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the lair value hierarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the lair 
value measurement as a whole: 

Levell ·Quoted {unadjusted) market prices In active markets lor ldenllcal assets or liabilities 

Level2 ·Valuation techniques lor which the lowest level input thai is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or lndireclly observable 

Level3 ·Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thai is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the lair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period. 

The Company's Management determones the pollcles and procedures lor both recurring lair value measurement, 
such as derivative onstruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and lor non-recurring 
measurement, such as assets held lor distribution in discontinued operations. 
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This note summarises accounting poficy lor lair value. Other lair value related disclosures are given in the relevant 
notes. 

0 . Borrowing Costs 

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of lime to get ready tor their Intended 
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

P. Leases 

On March 30,2019, the Ministry of Corporate AHairs has notified lnd AS 116, Leases.lnd AS 116will replace the 
existing leases Standard, lnd AS 1 7 Leases. The Standard sets out the principles lor the recognition, 
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract I.e., the lessee and the lessor. 
lnd AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting modal and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities 
for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently. 
operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced 
disclosure requirements for lessees. lnd AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements 
in lndAS 17. The effective date for adoption of lnd AS t 16 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. 

The standard permits two possible methods ol transitlon: 

Full retrospective • Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying lnd AS 8 Accounting Policies. 
Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors 

Modified retrospective · Retrospectively, w~h the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized 
at the date of initial application. 

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value ol the 
remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as: 

a. Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at 
lessee's Incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application 

b. An amount equal to the lease liability. adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments 
related to that lease recognized under lnd AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application. 

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods. The Company does not have any impact 
on account of this amendment 

Q . Employee Benefits 

a) Short·term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries. including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months alter the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of 
employee's services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the undiscounted amounts of the 
benefits expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee 
benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

b) Other Long· term employee benefit obligations 

The liabilities lor compensated absences (annual leave) which are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months alter the end of the period in which the employee render the related service are presented as non-current 
employee benefits obligations. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to 
be made In respect of services provided by employees up to the end ol ·the reporting period using the Projected 
Unit Credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period on 
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government bonds that have terms approximat1ng to the terms of the related obligations. Re-measurements as a 
result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions (te. actuarial losses/ gains) are 
recognised In the Statement of Prof" and Loss. 

The obligations are presented as current in the balance sheet, it the Company does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual 
settlement is expected to occur. 

c ) Post· employment obligati ons 

The Company operates the lollowlng post-employment schemes: 

(I) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity 

(0) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund. 

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity Obligations 

The Company provides for gratuity, a delined benefil plan (the "Gratuity Planj covering eligible employees in 
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The GratUity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment. of an amount based on the 
respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet In respect of defined benefit gratuity plans Is the present 
value ol lhe defined benefit obligation al the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefrt obligation is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash 
ouUiows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have a terms 
approximating to the terms of the obligation 

The net 1nterest cost, calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation 
and the fair value of the plan assets. is recognised as employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and 
toss. 

Remeasurements gains and losses aris1ng from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 
are recognised in the other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise and are not subsequently 
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments 
are recognised Immediately In prollt or loss as past service cost 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulatory 
aulhorities. The Company has no further obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense 
when they are due. 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs Issued amendments to lnd AS 19, 'Employee Benefits', In 
connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an 
entity to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the 
period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement: and to recognise In profit or loss as part of past service 
cost, or a gain or toss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised 
because of the impact of the asset ceiling. Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period 
beginning on or alter April I. 2019. The Company does not have any impact on account ofthis amendment. 
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R. Earnings Per Share 

Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the prolil lor the year auributabte to equity 
holders by the weighted average number or equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take Into 
account: 

The after income tax effect of Interest and other financing costs associated with dilulive potential equity 
shares, and 

Weighted average number of equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all 
the dliulive potential equity. 

S. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes In value. 

T. Insurance claims 

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted I expected to be admitted and to the extent 
that there Is no uncertainty in receiving the claims. 

U. Segment Reporting 

The Company identifies operating segments based on the Internal reponing provided to the chief operating 
deciston-maker. 

The chiel operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of 
the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions. 

The accountlng policies adopted for segment reporting are In line with the accounting policies of the Company. 
Segment revenue, segment expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the 
operating activities of the segment. 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 3: Property, Plant and Equipment 

(INA in Lakhs) 

' 

PartiCulars Olf•cc Compu!OI Furn1ture and Motor ~ OIIK:o Total Cap•lal 
Prv:ntscs Futturcs Veh1cles c:qwpment WIP 

Grots Carrying Amount ae at April 1 , 2018 53.82 2.56 3.21 119.20 7.82 186.61 124.65 
Additions· I Tranater 0.32 53.94 2.27 56.53 
Disposals 

As et March 31 , 2019 53.82 2.56 3.53 173.14 10.09 243.14 124.66 

Addd.lons I Transler 12.64 0.73 13.38 o._..,. 
As at Marcl\31 , 2020 53.82 15.20 4.27 173.14 10.09 256.52 124.65 

Accumulated depreciation as at April1, 2018 5.60 2.56 1.05 38.70 5.28 53.20 

Depraolatlon oharg& durlng the year- 0.85 0.31 16.70 1.28 19.14 
Accumulated depreCiation on deJelions 

----
As at Marcl\31 , 2019 6.45 2.56 1.36 55.40 6.56 72.34 

Deprectation charge durfng the year 0.85 1.32 0.40 20.56 1.32 24.4$ 

Accumulated depreoatlon on deJotJOns 

As at March 31. 2020 7.30 3.88 1.76 75.96 7.86 96.13 

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 46.52 lt.32 2.51 9718 2 21 159.73 124.65 

Net carrying amount as at M.atch 31, 2019 47.37 2.17 117.74 3.53 170.80 124.65 

Net c.arrying amount es at Aprll1. 2018 48.22 2.16 80.50 2.54 133.41 124.65 

-
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 4 : Intangible Assets 

(INA In Lakhs) 

PartiCulars. Computer Soltware 

Gross Carrying Amoun1at: at AprU 1, 2018 

Additfons I Transfer 

D<Spoaals 

-
As at March 31 . 2019 

Addrtlons I Trans1ar 

Disposals 

As at Marc-h 31 , 2020 

Accumulated amortisation and impairmen1 

As o1 April 01, 2018 

AmottiSaiJon charge during the year 

D::sposals 

As at March 31 , 2019 

AITIOftlsaUon charge dunng the year 

DISposals 

Aa at March 31, 2020 

Net carrying amount as at March 31. 2020 

Net carrying amount as at March 31. 2019 

Net carrying amount as at Aprll1. 2018 

60.15 

-
60.15 

60.15 

39.57 

12.03 

51.60 

8 .55 

60.15 

(0.00) 

8 .55 

20.58 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 5 : Non - Current Financial Assets - Investments (lNR In Laklls) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31 . 2020 March 31. 2019 
a) Unquoted 
Investment ln Equity Ins-truments of Subsidiary (valu-ed at cost) (Refer Note (I)) 
2,10,000 Equ1ty Shares o f Cho.c:;o Realty Private Umltod of As. tO each tuily pad up 
(March 31, 2019: 2 ,10,000) 80.00 80.00 

Inv estment In Equity lnSI·ruments 
4,40,000 Equrty Shores (March 31, 2019 • Nd) ol Goel Soc.Jril.,. Pnvalo Llmilod ol Rs. 100/-
eac:h fully paid up 440.00 . 

b) Ouoted 
Inve-stment In Equity Sh8res 
Investment carried at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
2.1 0.000 Equity Shares (March 31. 2019 - 2.10.000 shares) ol Bd 
Energy Systems Umited of R.s. 11-eact'l fully pe~id up 1.05 81.90 -
Nil Eqully Shares (March 31, 2019- 1,00.000shares) ol 
Chem1ech l!ldustrlal Valves Llmllod ol Rs. 1 0/· each lully paid up . 8.50 

8.000 Equity SharM (Match 31. 2019 - 6.000 shares) ol 
Global Space Technologies Umllod ol As. 101- each lully paod up 3.00 3.66 

B,ooo Eqully Shares (March 31, 2019 • 78,000sh4tes) ol 
Glob<! 1ntemauonal C&n1ers- tlmittki of Rs.. 101· each fully paid up 

5,000 Eqully Shares (March 31, 2019 • 5,000 sha,..) ol 
-+-

1.20 18.49 

Harmony Capital SeMces Limited of Rs. 10/ - each fulty paid up 0.26 0.25 

5,25,200 Equrty Shares (March 31, 2019 -5,54,000 shares) ol 
Khemano OlSltibutors & Mart<etlng Um11ed ot Rs, 51· oach fully i>BJd up 787.80 941.60 -- ---2.60,000 Equ~y Shares (March 31, 2019 • 2.40.000 shares) ol 
Manne Electrlcals (India) Umltod ol Fls. 10/· each lulfy paid up 234.13 254.40 

10.000 Equily Shares (March 31, 2019 - 10.000 sharM) Ol 
Pecos Holels An<l Pt.lbs Um~od ol Fls. 10/· each lully psld up 5.99 7.15 

6,00,000 Equcty Shares (March 31, 2019 • 5 ,00,000 shruos) of 
Scsn 5Uto1S Um~ed ol Ra. 10/· oach fully paid up 80.00 190.75 ----
48,000 Equrty Shores (Mon;h 31, 2019 • 48,000 shores) o1 
Sup(eme (lncfla ) lmpex UmUed ol As. 10/- each tufly paid up 13.06 13.73 

4,8<1,983 Equoty Shares (March 31 , 2019 • 7.24,983 shates) ol 
Upsurge Investment & Finance Limited of Rs. 101- each tully paid up 54.12 143.18 

4,50,000 Equity Shares (March 31. 2019 • 4,50,000 shates) ol 
Klsan Mouldings Umlled ol Rs. 10/- oach lully psld up 32.40 204.30 

2,43,692 Equrty Shares (March 31, 2019 · Nil Shares) of 
SrcoSeatNus Umdedol As. 10/· each tully paid up 303.40 . 
lnve-atment carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss Account (FVTPL) 
732 E.qUIIty Sha1es (March 31 , 2019 : 10,000) of H. G. I.nfra EngiN!efing Urnltt!d ot 
Rs. 1 01· oath fully paid up 1.25 28.32 

1,03,500 Equrty Share• (Morell 31, 2019 · 70,808) of Shree Pushkor Chemicals & N!rtollsers 
Llmi1ed ol Rs. 10/· ·-fully pai<l up 78,49 116.51 

14.89,196 Equoty Shares (Marth 3!, 2019 : 6,82,000) ol Vakrengee Llml1ed ol 
Rs. 1 ~ each fully paid up 294.86 343.39 

Total 2,409.03 2.436.32 

Notes: 

(1) The stralegW: lnvestmen1S In subsidiaries have been taken a1 cost 

(1i) lnvestmen1 at fair value lhrough profit and 10$.$ ret'ectlnveslment in quoted and unquoled equdy securihes. 
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Note 6 : Non-Current Financial Assets • Others 

Carried at emortl:sed cosl 

Othet Advances 

Total 

Note 7 • Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

The major components of Delerrad Tax Assetsl(llabluties) as recognlzad In the financial 
statements are as follows: 

Oeierred Tax Assets/fliabilities) arlsmg on aocounl of bmtng ditfore.ooes m: 
Property, Ptan.t and Equlpc'nent including ltUangtble Assets ~ DepreoatJon 

Gratuny 
Pral'eronce Shares 
Allowance fo< credlt losses (ECL) 

Unused TOJ< Losses 

MAT 
Fair Value LDss on tnveS1.ment U'lrogh OCt 

Deferred Tax A.s.sels (net} 

Movement In Deferred Tax Assets I (Uabllitles) 

(4.18) 

5.85 

0.37 

16.00 

0.35 

18.40 

(INA In Lal<hs) 

As at 
March 31. 2019 

(INA in Lakhs) 

Asal 
March 31. 2019 

(8.35) 

2.80 

0.15 

200.71 

195.31 

(INA In lakhs) 

Preference 1 Unused 
Particulars DeprocJatton Gratwty Sh MAT ECL T l 1 loans 

ares 1 ax osses 
As at Apr111, 2018 (I 1.93) 1.79 26.92 0.15 0.40 17.33 
(Charged) I Credi1Dd: 
To Ptolll or Loss 3.58 0 .87 (26.92) 0.00 200.71 (0.40) tn.83 
To Othaf Comprehensrve lncomo 0 .15 0 .15 

As at March 31,2019 (8.35) 2.80 0.15 200.71 o.oo 396.02 
(Chafll'ICI) / Cred11Dd: 
To Profit or Loss 4 18 3.05 16.00 022 (200.71) (177 .26) 

To Oll>e< COITll)fehenStlie Income 0 .36 0.36 

Aa at March 31, 2020 (4. 18) 6.21 16.00 0.37 0.00 18.40 

Note 8 • Current Financial Assets • Trade Receivables 

(INR in lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Trade: R.eeelvabm considwod good· Secured 
Trade Receivables considered good · Unsecured 
TradB: Roooivabtos wtuch have sagnificant increate .n Credtl Rlsk 
Less: AJiowance for credit losses 
Trade Receivables 4 credrl lmpaired 

TotaJ 

164.12 

1.42 

(1.42) 

164.12 

335.14 

0.57 
(0.57) 

- -
336.14 

Note :Trade Receivables are non interest bearing and terms are generally from 60 to 90 days. 
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Note 9 • Current Financial Assets • Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Bani< Balances 
• In current aceounts 
• In hxed depoSit$ with maturity olte-ss than 3 monl.h.s 
Cashon Hand 

To"'' 

13.49 
276.95 

1,53 

291.97 

(INA In Lal<hs) 

As at 
March 31. 2019 

10.62 
240.31 

1,53 

2.52.45 

Short·term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the Immediate 
cash requirements ol lhe Company, and earn Interest at the applicable short·lerm deposit bank rates. 

Note 10 · Current Financial Assets · Loans 
{INA in Lakhs) 

As at 
Particulars March 3t. 2020 

As at 
March 31. 2019 

Unsecured. cons1dered good 
Olhar Receivables 
Advance 10 Related PartjeS 

Tolal 

Sub-<la.ulflcatlon of Loans 
Loan Reoelvabtes considered good - Secured 
Loan Rece,vabN!s considered good • 

3.:!53~53 96.25 ---
3,449.7~ 

2.438.94 
82.20 

2,501.14 

Loan Reoelvabtes wf1lch have slgnlllcan1lncrease In Crecfol Risk 
Loan Receiv1ll>les - Credrt Impaired 

Note 11 • Current Financial Assets • Others 

3,449.78 

As at 
Part1culars March 3!, 2020 

Seou111y Deposlls 
Advances to Employees 

Total 

Note 12 : Current Tax Assets (Net) : 

79.43 
3.02 

82.45 

The gross movement In the current Income tax asset/ (liability) for the year ended March 31 , 202Q 
and March 31 , 20191s as follows: 

2.501.14 

84.65 

(INA In lakhs) 

(INA In Lakhs) 

As al As at 
Particulars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Net currenl income tax assev (liability) et the beginning 
Current & Earlier income tax expense 
MAT credtt entitlement 
Income tax pa1d (net ot refund, if any) 

Nel current income tax auet/ (liability) al the end 

232.61 
(6.36) 

(16.00) 
(47.52) 

162.73 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 
March 31 , 202Q and March 2Q19: 

154,47 

78.14 

2.32.61 
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Accounting profit before lax from continuing oporatlons 
Acoot.Jnling prolll before Income lax 

At India'S statutoty Income LOX rato ol28.60% (March 31 , 2019: 31.20%) 
AdJustments of lax effec• of allowable and non--allowable Income and expenses: 
Other Items (tnc:tuding Rqund OIL) 
Current tax e xpense reported In Statement of profit and loss 

Deferred Tax Expanses for the year 

Income Tax Expon.so 

Note t 3 : Other Current Assets 

Advance grven ro Vendors 
Balance wt!l1 Revenue Au!11oril)' 

Prepaid EJ<pensos 

Total 

Note 14 : Share Capital 

Authorised Capital 

16,000,000 (March 31. 2019: 16,000,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 eac:l1 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid LIP Capital 
15,127 31.2019: 15,127 shares ol As. 10 eactl 

Total 

(a) Termsl rfghlsattachedto: 

Equity Shares 

22.36 

1n.'<l 

199.64 

6.35 

26.42 

1.14 

33.91 

1,600.00 
1,600.00 

1,512.76 

1,512.76 

(INR in lakhs) 

(1n.83) 

(1n.83) 

{INR In lakhs) 

As at 
March 31. 2019 

3.55 

3.55 

{INR In Lakhs) 

1,600.00 
1,600.00 

1,512.76 

1,512.76 

The Company has one Olass or eqwly Shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible lor 
one vote per share held. The dividend proposed, '' any, by the Board ot Directors is subject to the approval ol lhe 
shareholders m lhe ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, lhe equity share holders are eligible 
to receive lho remaining assets of the oompany after distribution of aU preferential amounts ln proportion to their Share 
holding. 

(b) ReconciUaUon of number of shares outstanding at lhe beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

Equity Shares: 

Balanoe as at !he beginning ollhe year 
Add: Shares 1sSU<>d d\Jrlng tho year 

Balance as at the end of the year 

151 .28 

151 .28 

0 

1,512.76 151.28 1,512.76 

1,512.76 151 .28 1,512.76 
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(c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate 
shares in the Company: 

Equity Shares: 

Olbls Financial Cotporatlon llmiled 8.26 5.46% 
Azura Projects Private UmJted 28.81 19.04% 28.81 19.04% 

Florence Secunties Pr~vale Urruted 22.44 14.83% 22.44 14.~ 

Rav• Ompaka&h Agrawal 29.53 19.52% 29.53 19.52'% 
Govind Ram Patodia 20.00 13.22% 20.00 13.22% 
Blndl Vlnay Vora 10.00 6.61 % 10.00 6.61'lb 

As per the reco<ds ot the Company, including its regiSter ot the members ar>d other declaratiOns received trom the 
sharellolder regard1ng benetrclal Interest. the above sharehOiding represem both legal and benellcial ownerships or 
shares. 

Note 15 : Other Equity 
(INA in Lakhs) 

As at As al 
PartiCulars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

GeneraJ Reserve 
Securlrles Premium 
Retained Eamlngs 

Tollll 

(I) General Reserve 

Balance as al llle beginning of 11\e year 
Add : Addlloos duti<lg !he year 

Balance a a at the end of the year 

(li) Securities Premium: 

30.00 
1.400.00 

(1 ,250.03) 

179.97 

30.00 

30.00 

30.00 
1,400.00 
(546.47) 

883.53 

(INA in Lakhs) 

As at 
March 31. 2019 

30.00 

30.00 

(INA In Lakhs) 

As at As at 
PartiCulars March 31 2020 March 31. 2019 

Balance as a1 lhe beginning ot !he year 
Add : Addiroos during !he year 

Ba.lance as at the end of the yaat 

1,400.00 1,400.00 

1,400.00 
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(Iii) Retained Earnings 

Balance as- at tho begtnnjng of the ye-ar 
Add: Prom I (loss) tor the year 
Add- II ems or Other Cornprehenslve Income recogn1sed direedy lin Retafned Earnings 
Re-measuremenlgalnsl (\osse&) on defined benetit Obligadons (nel o1 tex) 
Re-measurement of lnv&atment in equily 

Balance as at the end of the year 

Note 16: Non-Current Financial liabilities · Borrowings 

(546.47) 

(64.98) 

(1.02) 
(637.55) 

(1,250.03) 

(INA in lakhs) 

As at 
March 31. 2019 

438.29 
(594.13) 

(0.43) 
(390.20) 

(54$.47) 

(INA In lakhs) 

As at As at 
PartiCulars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

secured Term loans (Refer Note (a) below) 
Rupoa Te.rm loans from Banks 

Unsecured Loans 

Total 

Notes: 

42.18 67.72 

1,982.34 2,524.18 

2,024.53 2,591.90 

(a) Nature of security and terms of repayment for Secured Bor·rowlngs : 

Naturo of Security 

Rupee Term Loan from ICICI Bank llll>O<Jnllng toRs. 1.431BJ<hs 
(March 31, 2019 : Rs. 17.711akhs) secured by thevehldes purchased 
from the loan proceedings. 

Rupee Term loan from fCICI Bank amoun~ng toRs. 40.751al<hs 
(March 31. 2019 : Rs_ SO.DIIal<hs) secured by the vehicles purchased 
from the loan proceedings.. 

Note 11 : Non-Current Provisions 

Terma of Repayment 

The 1oart Is repayable In 60 monthly p!lnclpal 
Installments and lnte<eSI payable 0 10.03%, 
ending n AlJnl2020. 

The 1oart Is repayable In 60 monthly principal 
omtallments and lnteteSI payable @I 8.85.,., Oflding 
In October 2023. 

(INR In lakhs) 

As at As at 
Parttculars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Provlslon for Empkr{co Bono fits: 
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 35) 

Total 

Note 18 : Curtent Financial Liabilities • Trade Payables 

13.51 

13.51 

0.92 

0.92 

(INA in laktrs) 

As at As at 
Partrculars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Trado Payeblo 

Total 

Duos to Micro and Small Enterprt&es 
Others 

106.55 

70.97 
65.58 

23.09 

88.67 

PARAMONE CONCEPTS UWTED 



Note: Disclosure for micro and small enterprises: 

As at 
Par11culars March 31, 2020 

(a) The principal amounl ond the 1nterest due thereon remaW'Itng u,..,a.kS to any 
supplfef as at lhe elld ol each accountlog year 
·Principal 
· lntere$l due 1hereon 

(bl Amo<Jnl ot inte<eSl paid by 1lle Company In terms of sec:1K>n 16 ot the Mloro. Small and 
Mecbu:m Enterprises. Devek)pment Act, 2006, along w1th the amount ollhe payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day dunng each accounting year 
·Principal 
·Interest 

(c) The amount of mteres1 due and payablo for lhe period ot delay in making payment (whiCh 
lulve boon paid but b•y<ltld the appointed day during tha yearl but without adding tho 
inlcrest specified unde1 the Micro, Small and Medium EnterprrS&s Oeveklpment Act. 2006 

(d) The nmount of mtere$1 aocrued and remaining unpa1d at the end of each aceountlng year 

(e) The arnotKtt ol further 111ere£U remaining due and payable even In ttle succeeding years., 
unbl such <Sale when the lnlerest dues as above are actually paid to lhe small enlerprise. 
fOf the purpose of dESalk>wance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Entorpdsos ~volopmont Act 2006 

(INA in lakhs) 

Note: The above information regardlng micro and small enterprises has been determined to the extent SUCh 
parties have been idenflfled on the basts ot Information available with the Company. 

Note 19 : Other Current Liabilities 

As at 
PartiCulars March 31 2020 

Statutooy ou .. Payable (tncludong Provldonl Fund, Tax Deducted at Source and 

otl>er Indirect taXes I 
Advance lrom Customers 
Other Payable~ . Mark l'o Margin 
Employee Retatod Llabi!iti&a 

Total 

Note 20 : Current Provisions 

59.76 
2,919,74 

As at 
Particulars March 31. 2020 

Provislon for Employae benefils: 
Provision fo1 Gralulty (Reier Noto 35) 

Total 

8.97 

8.97 

(INA in Lald'ls) 

37.88 

1,169.96 

50.69 

(INA In lakhS) 

9.88 

9.86 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 21 : Revenue from Operations 

(INA In Lak!ls) 

P I 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

artlcu ars March 31 . 2020 March 3 t . 2019 

sa of &!Nice& 
Mal'l< 10 Markel profit on Hading ol derivatives (oommodrty) 

Total 

Noto:· The 3mount of revGt'MJGS ate oxdustvo of appilcable lndlr6Ct taxes. 

Note 22 : Other Income 

1,170.08 

4.245.67 

5,415.75 

1.046.31 

1,046.31 

(INR in Lak!ls) 

P I 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

arhcu ars March 31.2020 March 31. 2019 

Ollridend 6.39 

Interest Income on 

- A•ed OepoSIIS wllh Banks 15 54 14.13 

- Income T-ax Refund 12.95 

-Others 142.63 275.62 

falr value adjUStment on flf'lanclal.nstrument carried atla1r value through ptoht and toss 35.53 

Total 1n.so 325.48 

Note 23 : Operating Expenses 
(INA In Lakhs) 

p rt 
1 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
a tcu ars March 31 . 2020 March 31. 2019 

S..b-contrac1 Charges 

Mark to Mari<Ot Joss on trading of derivallvas (futuro and options) 

Tolal 

Note 24 : Employee Benefits Expenses 

28299 

3.086.30 

3,369.29 

83.73 

866.17 

949.89 

(INR in Lak!ls) 

P I 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

art,cu ars March 31 . 2020 March 31. 2019 

Salaries alld Tncentlves 
Manpower Cha(ges 

OireciOf Sitting Fees 

Stall We"are 

Gratuity 

Conlrb.ltions to Provident sod Other Funds 

Total 

548.53 

140.73 

2.40 

9 .83 

10.32 

11.65 

723.45 

627.62 

4.05 

12.39 

644.<Mi 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 25 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
(INR in Lakhs) 

P I 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

artocu ars March 31 . 2020 March 31. 2019 

Depreciation on lllr>gible assets (Reier Note 3) 

AmortlS8bOn on tangible assets (Refer Note 4) 

Total 

Note 26 : Finance Costs 

2.! 45 

6.55 

33.00 

19 14 

12.03 

31.17 

(INA in Lakhs) 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
Particulars March 31 . 2020 March 31.2019 

Interest Expense 

· On Tetm loans 

-On Others 

Bank Charoes & C<>mmls®n 

To181 

Note 27 : Other Expenses 

510 

295.48 

2.42 

303.00 

4 .24 

121 .21 

2.35 

127.60 

{INA in Lakhs) 

P rt I 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

a tcu ars March 31.2020 March 31.2019 

Business Promotion Expenses 
legCJI end Protess.on.al Charges 
Shore Tradir>g Expenses 
Tender Fees Charges 
Electricity Expenses 
Commumo;c~tloo Expenses 
Pfintmg and Stationoty 
Rentlncii.Kflng lease rentals 
Repairs & Maintenance Expenses 
Aates & Taxe!i 
Allowance for crt1dl1 k>sses 
Fair value adjustment on financial mtrument carried at raJr value through profil and toss 
loss on sale of shares 
Insurance E>cpeo$e.to 
Traveling & Convcyanca Expenses 
Vehicle Expenses 
Canteen Expenses 
Membership Fees 

Payment 10 Auditors: 
- StAIUIOry Audit 
- TaxAudol 

Donations 
G!lncral Expenses 

Total 

24.96 
196.65 
152..52 

1.30 
2 .70 
1.24 

2.56 
70.56 

5.62 
1 . 14 

0.65 
479.97 

18.58 
3.51 

38. 16 

0.35 
0.05 

19.16 
7.56 

1,029.85 

40.59 
172.115 

3.n 
1.76 

0.26 
2.14 

58.19 

8.08 
1.49 
0.04 

68.53 

3.80 
3.93 
0.57 

0.35 
0.05 

20.99 
3.82 

390.82 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 28 : Earnings Per Share 
(INR in Lakhs) 

P I 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

artrcu ars March 31 . 2020 March 31. 2019 

Net Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders lor Basic W1d Dauted EPS 

Weighted average number of Equity Shares (In Lakhs) outstanding during the year 

Fa"" Value p<ll Equity Share (INA) 

Basic and OUuled EPS (INA) 

Note 29 : Financial Assets at Amortised Cost Method 

(64.98) 

151 28 

10.00 

(0.•3) 

The carrying value of lhe following financial assels recognised at amortised cost: 

(594. 13) 

151.28 

10 

(3.93) 

{INR in Lakhs) 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
Partrculars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Non-Currenl Financial A.s.sets 

Others 

Current Financial A.aaet& 

Trade Receivables 

Cash and Cash EquiValents 

Loans 
Others 

Total 

t64.12 

291.97 

3.449 78 

82.45 

3,988.31 

Note: The fair value of lhe above financial assets are approximately equivalent to carrying 
values as recognised above. 

Note 30 : Financial Llabllltles at Amortised Cost Method 

33a. t4 

252.45 

2,501 ,14 

84.65 

3,174.38 

The carrying value of lhe following financial assets recognised at amortised cost: 
{INA in Lakhs) 

p 
1 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
artrcu ars March 31. 2020 March 31 . 2019 

Non~Current Ananelal Liabilitie-s 

Borrowings 

Current Flnanclal LlabJUUes 

Bortowing.s: 

Trade Payobles 

Totat 

2.024.53 

177.52 

2,202.05 

Note: The fair value of lhe above financial assets are approximately equivalent to carrying values 
as recognised above. 

2.591 .90 

88.67 

2,680.57 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

Note 31 : Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 

The carrying value of the following nnancial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss: 

(INR In Lakhs) 

P I 
For the Year Ended For lhe Year Ended 

art•cu ars March 31 2020 March 31 2019 ' . 
Non..C,urrent Financial Assets 

lnveSiments 812.60 488.22 

Tollll 812.60 488.22 

Note: The above investments are quoted Instruments in active markels and the same is recognised at fair value. Fa1r 
value measurement is done considering the Level ·1 of Fair Value Hierarchy as per the lnd·AS 1 13. 

Note 32 : Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 
The carrying value ol the lollowing llnanclal assets recognised at fair value through other comprehensive income: 

(INR in Lakhs) 

P I 
For lhe Year Ended For the Year Ended 

art•cu ars March 31.2020 March 31. 2019 

Non..Current Financial A.sset.s 

lnv~rnents 1,516,43 1,868.11 

Tolllt 1,516.43 1,866.11 

Note: The above investments are quoted instruments in active markets and the same Is recognised 
at fair value. Fair value measurement is done considering the Level· 1 of Fair Value Hierarchy as per the lnd·AS 1 13. 

Note 33 : Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings. trade and other payabies. The 
main purpose of these financial liabilities Is 10 finance lhe Company's operations directly or indirectly. The 
Company's principal financial assets include investmenls, loans, lrade and olher receivables, cash and cash 
equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 

(INR in Lakhs) 

R1sk Exposure ans•ng from Measurement Management 

Credl1 Risk 

Uquidrty Risk 

Market Risk -
foretgn e){change 

Mrul<el Rlsk • 
Interest tate 

Cosh and cash equivalents, 
1t8de receivables. financial Instruments, 
Fixed Deposi1 with Banks, financlal 
as.sola measured a.l amol"lised cost 

Bor(OWlngs and other l ~bilitias 

Future c:ommercia1 transaebOns. 
Recognised flna~ liabilities 1101 
denominated In lndl011 Rupee (INR) 

lon_g-Term bofrowlngs &t 
vatiable rates 

"Aging analysis 
and Oredlt ratings" 

Rolkng cash llow forecasts 

Cash flow loreca.sting and 
SensUMty analysis Fotward 

Sensltlv•lY analysis 

DlvetSificatlon ol ExiSUng credit 
hmiiS, por11oli0 etedil monliO<"'!! 
and cred1t worthiness monitoring. 
cmdrt ba&ad approval approach 

Availabtllty ol committed credit 
lines and borrowmg lac:lllties 

Fore.gn exchange <lontrac:ts. 

Interest rate swaps 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligat1ons under a linancial instrument or customer contract. 

leading to a financial loss. The Company Is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) 

and from its financing activities, including F1xed deposits with banks and financial Institutions and other nnancial 

instruments. 

Trade receivables 

Customer credit risk Is managed by the Company's established policy. procedures and control relating to customer credit 

risk management. The Company Is In the business of englneenng, procurement and construction facilities for 
infrastructure projects. Credit quality of a customer is assessed by the management on regular basis with market 

information and individual credit limits are defined accordingly. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly 

monitored and any lurther services to major customers are approved by the senior management. 

An Impairment analysis Is performed at each reporting date on an Individual basis lor major customers. In addition , a 

large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for Impairment collectively. The 
maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting dale is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in 

NoteS. 

On account of adoption of lnd·AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or 
gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The 

provision matrix takes Into account available external and Internal credit risK !actors and the Company's historical 
experience for customers. 

financial insttumeruun.I!.&M.b.J:l.Jl.pOsils 

Credit risk lrom balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's finance department in 
accordance with the Company's policy. The investment limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore 

mitigate financial loss to make payments lor vendors. 

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31 , 2020 and March 
31, 2019 is lhe carrying amounls as stated in balance sheel. 

!Jguidlty Risk 

The Company monitors Its risk of a shortage ol funds using a liquidity planning tool. 

The Company's objective Is 10 maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank 

loans and unsecured loans. The Company has access to a sufficient variety or sources of funding which can be rolled 

over with existing lenders. The Company believes that the working capital is sulficlenlto meet its current requirements. 
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The tabla below provides details regarding the maturities of significant financialliabll"ias as of 
March 31, 2020 and March 31,2019: 

(INA in lakhs) 

Less than 3to 12 • 
Particulars 3 Months Months 1 too years > 5 years Total 

Year ended March 31.2020 

Secured Loans 

Unsecured Loans 

Tfllde Payables 

Year ended March 31, 2020 

Socurod Loans 

Unsecured Loans 

Ttado Payables 

MarketAisk 

2.92 7.77 

70.97 108.55 

4.09 21.45 

. 
23.09 65.58 

S1.50 

1.982.34 

42.18 

2.524.18 

. 

. 

. 

42. 18 

1.982.34 

177.52 

67.72 

2 ,524.18 

88.87 

Market nsk compnses two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market 
risk include loans and borrowings and deposits 

Interest rate riH, 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 
primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating Interest rates. 

The Company manages its Interest rate risk by having a balanced porffollo of fixed and variable rate loans and 
borrowings. The Company's policy Is to keep balance between its borrowings at fixed rates of Interest. The difference 
between fixed and variable rate Interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal 
amount. 

The exposure oflhe Company to Interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are asunder: 

(INA in lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31. 2020 March 3t. 2019 

Ft.Xed Rate Borrowing 

Tolal 

Interest rate sensitivity 

2,024.53 2.591.90 

2,591.90 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In Interest rates on that portion of loans 
and borrowings affected, after the Impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company's 
prof~ before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings , as lollows: 
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(INA In Lakhs) 

Partrculars 
Increase! Decrease Effect on Prolrt 

rn basrs pornts before Tax 

MRrch 31, 2020 +1 % (20.25) 

·1% 20.25 

March 31 . 2019 + 1% (25.92) 

· 1% 25.92 

Equity price risk 

The Company's unlisted equity securities are of subsidiary and deemed cost of the same are taken as previous GAAP 
carrying value (I.e. cost of acquisition). The value o·f the financial instruments is not material and accordingly any change 
In Jhe value of these investments will not affect materially the profit or loss of the Company. 

Note 34 : Capital Management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, 
securities premium and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary 
objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the value of the share and to reduce the cost 
of capital. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic 
conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Company can adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, Issue new shares, etc. The Company monHors 
captlal using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. The Company includes within net debt, 
interest bearing loans and borrowings. less cash and cash equivalents. 

(INA In lakhs) 

As at As at 
Partrculars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

A) Net Oebl 

Bonowings (CUrn!tlt and Non·Cum>nt) 

Cash and Cash Equrvalenl$ 

--, 
B) Equity 

Equity SMIO capital 

Other Eqully 

Gearing Rallo JNellleb!l Capital) l,e. (A I B) 
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Note 35 : Employee Beneflts 

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under: 

I. Defined Contribution Plans 

a. Employers' Comribullon to Prov•dent Fund and Employee's Pension Scheme 

During the year, the Company has incurred and recognised the following amounts in the Statement ol Profit and Loss: 

(INA in Lakhs) 

Year ended Year ended 
Particulars March 31. 2020 March 31 . 2019 

(INA 1n Lakhs) (INA 1n lakhs) 

Employers• Contnbution to Provident Fund and e:mployeo•s Pen$ion Scheme 11.65 12.39 

T ouu Expenses recognised in the Statomen1 or Profit and Loss (Refer Nol.e 24) 11 .65 12.39 

II. Defi.nod Benefit Plan 

Gratuity Fund 

a. MaJor Assumptions (% p .a.) t% p.a.) 

OhSOOunt Rate 6.65% 7.75'to 

Salary Escalabon Rate 41 6.00'!. 6.00% 

@The osttmates-lor futuro $3hlty iflcmases oonstdeted takes 
WltO acoount the miJation, ~monty. promotion and othe.r reJevanl factors. 

Expected Rate of RctufM Not Applicable Not Appllcab4e 

Employee Turnover s.ooo .. 5.00% 

b. Change fn Present Value ol Obt1gaUon (INR In Lakhs) (INR In lakhs) 

Present Value of Obtignllon as at the beginning ol che year 11 .07 6.43 

Cunent Se-rvice COsl 9.86 3.56 

Post Setvlco Cool 

Interest Cost 0.86 0.49 

Beneht pa1d 

Aemea5urements, • Actuimal (Ga~nV Lo!js on Obftgations 0.97 0.59 

Present Value ol Obkgatton as altho tu\d of the year 22.78 11.07 

c. Chango In Fair value or Plan Assets 

Fair value or Plan Assets. Beginning or Pefiod 0.29 

Interest lnoome 0.40 

Ex.p.ected Relul'n on Plan ASS01s (0.38) 

Actuat Company Contributions 0.28 

Ae1ua1 Plan Participants' ContributiOns 

Change$ In Fcwelgn Cwreocy Exchange Rates 

Actuarial Gainsi(Losses) 0 .01 

8onefit Paid 

Falr value of Plan Assets at the en<l 01 the year 0.31 0 .29 

d. ReconclllaUon of Presen t Veloe of Defined Benoflt Oblfgatlon (INA In lakha) {INR In lakha) 
and 11\8- Fail' Value ot Assets 

Ptesenl Value ol Obligation 22.76 t 1.07 

fair Value o f Plan A$$0tS 0 .31 0.29 
Funded S~tus (22.45) (10.78) 

Pteseol Value or Untunded ObUgauon 22.45 10.78 

Untunckld Net Liability recognised In tho Bruanco SMct disclosod 

u"der Non Current PrOVISion and Current Provision (Refer N{)te 17 and 20) 22.45 t0.78 
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' 

e. Expenses Recognised fn the Sleteme-nt of Profit and Loss 

Ctitrent $Gr"Jiee Cost 

Pasl Serv1ce Cost 

lnttHest Cost 

Expected Retum on Plan Assets 

Actuarial losses 1 (Gains) Recognised in lhe year 

Total ~xpensos roeogrisad In the Statement of Profrt and Lou (Rofar Nato 24) 

f. Expense Recognised In the Statement of Other Comprehens1ve Income 

Aflmeasurc_mcni.S ol the net deflnGd boncflt l ability 
Aetuarial (gatns) I sasses obhg.a110n 

Actuarial lgaina) /IOJ.ya on Ob!Jgation 

Due to 0emogfaphlc Assumption· 

Oue 10 RnancteJ Asswnpbon 

Duo to EJ<polience 
Retum on Plan Assets exctudlng arnount:s included m Interest lneome 

Total Actuarial (Gain)llos.s 

(INA In ukhs) (INR In Lakhs) 

9.88 3.56 

(0 52) 0.49 

0.97 058 
10.31 4.63 

(INA In lakho) (INR In Lakhs) 

0.97 0.59 

0.9 7 0 .59 

(0.02) 

:tao {008) 

(1.80) 0.67 

0.38 (0.01) 

1.36 0.58 

*This figure does not teflecltnlenelatlonship between demographic assumption and financial aSS\JmpCJon when a hmlt Is applied on 'he 
benefit the effect wil be shown as an e>q>e.rt.ence 

g. Amoun-ts recognised ln the Balance Sheet 
Present Valoo of Obligabort as at year end 

Fait Value ot P&a.n Assets a.s .at year end 

Unlunded Net Uobihty recognlsed In the Balance Sl>cal disdosed under 
Non Curtont Provision and Cuffent ProviSion (Refc1 Notb 17 and 20) 

IV. SensHivily Analysis 

(INA In lakhs) 
(22.76) 

0.31 

22.45 

(INR In lakhs) 
(1 1.071 

0.29 

10.78 

The betow sensitivity analyses are based oo a change In on assumption while hokllng all othef essutnption:a oonstanlln ptactke, this Is unllkety to 
occur, nnd changes in sotrut of the assumptions may be correlated. Wh~m cakulating the acnstivlty of the dafincd bonel1t obt.garlon to-slgnUlo<tnt 
actu-.:uial assumptions the same method (present vB.Iuo ot tho d(lfined ~6t obligatiOn calCulated with the pro}oetod und Cfodlt method at the end 
ol the reporung period) has been appfled as when calcu1abng lhe cloflnedbeneht liabU1ty recognised in the balance $heet. llle method$ end l)'pe$ ol 
ass:umpt.~ns used In preparing the $eC'l.$1ltvity analysts did no I dtange compallldlo the prior period. 

a. Gratuity 

A quantitative 5ensi1rvl1y analysis tors'gnfficant assumption nat Marc:h31 , 2020 and March 31 , 2019 eJe as shown beloW: 

lncrea&el (Decrease) Change 1n Increase/ (Decrease) 

P I 
Change 1n m Present Value Salary tn Present Value 

art•cu ars Otscount Rate of Obhgahons Escalation of Obhgallons 
(INR'" Lakhsl Rate (INR 1n Lakhsl 

March 31 , 2020 +0.5% (1 62) +0.5% 1.31 

· 0.5% 1.80 - 0 .5% (1.301 

Moroh 31 . 2019 +0.5% (0.72) +0.5% 0 .65 

·0.5% 0.80 ·0.5% (0.63) 

V. Risk Exposure 

Thtough Its dorrned benc!it plans, the Company IS exposed to a number of nsks, the most significant of wth<:h are detaUod: 

lntetOSl ti:Sk 

Longevily Jisk 

Salary rlsl< 

A deaeasc In the matket yiekls In the government bond wiD .ncrease the pran liability. 
----+-

The presenl value o1 dehned benelll plan liablloly Is calculated uSlng a diS<OIO\l raie wlloch is 
determhled by reference to the besl estimate of the morlallly of plan paruclpants both during and 
alter employment An lncrease in the life expectancy olltle plMI participants wi!J Increase the 
pl8n's l.obiliJy. 

-----1--
The present value of dehned benefil pW.n liability ts caJoutaled uSing a discount rate wtltch 15 
determined by reference to the future- saflJtles of plan partiCipant$. As such. an inaease tn the 
salary of the plan """'c!pantS Wlll lnc"'aSO the plan'sliabnJly. 
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Note 36 : Related Party Disclosure 

a. Details of Related Parties 

OeKrlpllon of Relationship I 
a. Key Management Personnel (KMP) afld their reiatlves-f 

NBmes ol Related PartJet 

Mu&htaq $h81kh (Director w .. e.r 28.05.2018) 
Deepak Ranjan Noyak (Oireclor & CFO w o.f 29 03.2019) 
Sundarta I Sanwarmal B.agaria 
Ek1• Anu>hko Gupta (Dweclor w.e.t 6 02.2019) 
Bind1 Vinay Vora (0ifettor & CFO) (upto 6.02..2019) 
Govlnd Palodia (Manag•ng Director) (upto 6.02.20191 (Director) (w.oJ 30.05.2019 
(Managmg Dlrector w.e.f Ocl- 1. 2019) 
Vitcndra Jain (Oitoctor w.eJ 30.05.2019) 
Swela llajaj (Company Secretary) (uplo 14.06.2019) 
Swab Gupla (Company Secretary) (w.oJ. 14.08.2019) 
VarnM Patocia (Relabve ol MD) (uplll 6.02.2019) 

b. Entetprlses over whiCh Key Managerial Personnel are 
ablo to exercise slgnlf.ca.nt influence "Annya Trading Prlvatallnullld 

c Sub!ikhary Company 

d. Investing Pally ol whlc:!11he reportl'lg oompany 
Is an as.socrate 

Notu: 

Samonk Consumer Products Privata Umltod (upto ft02.201 9) 
Clear OlSpla)'S Prtvala Umrted {uplo 6.02.2019) 
JBS Rea~y And Dovolopmenl Privalo limited (up!O 6.02.2019) 
BHS Realty And Development Prlvale Umrted (uplo 6.02.20 19) 
Semank Appartlls Private limited (upto 6.02.2019)" 

Choice Realty Private Umlted 

Ch<Mce lnternall008l Limited (uplo 30.03.2019) 

1) lhe list ol related panics abo~JC) has been ll'nitcd to enbtlcs w•th which transactions ha\le taken place during the y«tar 
2) Related party transactions ha~Je been disclosed bll the trme lho relationship existed. 

b. Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31 , 2020 

Particulars 

Investing party 
of which lhe 

roportlng 
company 

l:a an associate 
--+--

Loan ~aken from 

Loan repaid 

loan gwen to 

Reimbursement of expenses 

Silbng Foos 

Salarlos & Perquist1.as 

Salance.s outstanding at the end of the year 

Salary and &.po,_. Pay3lllo 

Shott tarm lo.ans & advances 

Note : Figures in brackets represent figures of previous year. 

Enterprises over 
which Key KMP and 

Subsid=flary Managerial Person tholr 
are able to exerdse rolaHvas 
significant Influence 
-- -1-

- -

34.05 

(28.15) 

96.25 

(62.20) 1 

5 .65 
(2.03) 

2.40 

34.29 

(33.28) 

1.43 

(4 77) 

Total 

34.05 

(28.15) 

5.85 
(2.(Xl) 

2.40 

34.29 

(33.28) 

1.43 

(4,77) 

96.25 
(62.20) 
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Note 37 :Change In name of the Company 

During the year. the Company has received fresh certificate of Incorporation from the Ministry of Corporate 

Aflairs (MCA), consequent to change in nama of the Company. The nama of the Company has been changed 

from erstwhile Aqua Pumps Intra Ventures Limited to the bew name, Paramone Concepts Limned with effect 

fromAprll3,2019. 

Note 38 : Impact of Covld·19 

Due to the outbreak of COVID·t9 globally and In India, the Company's management has made milial 
assessment of likely adverse Impact on business and financial risks on account of COVID· 1 9, and believes that 

the Impact is likely to be short term in nature. The management does not see any medium to long term risks in the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilnies as and when they fall due, and 

compliance with the debt covenants, as applicable. 

Note 39 : Previous Years• Flgures 

The Company has re-grouped, re-classified and/or re-arranged figures for previous year, wherever required to 

confirm with current year's classification. 

As per our repon or even date auached 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 

Chartered Aocountants 
Arm Registration Number: 124850W 

Sdl· 
Rishi Sekhli 

Partner 
Membership Numbe<:126656 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : June 26, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board ot Dinectors 

Sdl· 
Govlnd Patodia 

Managing Dinector 

DIN : 027941 84 

Sdi-

Swatl Gupta 

Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : June 26, 2020 

Sdl· 
Mushtaq Shaikh 
Director 

DIN :08144509 

Sdl· 
Oeepak Nayak 

Director & CFO 

DIN :08408471 
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To the Members of Paramone Concepts Limited , 

(fo rmerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

Report on the Audit of Consolidated lnd·AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated lnd·AS financial statements of Paramone Concepts Limited (formerly known 

as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limned) (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company') and its subsidiary 

(the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as 'the Group'), which comprise the consolidated 

Balance sheet as at March 31 , 2020, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, consolidated statement 

of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows lor the year then ended, and notes to the 

consolidated lnd AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated lnd AS financial statements' ). 

In our opinion and to the best or our Information and according to the explanations given to us end based on the 

consideration of report of other auditor on separate financial statements and on the other financlatlnforrnatlon ol 

the subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated lnd AS linancial statements give the Information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") In the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, of the consolidated state of affairs or the 

Group as at March 31, 2020. their consolidated loss, their consolidated changes In equily and the consolidated 

cash flows lor the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(1 0) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements section of our reporl We are 

independent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements thai are relevant to our audit of the lnd AS financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of EthiCS. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our protessionaljudgment, were of most slgn1ficance In our audit ot 

the Consolidated lnd AS financial statements tor the financial year ended March 3 1, 2020. These matters were 

addressed In the context of our audit of the Consolidated lnd AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming 

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these mailers. 
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Key Audit Maners How our audit addressed the key audit maner 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
(described in Note 2 (J) of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements) 

Revenue from conltaCIS with customers Is recognized 
when services are transferred to the customer, at an 
amount that reflects the consideration 10 which the 
Company expects to oo enm!ed in exchange for those 
goods or services. 

lhe Company Is engaged In business of mulli·expertlse 
consulltng operations and related actlvitles. It has 
developed procedures to record the revenue on the basis 
or the movement of the cargo and revenue accrues as per 
Indian Accounting Standard 115. 

Due to different terms wtlh different eustOCll<lrs and 
transaction pr~ce, there is a nsk. that the revenue or 
discounts or rebates: might not oo recorded correcUy. 

Revenue Is a key parameter to ascertain the Company's 
performance. The Company focuses on revenue as a key 
performance measure, which could create an Incentive for 
revenue to oo recognized oorore the risk and rewruds 
have ooen transferred 

Accordingly. due 10 the slgnlfJcant risk BSSOCiated with 
revenue rocogn~ion in accordance with terms of lnd AS 
t 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers·, rt has been 
considered to be a key audij maner in our audit of these 
financial statements. 

We assessed the Company's process 10 Identify the 
Impact ol adoptlonol new rel/enue accountrng standard. 

We assessed the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness ol Internal conlrols related to revenue 
recognition. discounts and rebates. 

We performed sample tests ollndlvidual sales transaction 
and traced to related documents, considering the terms of 
performance. 

We tested cut-off procedures with respect 10 year-end 
sales transactions made. 

We also performed monthly analytical procedures of 
revenue by streams to identrfy any unusual trends. 

Based on our combtnatlon of procedures tnvolvtng enquiry 
and observation, performance and inspection of evidence 
In respect of operation of these controls, we have 
concluded that the revenue has been recognized ln 
accordance w~h the relevant accounting standards. 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other Information. The other 
Information comprises the Information Included In the Company's annual report, but does not Include the 
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the lnd AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form or assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the lnd AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

Information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially Inconsistent with the lnd AS 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the aud•t or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If. 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement or this other 
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated lnd AS 
Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board ol Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated lnd AS financial statements In terms of the requirements of the act that give a true and fair view of 
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes In equity and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
Including the Accounting Standards gpeclfied under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the group are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and lor preventing and 
detecting frauds and other Irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, Implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls , that were operating effectively lor ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness ol the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the lnd-AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. which have been used for the purpose or preparation ol the consolidated lnd AS financial 
Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated lnd AS financial statements. the respective Board or Directors of the companies 
Included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative 
but todoso. 

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies Included In the Group are also responsible lor 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities lor the Audit of the Consolidated lnd AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated lnd AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, Individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these consolidated lnd AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audiL We also: 

Identify and assess lhe risks of material misstalemenl of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provlda a basis for our opinion. The risk ol not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve 
collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override or Internal control. 

Obtain an understanding ofinternal control relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding has adequate internal financial controls 
system In place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ol the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
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that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw auention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated lnd AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audil evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated lnd AS financial statements, 
Including the disclosures, and whet.her the consolidated lnd AS llnancial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Obtain sulficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the enlllies or business 
activities within the Group of which we are the Independent auditors and whose financial information we 
have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated lnd AS financial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the llnancial statements of such entities 
Included In the consohdated financial statements of which we are the Independent auditors. For the other 
entities included in the consolidated financial statements , which have been audited by other auditors, such 
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out 
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant 
deficiencies In Internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters thai 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those mailers that were 
of most significance In the audit of the Consolidated lnd AS financial statements lor the year ended March 31, 
2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters In our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated In our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary whose lnd AS financial statements reflect total assets 
of Rs. 241.46 lakhs as at March 31, 2020, total revenues Rs. Nil fakhs for the year ended March 31. 2020, net 
loss ailer tax of As. 602.081akhs for the year ended March 31 , 2020 respectively, and net cash (inflows) As. 
1 0.66 1akhs year ended on that date, as considered In the consolidated lnd AS financial statements. These lnd 
AS financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the 
management. Our opinion on the consolidated lnd AS hnancial statements, In so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures Included in respect of the subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and 
(11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the report of 
the other auditor. 

Our opinion above on the consolidated fnd AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified In respect of the above matters with respect to ourreliance on 
the work done and the reports of the other auditor and the financial statements and other financial information 
certified by the Management. 

Our opinion Is not qualified in respect of this matter. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by section 143(3) olthe Act. based on our audit and the consideration olthe report olthe other 
auditor on separate financial statements and the other financial inlormation o l subsidiary, as noted In the 
'other matter' paragraph we report, that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belie I were necessary lor the purposes ol our audit of the aforesaid consolidated lnd AS financial 
statements; 

b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Holding Company, its 
subsidiary included In the Group Incorporated in India Including relevant records relaUng to preparation 
of the aforesaid consolidated lnd AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and records of the Holding Company and its subsidiary; 

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Prom and Loss (Including other 
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are In agreement with the relevant books ol account 
maintained by the Holding Company. Its, subsidiary Included in the Group Incorporated In India 
including relevant records relating to the preparation of the consolidated lnd AS financ.ial statements; 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated lnd AS financial statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards specified under Seclion 133 olthe Act; 

e) On the basis ot the written representations received from the directors altha Holding company as on 
March 31 . 2020 taken on record by the Board ot Directors of the Holding company and the reports of the 
statutory auditor ol Its subsidiary company, none olthe directors of the Group companies Incorporated 
in India is disqualilied as on March 31 , 2020 lrom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 
(2) of the Act; 

I) With respect to the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these consolidated lnd AS financial statements of the Holding Company 
refer to our separate Report In "Annexure A' to this report; 

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by 
the Holding Company and Its subsidiaries. to Its directors during the current year is In accordance with 
the provisions of Section 197 ol the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company 
and its subsidiaries. is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included In the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 or the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

There were no pending litigations as at March 31. 2020 on the consolidated financial position ol the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary company. 

The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses as at March 31. 2020. 

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India during the 
year ended March 31 , 2020. 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : June 26, 2020 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number ; 1248SOW 

Sd/-
Rishl Sekhri 
Partner 
Membership Number: 126656 
UDIN : 20126656AAAANS5486 
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Annexure A to Independent Audi tors' Report 
Referred to in paragraph 1 {f) under the heading ' Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our report 

of even date to the members of Paramone Concepts Limited, (formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures 
Limited) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated lnd-AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year 
ended March 31 , 2020, we have audited ihe internal financial controls over financial reporting of Paramone Concepts 
Limited (formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company'/ 
"the Company") and its subsidiary company, which are companies Incorporated In India, as of that date. 

Management' s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and Its subsidiary company, which are companies 
Incorporated In India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financial controls based on "Internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company and its subsidiary company considering the 
essen1ial components of internal control stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)". These responsibillties include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efftc,lent conduct of its business. including adherence to the respective company's 
policies. the safeguarding of Its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act. 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the Internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to 
these consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary Incorporated in India, based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting ("the Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143{ tO) or the Companies 
Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of intemaJ financial controls. both Issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtrun reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements was established 
and maintained and il such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and theor operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtainong an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating etlecliveness of Internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmen~ including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements 
of the Company and Its subsidiary incorporated In India. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
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6. A company's Internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements lor external purposes In accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated 
financial statements Includes those policies and procedures that 

I. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; 

1i. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only In accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and 

iii. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detecllon of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets lhat could have a material effecl on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

7. Because of the Inherent limitallons of internal financial conlrols over financial repof'ling with reference to these 
financial statements, Including the possibility of collusion or Improper managemen1 override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be deJected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
linancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the Internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these linancial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes In conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

8. In our opinion and to the best o f our Information and according to the explanations given to us, lhe Company and its 
subsidiary Incorporated in India have, In all material respects, an adequate Internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting with reference to these financ.ial statements and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31 , 2020, based on the 
internal control over financial repof'llng criteria eslablished by the respective companies consldermg the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Gwdance Note on Audit of Internal Flnancoal Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place : Mumbal 
Date : June 26, 2020 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registrallon Number : 124850W 

Sdl· 
Rlshl Sekhrl 
Partner 
Membership Number: 126656 

UDIN : 20126656AAAANS5486 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT MARCH 31, 2020 

{INR In Lakhs) 

Part1culars 
Note Asal As at 
No. March 31 . 2020 March 31.2019 

ASSETS 

1. Non Current Assata 

l•l PI'Ojlert~ , Plan I Md Equipment 3 159.73 170.80 
(b) Coprlal Wall< In prOijfeSS 3 124.65 124.65 

(o) lntangibk! Assets 4 . 8.55 

(d) Financial Assels -
(I) lnvestmenlS 5 2,329.03 2,356.32 
Ill) Olhero . . 

(e) Othar Non Currant A$SClS 6 25.48 . 
(0 Oelerred Tax AsseiS (Nel) 7 18.40 195~1 

2.657.29 2,855.63 

2. Current Assets 
(aj Financial ASseiS 

(i) Trade Receivables 8 164.12 336.14 

(il) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 304.76 254.58 

(UI) loans 10 3 1353.55 2,438.94 

(lv) Other$ 11 82.45 84.65 

(b) Current Tax Assets (Nol) 12 162.73 232.61 

(c) Olhe1 Curront AMeiS 13 237.10 791.32 

4,304.69 4,138.24 

Total Assets 6,961.98 6 ,993.87 
II EQUITY AND UABILmES 
Eqult_y __ 

(a) Equtl)' Shore Cop~ 14 t,512.76 1.512.76 

(b) O~r Equity 16 133.68 1,439.32 

1,646.44 2,952.08 

UABIUTIES -- -
1. Non Current Uabllltles 

(a) Flnandal llabilrlles 

(I) Borrowings 16 2.024.53 2,591.90 

(b) Provlsi!X\S 17 13.51 0.92 
2,038.04 2,592.82 

2. Current UablliUes -
(a) Flnandal llabihtles 

(1) Borrowings . ·---01) Track! Payables 18 

(a) total out!Slandlng dues ol micro oniOlJittSOS and 
small eruerprtses t06.55 65.58 

(b) totaJ out&Uinding dues 01 aoddOrs other than 
rrncro enterprises and smaJI enterprises 71.37 23.4t 

(b) Olhcr Current Uablli!los 19 3,090.61 1,350.12 

(C) Provisions 20 8.97 9.86 

S,2U.,~ 1.448JIL 

Total Equity and Uabilitias 6,961.98 6,993.87 

Summary ot Significant A(:countrng Polic1es 2 

The notes refened to above are an Integral part of the flnanctaJ sta'l'e.menls 
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As per our report o f even date auaclled 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 

Chartered Accountants 

Finn Registration Number: 1248SOW 

Sdf· 
Rlshl Sekhrf 

Partner 
Membership Number: 126656 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : June 26. 2020 

For and on behall of the Board of Di rectors 

Sdf· 
Govfnd Patodfa 

Managing Director 

DIN : 02794184 

Sdf· 
SwaU Gupta 

Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbal 

Date :June 26. 2020 

Sdf· 
Mushtaq Shalkh 

Director 

DIN : 08144509 

Sdl· 
Oeepak Nayak 

Director & CFO 

DIN • 08406471 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 , 2020 

{INR In Lakhs) 

Part1culars 
Nole For the Year ended For the Year ended 
No. March 31. 2020 March 31, 2019 

I Revenue 
Revenue from Opo_ratlons 21 5,415.75 1,046.31 

Other Income 22 177.50 325.48 
Totallnc:ome 5,593.25 1,371.79 __ 

II Expenses 
Opetat<>g Expenses 23 - 3,369.29 9 49.90 
Employee Benelll Expenses 24 725.59 646.30 

Depreclabon and AmortizatiOn Expenses 25 33.00 31.17 
Finance Costs 26 303.00 127.80 

Other E"l"'f'Ses 27 1.629.79 395.91 

Total Expenses 6,060.67 2,151.08 

111 Profit/ (Loss) before tax (I· II) (467.42) (779.30) 
IV Less: Tax Expense: 

Current f ax. 16.00 . 
Earlier Y(lt\f Tax. 6.36 . 
Deferred Tax 177.27 (177.63) 

Total Tax Expcmse 199.64 (1n.63) 

v Profit I (loss) for the Year (IH·IV) (667.05} (601 .46} 

VI Other Comprehensive Income 
llems thai will not be r~asslfied to profit or toss 
Re·me-asuromenl gains/ (lOsses) on defmed benefrt obl1gatoos {1.38) {0.58) 

Tax B lcct on above 0 .38 0 .15 
Re·measurement of Investment tn equity (637.55) (390.20) 
Other Comprehenslve ~ncome for the year, net ot tax (638.58) (390.63) 

VII Total Comprehensive Income for the year (V+VI) (1,305.63) (992.10) 

VIII Earnings Per Equity Shere (Face Value INA 10 Pef Share): 

Ba•lo and Diluted (iNA) 26 (4.41) (3.98) 
Summal)' ol Signtllcruu Ac<:oontlng Policies 2 
The notes referred to_above are a"-.!!!_tegral part of the nnanclal statements 

As per our report of even date aHached 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah For and on behalf ot the Board of Directors 

Chartered Aocountanis 
Firm Registration Number: 124850W 

Sd/- Sdf. Sd/· 
Rlshl Sekhri Govlnd Patodla Mushtaq Shaikh 

Partner Managing Director Director 

Membership Number:126656 DIN : 02794184 DIN ; 08144509 

Place : Mumbai 

Date ; June 26, 2:020 
Sdl- Sd/· 
Swatl Gupta Deepak Nayak 

COmpany Sec<etary Director & CFO 

DIN : 08406471 
Place ; Mumbal 

Date : June 26, 2020 - -
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

{INR In Lakhs) 

Parttculars 
For the Year ended For the Year ended 

March 31. 2020 March 31, 2019 

A. Cash Flow from Opera!i"! Actfvftfea 
Net profrt betare tax (467.43) (779.30) 

Adjustments: 

Depreciation and amorusation 33.00 31 17 

Finance costs 303.00 127.80 

Otl>e< Income (142.63) (275.82) 

Interest lnr:;ome !15.54) (14.13) 
Allowance for credrtlosses 0 .85 0 .04 

Sundl)' S..Janc;e wrd1on oH 59275 

Fair value gain I (los.s) on quoted equity mtrumonta . (35.53) 

DNidend Income Received (6.39) 

Operating profit/(loss) before working changu 297.62 (945.77) 

Movemant rn working capital 

Detteasel(lncrease) In Trade receivables 171 .18 (152-25) 

lncreo!$(1/(Doc:r'oas.c) In Trade Payables 88.93 (399.59) 
lncreasef(Decrease) In Othef CunenL U&b!lltles 1,720.97 (3.55<.33) 

lncreasei(Decreas.e) In Other Non Current Financtal Llabttittes (42.69) 
lncr'GaMI(Dec:reasB) h1 Other Cuno:nt Fll"'anciat Uttbillbes . 
Decreasel(lncrease) in Olhef Currenl Anancia.f Assets 2~ (31.78) 

Oetteasel(lnerease) l.n Other Cunenr Assors (38.53) 2S7.68 

1ne1ease I (Decrease) ln Long Torm ProvlsWns 1121 (6 .04) 
Increase I (Oeerease) In St'lort TEKm Provisaons (0 .89) 9 .81 

Oecrease/(lncroa$.0) In Othat Non Curm'nt Finono.aJ AB.Sel:$ . 1.037.83 

Deeteasel(lncrease) in Financial assets · Loans (948.64) 1.866.98 

Oecreasel{lncreas.e) in Other Non Current As.sets (25.48) . 
Cash Generated From Operations 1,235.88 (1,917.45) 

Income l<~>es pald (~of re1unc!s) 47 52 (78.14) 

~ cash flow from ope-rating acllvilles (A) 1,283.40 (1,996.60) 

B. Cash Flow trom Inves-ting Activities--
Purchase or c:onstrudiOO o f Property, Plant & Equipment 

~ndudlng capital WOik·in·progrO!&) (13.38) (56.53) 

Investment in Equl1y lnstnJments (610.26) (2.720.53) 

Sale of lnves.!!!Jents in eQUity instruments of other entitles . 2,318 .22 

Interest Income received 158.17 289.95 -
DIVidend Income 639 . 
Net C.a.sh uaed in lnvosll.ng ActiVities ~B) (459.09! (168.90! 

C. Cash Flow from financing Activities 

Proceeds froml (Repayment of) Non-Current Financ:ial Borrowings (net) (471.12) 2,294.51 

Finance coSts (303.00) ()._27.80) ---
Net Cash from Financing ActlviUes (C) (774.12) 2,166.71 

Net cash lneroasel(decrease) i n c:aah and cash equlvaJanls (A,..B+C) 50.18 2.21 

Cash and cash equcvalenls at the beglnnmg ol lha yeat 254.58 252.37 
Cash and cash equrvaJenl$ at lhe end ot tho ye(tr 304 76 254.58 

Net cash lnerease/(dectease) In ca•h and cash equivalent 50.18 2.21 

Note : The above Statement ot Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' &s set out In lnd AS 7 
'Statement of Cash Flows·. 
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As per our repor1 o f even date anaclled 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 
Chartered Accountants 

Fi rm Registration Number: 124850W 

Sdl-

Rlshl Sekhrl 

Partner 
Membership Number:126656 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : June 26, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/- Sd/-

Govlnd Patodla Mushtaq Shaikh 

ManaQJng Director Director 

DIN : 02794184 DIN : 08144509 

Sdl- Sdl· 
Swatl Gupta Deepak Nayak 

Company Secretary Director & CFO 
DIN : 08406471 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : June 26, 2020 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

A : Equity Share Capital (Equity shares of INR 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully paid) 

Note Numbers Amount 
Part1culars No (In Lakhs) (In Lakhs) 

Balance as at tho Aprl11 , 2018 
Chang as In equity shoro capital dutlng1he yoar 2018·2019 

Balance a.s at March 31, 2019 
Changes In equtty sharo ~lal during lhe year 2019·2020 

Balance at the Match 31 , 2020 

B : Other Equity 

Balance as at April 1, 201 B 

Totm Compt'eOOnslv& lncome foe 1M yeas 
Prahl / ~Loss) fOf' the year 

Other Comprehensive looome 

Balance a-s at March 31.2019 
Total Comprehensrve Income tor the ye& 
Proft1 /(~) tor tho year 
Other Comprehensive lncome 

Balance as at M'arch 31, 2020 

151.28 1,512.76 

14 151.28 1,512.76 

14 151.28 1,512.76 

(INR in Lakhs) 

Reserve and Surplus 
Note·~ TotaiOther 
No General Secunl1es Relatned EQUity 

Reserve Prem1um Eamtngs 

30.00 2,G40.00 361.42 2,431.42 

(601.47) (601.47) 

(39Q.63) (390.63) 

15 30.00 2.040.00 1630.66) 1,439.32 

(667.05) (667 05) 
(638,52) (638.66) 

15 30.00 2.040.00 (1 ,!m.32) 133.58 

The notes referred to above are an Integral part of the nna.nclat slatements. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1 :Group Overview 

Paramone Concepts Limited (the "Company") is a Public Limited Company domiciled In India and incorporated 
on December 21 , 1992 under the provisions of Companies Acl, 1956. 

The company has a wholly owned subsidiary In the name ol "Choice Really Private Limited" together are 
considered as (the "Group"). The Group is engaged in the business of multl·expertise consulting. The Group is 
preferred partner for mega projects Involving direct government & ministries, unilateral & multilateral 
companies, further company Is an active members of some of the biggest projects In the fields of economic and 
urban development across the planet. Company also excel in rehabilitation & resettlement plans, raising state 
level municipal development funds. designing a-governance strategy, housing & social development projects. 
bind issues helping raise funds &social development. The equity shares of the company were listed on the SSE 
Limited. 

The consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue in accordance with a resofulion of the Board of 
Directors on June 26, 2020. 

Note 2 : Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

(I) Statement of compliance 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 
("lnd·AS'1 under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except lor certain financial instruments 
which are measured at lair values, the provisions of the Companies Act , 2013 C Act') (to the extent notified) and 
guidelines issued by the Securilies and Exchange Board oi India (SEBI). The lnd·AS are prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Rules, 2015 and 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

The Group had adopted the Indian Accounting standards in accordance with lnd·AS 101 "First time adoption of 
Indian Accounting Standards" during the year ended March 31, 2018. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
Initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change In the accounting policy 
hitherto in usa. 

(ii) Basis of Consolidated 

The Company consolidates entitles wh1ch 11 owns or controls. The consolidated financial statements comprise 
the financial statements of the company and i ts subsidiary Choice Realty Private Umiled. Control exists when 
the parent has power over the entity. is exposed, or has nghts, to variable returns from its involvement with the 
entity and has the ability to affect those reiUrns by using Its power over the enllly. Power is demonstrated 
through existing rights that give the abihly to direct relevant activities, those which significantly allectlha enbty's 
returns. The Subsidiary Company is consolidated from the date control commences until the date control 
ceases. 
The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intra-group 
balances and transactions Including unrealized gain/ loss from such transactions are eliminated upon 
consolidation. These financial statements a.re prepa.red by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the 
Group. 
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(iii) Basis of preparation 

Tha financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except the following: 

certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at lair value; 
assets held for sale· measured at fair value less cost to sell: 
defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at lair value; and 

The functional currency of the Group is the Indian Rupee. These financial statements are presented In Indian 
Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise stated. 

(iv) Current versus non-current classification 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on currenV non-currant classification. An 
asset is treated as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal 
operating cycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the 
reporting period and cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period . All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when It is expected to be senled in normal operating cycle, it ls held primarily for the purpose 
of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period and there is no unconditional 
right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The Group 
classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Del erred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle Is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In cash 
and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

B. Useotestlmates 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with lnd·AS requires management to 
make estimates. judgments and assumptions. These estimates. judgments and assumptions affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. the disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that require crltical accounting 
estimates Involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions In these financial 
statements have been disclosed in note C below. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes In estimates are made as management 
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes In estimates are reflected in 
the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, i f material, their effects are disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements. 

C. Critical accounting estimates 

(I) Income taxes 
The Group's major tax jurisdiction is India. SlgniRcant judgements are involved in determining the provision for 
income taxes, Including amount expected to be paid/ recovered for uncertain tax positions. Also refer to Note 
12. 

(II) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in 
respect of periodic depreciation Is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected uselulllfe and 
the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are 
determined by management at the time the asset Is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each 
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of 
future events, which may Impact their life, such as changes In technology. 
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(iii) Defined benefit plans 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the 
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation Involves making various 
assumptions thai may differ from actual developments In the future. These include the determination of the 
discount rate. future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and 
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensttive to changes in these assumptions. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

The parameter most subject to change Is the dtscount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate tor 
plans operated in India, the management considers the Interest rates of government bonds in currencies 
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at 
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary Increases and gratuity increases are based on 
expected future Inflation rates. 

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 35. 

(iv) Fair value measurementoffinancial instruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded In the balance sheet cannot be 
measured based on quoted pnces 1n active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. 
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a 
degree of judgement Is required in establishing lalr values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such 
as liquidity risk, credit risk and volalllity. Changes In assumptions about these factors could affect the repor1ed 
lair value of financial instruments. See Note 29·33 for further disclosures. 

(I) Revenue from contracts with customers 

The Group's contracts with customers include promises to provide the goods & services to the customers. 
Judgement is required to determine the transaction price tor the contract. The transaction price could be either 
fixed amount ol customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as schemes. incentives, 
cash discounts etc. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only lo 
the extent that II is highly probable that a signiftcanl reversal In the amount of cumulallve revenue recognized 
will not occur and is reassessed al the end of the each period. 

Estimates of rebates and discounts are sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Group's past experience 
regarding reiUrns and rebate entitlements may not be representative of customer's actual returns and rebate 
enmlements in the future. 

Costs to obtain a contract are generally expensed as incurred. The assessment olthis criteria requires the 
application of judgement, in particular when considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to 
satisfy luture performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered. 

D. Property, Plantand Equipment 

Land (including Land Developments) is carried at historical cost. All other items of property. plant and equipment 
are stated In the consolidated balance sheet at cost hlstoncalless accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Such cost onctudes the cost of raplacmg part of the plant and equipment and borrowing 
costs for long·term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

Properties in the course of construction lor production. supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less 
any recognized Impairment loss. Cost Includes professional lees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs 
capitalized in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate 
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categories of property. plant and equipment when completed and ready lor intended use. Depreciation of these 
assets. on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their Intended 
use. 

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment (excluding freehold land) are measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of property, plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced in intervals. the Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with 
specific useful lives and depreciation respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed. its cost is 
recognized In the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement cost only II the recognition crfletia 
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 
Incurred. 

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and land developments) 
less their residual va.lues over the useful lives, using the straight·line method ('SLM"). Management believes that 
the uselullives of the assets reflect the periods over which these assets are expected to be used, which are as 
follows: 

Deswphon of Asset Est;mated uselul lives 

BuikUngs 

CompuiGIS and Pnnler$, lnclud1ng Computer Penpherals (Including serve( and networking) 

Office Equlpments 

Furniture and Fbcturos 

Motor Vehicles {Including buses end truck$) 

30 years 

5 yeats 

10 yeats 

8 ·20yeOI'$ 

Depreciation on additions/ deletions to property, plant and equipment is calculated pro-rata from/ up to the date of 
such additions/ deletions. 

Assels Individually costing tess than As. 5,000 are fully depreciated In the year or acquisition. 

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The residual values. useful life and 
depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure that the amount, method and period of 
depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expecled pallem of consumption of the future 
economic benefits embodied in the items of property. plant and equipment. 

An Item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or rel.iremenl of an item 
ol property, plant and equipment is determined as lhe difference between sale proceeds and the carrying amount 
ol the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 

E. Investment p roperties 

Investment properties are properties that Is held for long· term rentals yields or for capital appreciation (including 
property under construction for such purposes) or both, and that Is not occupied by the Group. Is classmed as 
investment property. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition. investment properties are slated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. if any. 

Though the Group measures Investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment 
property Is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an 
accredited external independent valuer. 

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic bene lit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount or the asset Is recognised In profit or loss In the period of 
derecognitlon. 
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F. Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in 
excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
less accumulated Impairment losses. II any. When lhe net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities acquired exceeds the cost of business acquisition, a gain is recognized immediately in net 
profit In the statemenl of profit and loss. Goodwill is tested lor impairment annually or when event of 
circumstances indicate that the Implied fair value of goodwill is less than i ts carrying value 

Intangible asset including intangible assets under development are stated at cost, net of accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assels acquired separately are measured on 
Initial recognilion at cost. The amortization period and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each 
financial year. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as eilher finite or indefinite. tnlangible assets with finite lives 
are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed lor impairment whenever there is an indication that the 
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and lhe amortisation method for an intangible asset 
with a finite usafut life are reviewed at feast at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life 
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied In the asset are considered to 
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. 
The amortisation expense on Intangible assets with Infinite lives Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
unless such eKpenditure forms part ol carrying value of another asset. 

G. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

Assessment Is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible and 
Intangible) may be Impaired. For the purpose of assessing Impairment, the smallest Identifiable group of assets 
that generates cash Inflows trom continuing use that are largely independent of the cash Inflows from other assets 
or groups of assets. Is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such Indication eKists, an estimate of the 
recoverable amount of the asseV cash generating unit Is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their 
recoverable amount are wrlnen down to the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the profit or 
loss. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's net selling price and its value in use. 
Value In use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an 
asset and from its disposal at the end of ats useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to 
whether there as any indtcation that an ampairmentloss recognased lor an asset in prior accounting periods may no 
longer exist or may have decreased. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

H. Flnanclallnstruments 

A financial Instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enllty and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. Financial Instruments are funher divided in two parts viz. Fmancial Assets and 
Financial liabilities. 

Part I· Financial Assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation 
or convention In the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade dale, i.e .• the date that the 
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
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Financial Assets at amortised cost: 

A Financial Assets is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 
flows. and 

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on spec if ted dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and lees or costs that 
are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is Included in finance income in the profit or loss. The tosses 
arisinglrom impairment are recognised In the prof~ or loss. 

Financial Assets at FVTOCI {Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income) 

A Financial Assets Is classified as at the FVTOCI If following criteria are met: 

• The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows (i.e. SPPI) and 
selling the financial assets 

Financial Instruments Included within the FVTOCI category are measured Initially as well as at each reporting 
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized In the other comprehensive Income (OCt). However, the 
Group recognizes interest income, Impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss In the 
statement of profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI 
is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and toss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt 
Instrument Is reported as Interest income using the EIA method. 

Financial Assets at FVTPL (Fair Value through Profit or Loss) 

FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments . Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria 
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, Is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition. the Group may elect to designate a financial Instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or 
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only If doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch1. The Group has not designated 
any financial instrument as at FVTPL. 

Financial instruments Included within the FVTPL category are measured at lair value with all changes necognlzed 
In the Statement of Pro lit and Loss. 

Equity investments 

All equity investments in scope of lnd·AS 1 09 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held lor 
trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acqulrer in a business combination to which lnd·AS 103 
applies are classified as at FVTPL For all other equity Instruments, the Group may make an Irrevocable election 
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election 
on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification Is made on initial recogni tion and Is Irrevocable. If the 
Group decides to classlly an equity instrument as at FVTOCI. then all lair value changes on the instrument, 
excluding dividends. are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on 
sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments 
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Investment in subsidiaries Is carried at cost In the llnancial statements. 
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c) De-recognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
prfmarilyde·recognised (i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet) when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have e~plred, or 

• The Group has transferred Its rights to receive cash llows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 
the received cash llows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass·through' arrangement; and 
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of 
the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash llows from an asset or has entered into a pass· through 
arrangement, It evaluates If and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards or ownership. When It has 
neifher transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the 
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. 
In that case. the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 

Continuing Involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset Is measured at the lower of 
the original carrying amount of the asset and the m~imum amount of consideration that the Group could be 
required to repay. 

d) Impairment of llnanclal assets 

In accordance with tnd·AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model tor measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

Financial assets that are debt instruments. and are measured at amortised cost e.g .. loans, deposits. trade 
receivables and bank balanc-e; 
Financial assets that are debt Instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 
Lease receivables under lnd·AS 116 
Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset !hat result from 

transactions that are within the scope of lnd-AS t8 (referred to as 'contractual revenue receivables' in these 
financial statements) 
• Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL 
• Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL 

The Group follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of lmpairmenl loss allowance on trade receivables or 
contract revenue receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credi t risk. Rather, it 
recognises Impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from Its Initial 
recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that 
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. II credit risk has not 
Increased significantly. 12-monlh ECL Is used to provide lor impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased 
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that 
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since Initial recognition, then the Group reverts to recognising 
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting I rom all 
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument The 12-month ECL is a portion of the 
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting dale. 

PARAMONE CONCEPTS UWTED 



ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance w~h the contract 
and aU the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 
When estimating the cash flows, the Group considers: 

• All contractual terms of the financial instrument (Including prepayment. extension, call and similar options) 
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, In rare cases when the expected life of the financial 
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Group uses the remaining contractual term of the financial 
Instrument; and 

• Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credrl enhancements that are integral to the contractual 
terms 

As a pracllcal expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio ol 
its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life 
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward·looking esllmates. At every reporting date, the historical 
observed default rates are updated and changes In the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the 
Group estimates the following provision matrix at the reporting date: 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in 
the statement of prom and loss. This amount is grouped under the head 'other expenses'. The balance sheet 
presentation for various financial Instruments Is described below: 

Financial assets measured as at amortised cos~ contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL 
is presented as an allowance, i.e .. as an Integral part of the measurement of those assets In the balance sheet. 
The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Unlifthe asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not 
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts : ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, 
I.e. as a liability. 

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already renected at fair value, impairment 
allowance Is not further reduced from Its value. Rather, ECL amount Is presented as 'accumulated imparrment 
amounf in the OCt. 

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment toss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis 
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that Is designed to enable 
significant Increases in credit risk to be ldentilled on a timely basis. 

The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit· impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial 
assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. 

Part II· Financial Liabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at lair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly aurlbutable transaction costs. 

Financial liabilities are classified, at iniuat recognition, as financial liabilities at larr value through prollt or toss, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as 
appropriate. 
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b) Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon innial recognition as at lair value through profit or loss. Rnanclal llabihtles are classified 
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes 
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging Instruments in 
hedge relationships as defined by lnd-AS 109. Separated embedded derivallves are also classified as held for 
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon Initial recognition at fair value through profit or toss Is designated as such at 
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in lnd-AS 109 are sallsfied. For liabilities designated as 
FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ 
loss are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the 
cumulative gain or iosswithin equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

This is the category most relevant to the Group. Alter lnlllal recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are 
subsequenlly measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised In profit or loss 
when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amorllsed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thai 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 
This category generally applies to borrowings. 

Prelerence shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are class»ied as liabilities under 
borrowings. The dividends on these preference shares, if any are recognised in the profit or loss as finance cost. 

Financial guarantee contracts 

Flnanclal guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to 
reimburse the holder lor a loss it incurs because the specified debtor falls to make a payment when due in 
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability 
at lair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the Issuance of the guarantee. 
Subsequently, the llabfllty is measured at the higher ol the amount of loss allowance determined as per 
impairment requirements ollnd-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

c) De-recognition 

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an exlsbng financial liability Is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substanbally modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de­
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised In the statement of profit or loss. 

d) Offsel11ng of financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
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to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

1. Derlvatlveflnanclallnstruments and hedge accounting 

lni1ial recognition and subsequent measurement: 

The Group uses derivative financial Instruments, such as forward currency contracts and Interest rate swaps to 
hedge its foreign currency risks and Interest rate risks, respectively. 

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at lair value on the dale on which a derivative 
contract is entered Into and are subsequently re-measured at fa•r value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets 
when the fair value Is positive and as financ.al liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under fnd·AS 109 are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the lair value of denvalives are taken direclly to profit 
or loss. 

J . Recognition of Revenue 

The Group derives revenues primarily from engineering, procurement and construction facilities for Infrastructure 
projects. 

lnd AS 1 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" provides a control· based revenue recognition model and 
provides a live step application approach lobe followed tor revenue recognition. 

Identify the contract(s) with a customer: 
Identify the performance obligalions; 
Determine the transacOon price; 
Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations: 
Recognize revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligations 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the 
customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled In exchange tor 
those goods or services. Revenue is recognized when no significant uncertainty exists as to its realization or 
collection. 

The amount recognised as revenue in its Statement of Profit and Loss Is exclusive of Goods and Service Tax and 
is net of discounts. 

Contract balances 

Trade receivables 

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the 
passage of time Is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial 
assets in section (H) Financial Instruments. 

Contract liabilities 

A contract liabilhy is the obligation to perform the services as agreed with the customer for which the Group has 
received consideration (or an amount of consideration Is due) from the customer. A contract liability Is recognised 
when the payment Is made or the payment Is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as 
revenue when the Group performs under the contract. 

Export benefits are accounted for in the year of exports based on ellgibnity and when there is no uncertainty in 
receiving the same. 
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K. Other Income 

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been 
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably). 

Interest Income from financial assets is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the 
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis. by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective Interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that asset's net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

L Provisions and Contingent liabilities 

General 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event. it Is probable that an outflow of resources embodyil\9 economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount ol the obligation. When the Group expects some or 
all of a provision to be reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement ol profit and 
loss net of any reimbursement. 

lithe ellect of the time value ol money Is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropnate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control olthe Group or a present 
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation. The Group does not !recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence In the financial 
statements. Payments In respect or such liabilities, II any are shown as advances. 

M. Accounting lor Taxation of Income 

(i) Current taxes 

Income tax expense is recognized ln net profit in the statement of profit and Joss except to the extent that it relates 
to Items recognized directly In other comprehensive income or equity. In which case It Is recognized In other 
comprehensive income or equity respectively. Current income tax is recognized at the amount expected to be 
paid to or recovered from the tax authorities. using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The Group offsets, on a year to year basls, the current tax assets 
and liabilities, where It has legally enforceable right to do so and where It intends to settle such assets and 
liabrlities on a net basrs. 

On March 30, 2019. Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in lnd AS 12. ' Income 
Taxes·. in connection with accounting lor dividend distribution taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall 
recognise the Income tax consequences of dividends In profit or loss. other comprehensive income or equity 
according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. Effective date for application 
of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The effect on adoption would be 
insignificant in the financial statements. 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified lnd AS 12 Appendtx C, Uncertainty over Income Tax 
Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination ol taxable profit (or loss), lax bases, unused 
tax losses. unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under lnd AS 
t 2. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting 

PARAMONE CONCEPTS UWTED 



each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan lo use in their income lax 
filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment 
when determining taxable prolll (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. 

The standard permits two possible methods oltransltion: 

I) Full retrospective approach- Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prtor 
reporting pertod presented in accordance with lnd AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight 

Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusllng equity on initial 
application, without adjusting comparatives. 

The effective date for adoption of lnd AS 12 Appendix Cis annual periods beginning on or after April 1. 2019. The 
Group will adopt the standard on April! , 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effectln equity on the date 
of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives. The effect on adoption ol lnd AS 12 
Appendix Cis insignificant in the financial statements. 

(i i) Deferred taxes 

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities In the financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted tor using 
the balance sheet liability method. Deterred tax liabilities are generally recognized lor all taxable temporary 
differences, and deferred lax assets are generally recognized lor all deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences 
can be utilized. Such assets and liablhties are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or 
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that 
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

Deterred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Del erred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction 
either in OCI or directly in equity. 

The carrying amount of del erred lax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet dale and reduced to the extent that 
it Is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part or the asset to be 
recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabililles and when they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
Group intends to settle Its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on lax rates (and lax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. 

N. Fair value measurement 

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at lair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to settle a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement dale, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique 

In estimating the lair value of an asset or liability . the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or 
liability if market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in 
their economic best interest. 
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole: 

Levell ·Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets lor Identical assets or liabilities 

level 2 ·Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable 

level 3 ·Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpulthat is significant to the falr value measurement 
Is unobservable 

For assets and liabllllies that are recognised In the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowestlevel lnputthat is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
repcrtlng period. 

The Group's Management determines the pclic,ies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, 
such as derivative Instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring 
measurement, such as assets held for distribution In discontinued operations. 

This note summarises accounting policy lor fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given In the 
relevant notes. 

0. Borrowing Costs 

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets. which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended 
use or sate, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use or sale. All other borrowtng costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and loss in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

P.Leases 

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified lnd AS 116, Leases. tnd AS 116 will replace the 
existing leases Standard, lnd AS 17 leases. The Standard sets out the princtples for the recognition. 
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e .. the lessee and the lessor. 
lnd AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and ltabilities 
for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, 
operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profi t & Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced 
disclosure requirements for tessees. lnd AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements 
In lnd AS 17. The effective date for adoption of lnd AS 1161sannualperlodsbeginningonoralter Aprill , 2019. 

The standard permits two possible methods oftransition: 

Full retrospective • Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying lnd AS 8 Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounling Estimates and Errors 

Modified retrospective· Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of Initially applying the Standard recognized at 
the date ollnitial application. 

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the 
remaining lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as: 

a Its carrying amount as II the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at 
lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application 
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b. An amount equal to the lease liability. adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments 
related to that lease recognized under lnd AS 171m mediately before the date of initial application. 

Certain practical expedients are avallable under both the methods. The Company does not have any impact on 
account of this amendment 

0. Employee Benefits 

a) ShorHerm obligations 

UablliUes lor wages and salaries, including non· monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect ol 
employee's services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the undiscounted amounts of the 
benefits expected to be paid When the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee 
benefit obligations In the balance sheet. 

b) Other Long-term employee benefit obligations 

The liabilities for compensated absences (annual leave) which are not expected to be settled wholly within t 2 
months after the end of the period in which the employee render the related service are presented as non-current 
employee benefits obligations. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to 
be made in respect ot services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the Projected 
Untt Credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end ol the reporting period on 
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms olthe related obligations. Re·measurements as a 
result of experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions (i.e. actuarial losses/ gains) are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The obligations are presented as current in the balance sheet, if the Group does not have an unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is 
expected to occur. 

c) Post-employment obligations 

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes: 

(i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity 

(II) Defined contlibution plans such as provident fund. 

Defined benefit plan· Gratuity Obligations 

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan") covering eligible employees in 
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement, death. incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the 
respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment 

The liability or asset recognised In the balance sheet In respect of defined benefit gratuity plans Is the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefit obligation is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is detennlned by discounting the estimated future cash 
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have a terms 
approximating to the terms of the obligation 

The net interest cost, calculated by applymg the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation 
and the fair value of the plan assets. is recognised as employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and 
loss. 
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Remeasurements gains and losses arising tram experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions 
are recognised In the other comprehensive Income In the year In which they arise and are not subsequently 
reclassmed to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Changes In the present value of the dell ned benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments 
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The Group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulatory 
authoritles. The Group has no further obligations once the contribulions have been paid. The contributions are 
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense 
when they are due. 

On March 30, 2019, Ministry ol Corporate Affairs Issued amendments to lnd AS 19, 'Employee Benefits' , In 
connection with accounting lor plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an 
enttty to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the 
period afler a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service 
cost, or a gain or loss on settlement. any reduction In a surplus. even if that surplus was not previously recognised 
because of the ompact of the asset ceiling. Effective date tor application of thos amendment os annual periOd 
beginning on or after April!, 2019. The Group does not have any impact on account ol this amendment. 

R. Earnings Per Share 

Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit lor the year a"ributable to equity 
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to lake into 
account: 

The alter income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potentoal equity shares, 
and 

Weighted average number of equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion ol all 
the dilutive potential equity. 

S. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and ca.sh equivalent In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short·term deposits with 
an original maturity ot three months or less from the date of acquisition, which are subject to an Insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

T. lnsuranceclaims 

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted /expected to be admitted and to the extent 
that there is no uncertainty In receiving the claims. 

U. Segment Reporting 

The Group Identifies operating segments based on the Internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision· 
maker. 

The chief operating decision-maker, who Is responsible lor allocating resources and assessing performance of 
the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decoslons. 

The accounting policies adopted lor segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Group. 
Segment revenue, segment expenses have been Identified to segments on the basis ol their relationship to the 
operating activities of the segment. 

PARAMONE CONCEPTS UWTED 



PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 3: Property, Plant and Equipment 

(INA in Lakhs) 

Particulars Olf•cc Compu!OI Furn1ture and Motor ~ OIIK:.o Total Cap1lal 
Prt::mscs Fixtures Veh1cles cqwpmont WIP 

' 

GroS-S Carrying Amount as at Aprilt , 2018 53.82 2.56 3.21 119.20 7.82 186. 61 124. 65 
Additions 1 T ran.sr or 0 .32 53.94 227 56.53 

Oosposals 

As at March 31, 2019 53.82 256 3.53 173.14 10.<19 2.43.14 124.65 

Additions I Transfer 12.64 0 .73 13.38 
o,sposafs 

As at March 31, 2020 53.82 15.20 4 .27 173.14 10.09 256.52 124.65 

Ace:umutatod depr~clatlon as at AprU 1, 2018 5.60 2.56 1.05 38.70 5.28 53.20 

Ocp<oalrulon charge during the year 0.85 0.31 16.70 1.28 19.14 

Accumulated depreclation on delelion.s 

As at March 31, 2019 6 .45 2.56 1.36 55.40 6.56 72.34 

Oapreciation charge during the year 0.85 1.32 0.40 20.56 1.32 24.45 

Accumulated dcprcc)abOn on detctions 

As at March 31, 2020 7 .30 3.88 1.76 75.96 7.88 96.79 

Net carrying amount aa at March 31 , 2020 46.52 11 .32 2.5\ 97.18 221 159.73 124.65 

Not canylng amount as at March 31 , 2019 47.37 2 .17 117]4 3.53 170.80 124.65 

Net canylng amount as at Aprn 1. 2018 48.22 2.16 80.50 254 133.41 124.65 

-
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 4 : Intangible Assets 

(INA in Lakhs) 

PartiCUlars Compuler Soltware 
I 

Gross Carrying Amount as at April 1, 2018 60.15 

Additions I Trans.lor 

01$po$als 

As at March 31 , 2019 60.15 

Additions I Trans.fct 

OtSposals 

As at March 31 . 2020 60.15 

Accumulated amortJsat.lon and Impairment 

As at April 01 . 2018 39.57 

Amofttsauon charge durln9 the year 12.03 

OISposols 

As ot Mon:h 31 , 2019 51.60 

Amotllsabon charge during the year 8.55 

DISposals 

As at March 31 . 2o-20 60.15 

Net carrying amount as at Marth 31. 2020 {0.00) 

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 8 .55 

Net carrying amount as at April1, 2018 2().58 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 5 : Non-Current Financial Assets • Investments 
(INA In lakhs) 

As at As al 
Partoculars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 
a) Unquoted 
Investment In Equity Instrument$ 

4,40,000 Equity Shares (March 31, 2019 ' No) ol Goet SocurlllO$ Privatallmitad ol 
As. 1 001· eacl1fully paid up 

b) Quoted 
Investment In Equity Shares 

Investment canicd al Fair Value through Othef' Contprohenslve Income (OC~} 
2,10,000 Equ~y Shares (Marcl13t, 2019 • 2. t0,000shares) ol 
Bin Energy Systems Limlled of Rs. 1/- eac:h fully pad up 
Nil Equity Shares (March 31. 2019 • I.OO.OOOshares) of 
Chemlech Industrial Valves limited of As. 1 0/· each fully pald up -
6.000 Eq01ty Shares (Marcl131. 2019 • 6.000 shares) ol 
GbbaJ Space TOOh.nologles.UmiiOd of R.s. 10/• each luUy paid up 
6.000 Equity Shares (M8Jcl13t. 2019 - 78.000 shares) ol 
Globe lntemalional C8Jners Lrmited of Ro. 1 0/· each fully paid up 
5,000 E.q-urty Shares (Ma1ctl 31, 2019 · 5,000 shares) ol 

Hasmony Coprllll &lfv\ceslnlled ol As. 10/· ea<h fully peld up 
5.25,200 Equrly Shares (Marcl13 t. 20t9 - 5,54,000 shares) of 
KhernanJ ~nbutors & Marketlngl.Jmlled ot Rs. 51- each fully 

pard up 
2.60.000 Equity Shares (Morcl13t , 2019 • 2.40.000 shares) ol 
Marlne Eleg!ricals (India) Umited of As. 101- each tully paid up 

10,000 E:qurty Shares (Mattlh 31, 2019 • 10.000 sharos) oi 
Pecos Hotels And Pubs llm~ed ol R"' tO/· each lui~ peld up 
5,00,000 Equity Shares (Marcl13t. 2019 • 5.00,000 shares) ol 
Sean Staols llmltl!d of As. 1 01· oach fully peld up 
48.000 Equoty Shares (Mancl131 . 2019 • 48.000 shares) ol 
Supreme (India) lmpex Umlledol As 10/· eacl11uRy paid up 
4,84,983 Equrty Shams (March 31. 2019 • 7,24,983shares) of 
Upsurge Investment & Flnance Umlted of As. 101· each fuiJy 
peld up 
4,50,000 Equ¢y Shares (March 31, 2019 · 4 ,50,000 shares) of 

Klsan Mouldingsllmr1od ol As. ICll· each fully pt>id up 
2.43,692 Equity Shares (M8Jcl131. 2019 ·Nil shares) ol 
Sreeteathers Lln'uted of As. 10/- each lulty paid up 

Investment tarried at Fair Yaluo through Profit or Loss Account (FVTPL} 

732 Equrty Shares (MarCh 31. 2019 : 10.000) ol H.G. Infra EngMetlng limited ol 
As. 1 01· eocl11ully pe<l up 
1,03,500 Equ1ty Share-s (March 31, 2019 : 70,808} of Slvee PushkBI 

Chemicals & Fertll sers limited of As. tO/· each fully paid up 
14,89,196 Equity Shares (March 3t, 2019 : 8.82.000) of 

Vakrongee Umaed of Rs. 1/· each luly paid up 

Total 

Notes: 

440.00 

1.05 81.90 

Nil 8.50 

3.00 3.68 

1.20 18.49 

0.26 0.25 

787.80 941 .80 

234,13 2S4.40 

5.99 7.15 

80.00 190.75 

13.08 13.73 

54.12 143.18 

32.40 204.30 

303.40 

1.25 28.32 

76.49 \16.51 

294.88 343.39 

2,329.03 2,356.32 

(1) lnvestmen1 at h,llr value tlvough profl1 and to:;$ rellec1 tnvostment in quoted and unquoted equdy secuniiGS 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 

Note 6 : Non-Current Assets • Others 

(INA In lak!ls) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31 . 2020 March 31 . 2019 

Advara given to vendors 25.48 

Total 25.48 

Note 7- Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

The major components of Del erred Tax Assets/( liabilities) as recognized in the 
financial statements are as follows: 

(INR in Lak!ls) 

As at As at 
PartiCulars March 31. 2020 March 31 . 2019 

Oeftmod Tax Assetsl(llabUiti&.&) ard1ng on Bccount ot 11mtng ddf6f'enCGs in: 
Propeny. Plant and Equlpmentlncludlng Intangible Assets· Deprecoa11on 
G<atulty 
Pwference Shares 
Allowance for cftldd tosses (ECL) 
Unused T8J< LOsses 

MAT 

Fair Vatue Loss on lnvca.tmcnt thtogh OCt 

Oeferred Tu Assets (net) 

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets I (Liabilities) 

(4.18) 

5.85 

0.37 

16.00 

0.36 

18.40 

(8.35) 

2.80 

0.15 
200.71 

195.31 

(INA in Lak!ls) 

P rt1 I r DepreetattOn Graturty Preference MAT ECL Unused Total 8 cu a 5 Shares Tax Losses 

As ot April 1, 20 18 (11 .93) 1.79 26.92 0.15 17.33 

(Charged) I Credttod: 

To Profit ot Loss 3.58 0.87 (26.92) 0.00 200.71 378.54 

To Other ComprehenSIVe Income 0. 15 0.15 

As at March"31 , 2019 (8.35) 2.81 0.15 200.71 396.02 
(Cherged) I CrodJtod: 

To Proht Ot Loss 4.18 3.04 16.00 022 (200 71) (377.98) 

To Other Comprehonslve tnoome 0.36 0.36 

As at March 31 , 2020 (4.18) 6.21 16.00 0.37 18.AO 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

Note 8 ·Current Financial Assets · Trade Receivables 

(INR In Lal<hs) 

As at As at 
Par1lculars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Trade Aeeelvables oonsktered good · Secured 
Trade Rcoelvabta:s considered good· Unsecured 

Trade Receivables wtlich have sSgnifcant Increase In Cre<frt Risk 
Lass: Allowance for aedit loS:SC$ 
Trade Receivables · credit •mpalred 

Total 

Note 9 • Current Financial Assets • Cash and Cash Equivalents 

164.12 

1.42 
(1.42) 

164.12 

336.14 

0 .57 

(0.57) 

336.14 

{INR In Lakhs) 

As at As at 
, Part1cutars March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019 

Bank Balances 
• In C\Jfronl accounts 

· In tuced deposits wkth maturity ol ~s •han 3 months 

CO$hon Hand 

Total 

25.11 

276.95 

2 .70 

304.76 

11 .66 

240.31 

2.62 

254.5,'1 

Short· term deposits are made lor varying periods or between one day and three months. depending on the immediate 
cash requirements ol the Company, and eam Interest at the applicable sh0r1·term deposit bank rates. 

Note 10 • Current Financial Assets • Loans 
(tNR In Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Unsecured, considered good 

Other Rece<Vablos 
Advance to Rolated Parties 

Total 

Sub-<:J.a.salfleation ot Loa.na 

Loan ReceNableS considered good • Secured 
Loan AecefVabtos eonsidered good • Unsecured 
LDan ReoehlobleS wlllch have signllleant lnctOMe In Cledil Risk 

Loan Recervablo$ • Credd Impaired 

Note 11 • Current Financial Assets· Others 

3.353.53 2,438.94 

3.353.53 2.438.94 

3,3$353 2,438.94 

(tNR In Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Par11culars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Security Depo$11$ 
Advances lO Employees 

Total 

79.43 

3 .02 

82.45 

81.46 

3.19 

84.65 
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Note 12 : Current Tax Assets (Net): 

(INR in lakhs) 

As at As at 
Parttculars March 31. 2020 March 31 . 2019 

Income Tax Assets {net of Pravlsion of Ta.) 162.73 232.61 

Total 162.73 232.61 

The gross movement In the current Income tax asseV (liability) for the year ended March 31 , 2020 
and March 31 , 2019ls as follows: 

(INA in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Parttculars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Net current Income tax asseU (l ability) at the beglnl\lng 
Current & e.arter income tax expense 
MAT credit entttlement 
Income tax paid (net ol refund, ol any) 

Net cvrren1 1ncome tax asseV (liabiUty) at the end 

232.61 
(6.36) 

(16.00) 

(47.52) 

162.73 

154.47 

78.14 

232.61 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate 
for March 31, 2019 and March 2018: 

(INA in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Parttculars March 31. 2020 March 31 . 2019 

Acoounting prolil before tax from con11nuing operations 
Acoounhng profil before mcome tax 
At India's s1atuiOfY lncomo tax raJ<~ ol 28.60'!0 (March 31 , 2019: 31.20%) 
AdJustment-s of lax effect of aJiowable and non--allowable Income and expenses: 
Olher Items (Including Round OH} 
Current tax expense reported tn Statement of profit and los a 
Deferred Tax Expenses for the yea,r 

Income Tex Expense 

Note 13 : Other Current Assets 

134.66 

134.66 

22.36 

22.38 

177.27 

199.64 

(771.96) 

(771.96) 

(177.8S) 

(177.83) 

(tNR in lakhs) 

As at As at 
Parttculars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Advance grvcn 10 Vendors 7 .95 642.76 
Balance wllh Revenue Authonty 26.60 
Prepaid Expenses 1.14 3.55 

Projaclln Process 201.41 145.ot 

Total 237.10 791 .32 
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Note 14 : Share Capital 

(INR in lakhs) 

As at As at 
PartiCulars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Authorised Capital 
16,000.000 (Ma~c:l131 , 2019: 16,000.0001 Equ11y sharesol As. 10 each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital 

15,127,600 (March 31,2019: 15, 127,6001 Eqully shares ol As. 10 eacl1 

Total 

(a) Terme/ rights attached to: 
Equity Shatoa 

1,600.00 

1,600.00 

1,512.76 

1,512.76 

1.600.00 
1,600:.00 

1,512.76 

The Holding Company has one dass o1 equity shares having a par value of As. 10 J)ef share. Each shwei'K>Ider Is elig.lbte for one vote 
per share held. The drvidend proposed by the Board ot Oirectors es subjed 1o the espprovaJ ot the shareholders Ill the ensuing Anoual 
General Mooting. ln Lh(l event of liquldabOn, the equity shate hoklcrs aro obgtble to reo&We the rnma.nlng assets of lhe company afl("f 
dfst.rlbutJOO Of aD preferential amounts tn poportlon 10 their share holding. 

(b) Aeconci11atlon of number of shares outstanding at lh.e beginning and at the end of t.he report.lng year 

EquiTy Shares: 

As at March 31.2020 As at March 31.2019 

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount 
Particulars (In Lakhs) (INA 1n lakhs) (m Lal<hs) (INA m Lakhs) 

Balance a.s at the beglnnang of the ye& 

Add: Shares Issued during lhe year 

B.aJance •' at the end of the year 

151.28 

151.28 

1.512.78 151.28 1.512.78 

1,512.76 151.28 1.512.76 

(c) Details of shares held by sharehold&rs holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares !n the Company: 

Equity Shares 

As at March 31. 2020 As at March 31. 2019 

Shares 
0 

Shares 
0 

PartiCulars (In Lakhs) o (m Lakhs) ·o 

Otbls FlnandaJ Cotpor.auon limited 8.26 5.46"'-

Alura Projects Private Um1ted 28.81 19.04% 28.81 

Florence Securrties Private Umtted 22.44 14.83% 22.44 

Ravl Omprakash Agtawa1 29.53 19.52% 29.53 

Gollind Ram Pa1odla 20.00 13.22 .. 20.00 

Bindl Vlnay Vora 10.00 6.61,., 10.00 

As per the records of the Holding Company, Including Its raglster of the members and other 
declarations received from the shareholder ragardlng beneficial Interest, the above shareholdlng 
represent both lagal and beneficial ownerships of shares. 

19.04% 

14.83% 

19.52% 

13.22% 

6.61% 
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Note 15 : Other Equity 
(INR in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31 . 2020 March 31 . 2019 

General Reserve 
securities Premium 
RetaJn&d Earnings 

Tollll 

(I) General Reserve 

30.00 
2.003.00 

(1,936.32) 

133.68 

30.00 

2.003.00 
(630.S8) 

1.439 .. 32 

{INA In La.khs) 

As at As at 
PartiCulars March 31 , 2020 March 31. 2019 

Balance as at the beginning of lhe year 
Add : AddlliOOS during tho yoat 

Balanc:e as at the end of tile year 

(li) Securities Premium: 

30.00 

30.00 

30.00 

30.00 

(INA In Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31 . 2020 March 31. 2019 

Balance as al the beginnil\g of the yew 
Add : Addii!OOS dutlng lho yeat 

Balance as at the end of the year 

(Ill) Retained Earnings: 

2,040.00 

2.003.00 

2,003.00 

2.040.00 

{INR in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31. 2020 March 31 , 2019 

Balance as at the beginning ot lhe yeru 
Add: Proht I (loss) tor the year 

Add: Items ot Other Comprehens.ve Jncome recognised duectly In Retained Earning$ 
Re·mcasurement gains/ {losses} on defined benelit obligations (net of tax) 

Re·rneasurement o( Investment to equity 

Balance as at the end of tbe year 

Note 16: Non-Current Financial Liabilities- Borrowings 

(630.68) 

(657.05) 

(1.02) 

(637.55) 

(1,936.32) 

351.42 

(601A7) 

(0.43) 

(390.20) ____ 1 

(630.65) 

(INA in lakhs) 

As at As at 
PartiCulars March 31 . 2020 March 31 . 2019 

Secured Term Loan.s (Refer Note (P} below) 

Rupo<l Term lo""" trom BMks 
Unsecured Loans 

Total Non..Currenl Borrowings 

42.18 

1,982.34 

2,024.53 

67.72 
2.524.18 

2,591,9() 
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Notes: 

(a) Nature of security and terms of repayment for Secured Borrowings : 

Natureof Securlty __________________ +_Tc:•c.rm= • ..:o.:.f :..:R.:::•Poc•:.:Yc.m.::en= t------------1 

Rupee Tetm Loan from ICICt Bank amounting to Rs. 1.43 Jakhs The Joan Is repa~ab.te in 60 monthly principal 
(March 31 , 2019: Rs. 17.71 lakhs) secured lnstallmeniS and intetesl payable@ 10.03%. 
by lhe vehicles purchased from the loan proceedings. _ ___,f--.:.••:cd"'g in Apnl 2020. 

Rupee Term Loan from ICICI Bank amounting toRs. 40. 751akhs The loon Is repayable in 6() monthly principal 
(March 31 , 2019 : Rs. 50.o1 lakhs) secured by the vehiCles purchased Installments and lnle<est payable @ 8.85%. 
lrom the loan ptoceed"'9S. ending In Oclober 2023. 

Note 17 : Non-Current Provisions (INA In Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Parbcutars March 31 . 2020 March 31 . 2019 

Provlslon lor Employee Benehts; 
Provlslon for Gratuity (Refer Noto 3S) 

Tollll 

Note 18 : Current Financial Liabilities· Trade Payables 

13.51 

13.51 

0.92 

0.92 

(INA in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31. 2020 March 31 . 2019 

Trade Payable 
Dues to Micro and Small Emerpr.ses 

Others 

Toll! I 

Note: Disclosure for micro and small enterprises: 

106.55 

71 .37 
65.55 
23,41 

88.99 

As at As at 
PartiCulars March 31 . 2020 March 31.2019 

(al The princfpal amount and the lntet"est due thereon temainlng unpaid to 
any suppher as at the end of o-ach accounting yoa1 
Pnncipal 
Interest due thereon 

(b) Amount ol lntereso paid by llle Company In terms ol secllon 16 ol ll>e Micro, 
Small and M&dium Enterpri$CS Oevatopmant Aet. 2006, along with the amoucu 
of tho payment made to the supplier boyond the appointed day du1lng aaoh aocounllng yoar 
Principal 
1n1eres1 

(c) The runou:n.t of lntmesJ due and pnyllble for the period of dolay in making payment 
(which hRvo been paid but beyond the oppolnt9d day during tho ye.ar) but Without addlng the 
Interest specdted under the M•cro, Small and Medium Enterpdses Oevelopi'J'lent AC1, 2006 

(d) Tho amount of Interest accrued and rc-matl\lng unpaid ot the ef\d of each accounting year 
(e) The amount ol further l.nterest remaining due alld payab1e even In the succeeding yeats, 

unbl such date when the interest dues as above are aetuatly paJd LO the small enterprise. for 
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure undor .sectiOn 23 of the Micro. 
Small end Medium Entorpdsos Otwolopm&nl Act. 2006 

Note: The above infonnation regarding micro and small enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have 
been identified on the basis of information available with the Group. 
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Note 19 : Other Current Liabilities (INR in lakhs) 

As at As at 
PartiCulars March 31 . 2020 March 3 1. 2019 

StaMory Dues Payable (lndudlng Provident Fund, 
Tax Deducted at Source and other indu-ect taxes) 
Advance from Customets 
Other PayabJes • Ma1k to Margin 
Employee Related LlabWitles 

To1al 

Note 20 : Current Provisions 

59.83 
3 ,000.78 

37.88 

9 1.46 
1,169.96 

50.S2 

(INA in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31. 2020 March 31 . 2019 

Provision for Empk>yee benefitS: 
Provision lor G!lltulty (Aelef Note 35) 8 .97 9.86 

Total 8.97 9.86 

Note 21 : Revenue from Operations (INR In Lakhs) 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
PartiCulars March 31 . 2020 March 31. 2019 

Sale ot Services 
Mall< to Market profit on tradong ot derivatives (commodity) 

Total 

Note 22 : Other Income 

1,170.06 

4,245.67 

5.415.75 

1,046.31 

1,046.31 

(INA in lakhs) 

P 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

artlculars March 31.2020 March 31.2019 

DMdend 
Interest Income on 
· Fixed Oeposri.S with Banks 

• lnoome Tax Refund 
• Othefs 

Fair value adjuatmenl on flnanc;;iaJ Instrument carried el fair VCJtue lhro~.Jgh profit and loss 

Total 

Note 23 : Operating Expenses 

6.39 

15.54 

12.95 
142.83 

1n.so 

14.13 

275.82 

35.53 

325.48 

(INA in lakhs) 

P rt I 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

a ICU ars March 31.2020 March 31. 2019 

Sub-Contract Clultges 

Mark to Matket Loss on trading or derl'vatiVes 

Total 

282.99 
3,086.30 

83.73 
866.17 

949.9() 
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Note 24 : Employee Benefits Expenses (INA In laldls) 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
Parttculars March 31.2020 March 31.2019 

Salanes and lnoentives 
Manpower Charges 
Director Slttlng Fetta 
Staff Woltaro 
Gratuity 
Cootnbutlo<ls to ProV!dentand Other Funds 

Total 

550.67 
140.73 

2.40 
9 .83 

10.32 
11 .65 

725.59 

629.86 

4.05 

12.39 

646.30 

Note 25 : Depreciatlon and Amortisation Expenses (INA In Lakhs) 

P I 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

arllcu ars March 31, 2020 March 31 , 2019 

Depreciation oo tangible assets (Refer Note 3) 
Amol'llSauon oo tangible assets (Reier Note 4} 

Total 

24.45 
8.55 

33.00 

19.14 
12.03 

31.17 

Note 26 : Finance Costs (INR in Lakhs) 

P I 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

arllcuars March31,2020 March31.2019 

lnteresl Expense 
-On Term Loan$ 
-On Others 

Sank Charges & Cofnmisslon 

Total 

5.10 
295.48 

2.42 

303.00 

4.24 
121 21 

2.35 

127.80 
J 

Note 27 : Other Expenses (INA In Lakhs) 

P I 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 

arucu ars March 31 . 2020 March 31 . 2019 

BusJness Promollon Expenses 24.98 40.59 
logol and Pro!Mslonlll Charges 199.80 172 .50 
Share Tradu19 Expenses 162.52 
Te-nder Fees Charges 1.30 3.77 
Electricity E•penses 2.98 2.28 
Communication E.,..nses 1.24 0.26 
Printing and Slallonery 2.56 2.14 
Rtr.ntlnctuding IOa$e r&.ntals 70.56 58.19 
Repair$ & Malntonanco Expenses 6.83 8.08 
Rates & Taxes 2.82 2.66 
Allowanoe for eted•t losses 0.85 0.04 
Fair value adjuS~ment on finanaaJ lnSIJUment carried a1 taw vakJe through profit and loss 479.97 
Sundry Balance Written Olf 592.75 
LOss on salo of sbar&.$ 18.58 
tnsuta.nea Expcn.ses 3.62 
Traveling & Conveyance Expenses 38.30 68.63 
Vehlole Ex"""'"'• 3.80 
Canteefl Expenses 3.93 
MembetshlpFees 0.57 
Paym~nt to Audltots.: 
• Starutory Audrt 0 .40 0.40 
-Tax Audfl 0.05 0.05 

Oona.tions 19.16 20.99 
Ge11eraJ Expenses 10.54 7.03 

Total 1,629.79 395.91 
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Note 28 : Earnings Per Share 
(INR in lakhs) 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
Parttculars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Net Profit alter Ia)( aur'tbulable to Equ.ty Sh8feh0kfers 10< Basic and Diluted EPS 

We.',ll_hted 01/e"''l<' number ot Equity Shares (In lakhs) oulStandr~ durin~ the year 

Face Val~ pt!f ~qulty Share_liNAL 
BasiC and Diluted EPS (INA) 

Note 29 : Financial Assets at Amortised Cost Method 

(667.05) 

151.28 

10 
(4,41) 

The canying value of the following financial assets recognised at amortised cost 

(601.46) 

151.28 

10 
(3.98) 

(INR in Lakhs) 

p rt 
1 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
a tcuars March31.2020 March31.2019 

Non~Current Flnanclal Assets 
Olllers 2$.48 

Curn1nt Financial As.sets 
Ttado Receivables 184.12 338. 14 

cash alld Cash Equivalents 304.76 254.58 
loans 3.353.53 2,438.94 

OtncrS 82.45 84.65 

TotaJ 3.930.33 3,114.31 

Note: The fair value of the above financial assets are approximately equivalent to canying values as recognised above. 

Note 30 : Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost Method 

The canying value of the following financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost 
(INR in Lakhs) 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
Parttculars March 31.2020 March 31.2019 

Non .. current Flnanclal UabllltJcs 
Borrowings 
Current Financial LlabUitJu 

Borrowings 

2,024.53 2,591.90 

Trade Poyables tn.92 88.99 

~T~o~ta~l --------------------------------------------------~2~2~-4~5 __________ ~680~-~89~------" 

Note: The falr value of the above financial liabilities are approximately equivalent to carrying values as recognised above. 

Note 31 : Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 

The canying value of the following financial assets recognised at farr value through profit or loss: 

(INR in lakhs) 

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
Part,cutars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Not1-CU1ren1 Ananclal Assets 
Investments 812.60 

Total 812..60 488.22 

Note: The above investments are quoted instruments In active markets and the same Is recognised at fair value. 
Fair value measurement is done considering the Level -1 of Fair Value HierarChy as per the lnd-AS 113 
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Note 32 : Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 

The cany>ng value or lhe following finanCial assets recognised at falr value through other comprehensive Income: 

(INA in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
PartiCulars March 31 . 2020 March 31 . 2019 

Non.-Current Fl.nanaal Assets 

Investments 

Total 

1,516.43 

1,516.43 1,868.11 

Note: The above investments are quoted instruments in active markets and the same is recognised at fair value. Fair value 
measurement is done considering the Level-1 ol FalrVaiue Hierarchy as pet the lnd-AS 113. 

Note 33 : Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise ofloans and borroWings. trade and other payables. The main purpose of 
these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations directly or indirectly. The Group's principal financial assets 
Include investments, loans. trade and other receivables. cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 

The Group Is exposed to market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk The below note explains lhe sources of risk whlch lhe 
en lily is exposed to and how the S<ltity manages the risk : 

- -
Ri.sk Exposure arising from Measurement Manageme n1 

Credit Risk _Cash And cash ~wvalcnls, trado Aging Malysis OiWt~ticatlon ol Existing ctodil llm•ls. 
recelvabiM, rlnancl.allnsttumcnls. and Crcdtt raungs portfolio ouKM monitoring and CfOdrl 
Ftxed Depo•it with Banks. financial worthiness monrtoMg. ered1t 
assets measuted at amortiSed cost b<!sed 8P1>fOv81 approach. 

--
Uqulddy Risk Borrowlns~s and other liablflties Roling casll flow Avallabihly of committed etedof 

torecasts lines and borrowing lacilifies 

Mar1<.(1t Ri!k - kKeign exchange Future e:omm~rciaJ transaations, Cash ftow Forward fofelgn 
Reoogmsed financiall.iabilrties not torecastang and exchan9e contracts. 
danomino.tod in tnd•an Rupeo {INR) SonsitMty analysis 

Market Risk · 11'\terest rete Long-Tetm borrowings al variable rates Sef'\SitMty analysis Interest rate swaps 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the nsk that counterparty will nor meet rts obhgaflons under a financial tnsrrumenr or customer contracr. 
ieadong to a financial toss. The Group is exposed 10 credit nsk from its operating acriviries (primarily trade receivables) and 
from Its financing activrties, including Fixed deposits with banks and financialinsrttutlons and otherflnanciai lnstrumenfs. 

Trade Receivables 
Cus1omer credit risk Is managed by the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to rustomer cnedo1 risk 
management The Group is in the business of Engineering. procurement and construction facilities for infrastructure 
projects. Credit quality ol a customer Is assessed by the management on regular basis with market information and 
Individual credrt limits are defined aooord1ngfy. Outstanding CtJS1orner receivables are regularly monitored and any runher 
services 10 majorrusromers are approved by the senior management. 
All impalrment analysis Is performed at each reporting date on an Individual basis for major cus1ornors. In add~lon, a large 
number of minor receivables am grouped rnto homogenous groups and assessed lor impairment collectively. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at lhe reporting dare ls the canying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in 
NoteS. 

On account of adoption of lnd·AS 109, the Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the lmpairmen1 toss or gain. 
The Group uses a provision matrix to compufe lhe expected credit loss allowance lor trade receivables. The provision 
matrix takes Into account available exremal and intemal cred~ risk racrors and the Group's historical experience for 
customers. 

-
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Ananclallnstrumentsand cash deposits 
Crechl risk lrom balances with banks and finanCial institutions IS managed by the Group's finance department in 
accordance with lhe Group's poRcy. The rnvestrnentllmits are setiO minimise the concentration of risks and therefore 
mitigate financial foss 10 make payments for vendors. 
The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31 , 2020 and March 31 , 
20191s the carrying amounts as stated in balance sheet. 
Liquidity Risk 
The Group monitors its risk ol a shortage of funds USing a llqukhly planning tool 
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between conlinully of funding and flexibifily through the use of bank loans 
and unsecured loans. The Group has access to a suffiCient variety or sources or lundlng which can be rolled over with 
eXisting lenders The Group believes that the working capilal is sulflcienl to meet its current requirements. 

The table below provides detags regarding the maturities of significant financlalliabfliUes as of March 31 , 2020 and March 
31. 2019: 

(INR In Lakhs) 

Less than 3to 12 1 to 5 
Particulars 3 llllonths Months years > 5 years Total 

Year onc:tod March 31, 2020 

SeCUied Loans 
Unsecured Loans 

Tmdo Payables 

U
ear ended March 31 , 2020 

Secured l0811S 
Unsecured Loans 

Trada Payablo!i 

Market Risk 

2.92 

71.37 

4.09 

23.09 

7.77 

t06.55 

21.45 

65.90 

31.50 

1,98~.34 

42.18 
2 ,524.18 

42.18 

1,982.34 

t77.92 

67.72J 
2,524.18 

88.99 

Market rlsk comprises two types of rlsk: interest rate risk and currency rlsk. Flnanclallnslluments affected by market rlsk 
include loans and borrowings and deposits 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the lair value or future cash flows of a linancial lnstrument wlll fluctuate because or Changes 
in market interest rates. The Group·s exposure to the risk 01 changes in mar1<et interest rates relates primarily to the 
Group's long·term debt obhgauons w1th floating tnterest rates 

The Group manages lis interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and vartable rate loans and borrowings. 
The Group's policy is to keep balance between its borrowings at fixed rates of Interest The difletence between fixed and 
variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. 

The exposure or lhe Group to interest rate changes at the end of the reponing periOd are as under: 
(INR in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Part•culars March 31. 2020 March 31. 2019 

Axed Rate Bonowing 

Total 

Interest rate sensitivity 

2.02A.53 

2,024.53 

2,591.90 

2,591 .90 

The fotlowlng table demonstrates the sensitivity 10 a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans 
and borrowings affected. alter the Impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Group's profit 
before tax is affected through the impact on Heating rate borrowings, as follows: 

PARAMONE CONCEPTS UWTED 



PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

(INR In Lakhs) 

Increase/ Decrease Effect on Profit 
Particulars 1n basos po1n1s before Tax 

March 31 . 2020 +1% (20.25) 

· 1% 20.25 

MB(Ch 31 . 2019 + 1% (25.92) 

-1% 25.92 

Equity price risk 
The Company's unlisted equity securities are of subsidiary and deemed oost olthe same are taken as previous GAAP 
carrying value (i.e. cost ot acquisition). The value of the financinllnstruments is not material and accordingly any change In 
the value olthese investments will not affect materially lhe profit or loss of the group. 

Note 34 : Capital Management 

For the purpose of lhe Group's capital management. capital includes Issued equity shere capital. securities premium and all 
other reserves allfibulable to the equity holders of the Holding Company. The primary objective of the Group's capilal 
management is to maximise the value of the share and to reduce the cost of capitaL 

The Group manages Us capilal struclure and makes adjustments in hghl of changes in econonuc condibons and the 
requirements of the financial covenants. To mainta1n or adjust the capilal sltuclure, the Group can adjust the dividend payment 
to shareholders, issue new shares, etc. The Group momlorscapilal using a geanng rabo, which is net debt dJVoded by lola! 
equity. The Group includes within net debt. interest beating loans and borrowlngs.less cash and cash equivalents. 

(INR In Lakhs) 

As al As at 
Particulars March 3t. 2020 March 31, 2019 

A) Net Debt 

Botr'OWingt (Curtcnt and Noti-Cutraot) 
- Casll and Cash Equ<valents 

B) Equity 
Equity share caphal 

Other Equity 

Gearing Ratio (Net Debt / Capital) I.e. (A I B) 

Note 35 : Employee Benefits 

2,024.53 

(304.76) 

Net Debt (A) 1,719.n 

t ,5t2.76 

133.68 

Total Equity (B) 1,646.44 

t04.45% 

The Group has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under: 

I. Defined Contribution Plans 
a. Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund and Employee's Pension Scheme 

2,591.90 

(254.58) 

2,337.32 

1.5t2.76 

· ·~~!2 
2,952.08 

79.18% 

During lhe year, lhe Group has incurred and recognised the following amounts in lhe Statement of Prom and Loss: 

P I 
Year ended March 31. 2020 Year ended March 31 . 2019 

artiCU ars (INA In lakhs) (INR In Lakhs) 

Employers' Contnbullon to Provident Fund end 
Employee's Pension Sohema 

Total Expenses tecognlsed In the Stalemcnt ol 
Proht and Loss (Reier NOle 24) 

11 .65 

t1.65 

12.39 

12.39 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

II. Defined Benefit Plan 
Gratuity Fund 
a. Major Assumptions 

Discount Rate 
Salary Escalallon Rate ® 
@The estimates for fuiUre salary increases considered takes Into 
account lhelnflallon, seniority. promo lion and other relevant factors. 
Expected Rate or Return 
Employee Turnover 

b. Change In PresentValueo!Obllgatlon 
Present Value of Obligalio<l as at the beginning olthe year 
Current Service Cost 
Past service Cost 
Interest Cost 
Benefit paid 
Remeasurements • Actuarlal (Gain)! Loss on Obligations 

Present Value or Obligallon as at the end ol the year 

c. Change In Fair value of Plan Assets 
Fair value ol Plan Assets, Beginning of Period 
lntamst Income 
Expected Return on Plan Assets 
Actual Group Contributions 
Actual Plan Parllcipants' Contributions 
Changes In Foreign Currency Exchange Rates 
Actuarial Gainsi(Losses) 
Benefit Paid 

Fair value or Plan Assets at the end ol the year 

d. Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 
and the Fair Value of Assets 
Present Value ol Ob~gation 
FalrValueol Plan Assets 
Funded Status 
Present Value ol Uniunded Obligatio<l 
Untunded Net Uabillty recognised in the Balance Sheet 
disclosed under Non Current Provision and Current Provision 
(Refer Note 17 and 20) 

e. Expenses Recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss 
Current Service Cost 
Past service Cosl 
Interest Cost 
Expected Return on Plan Assets 
Actuarial l osses/ (Gains) Recognised in the year 

(%p.a.) 
6.85% 
6.00% 

Not Applicable 
5.00% 

(INR In Lakhs) 
11.07 
9.86 

0.86 

0.97 

22.76 

0.29 
0.40 

(0.38) 

0.31 

(INR In Lakhs) 

22.76 
0.31 

(22.45) 
22.45 

22.45 

(INR In Lakhs) 
9.86 

(0.52) 

Total expenses recognised In the Statement of Profit and loss (Refer Note 24) 

0.97 

10.31 

(%p.a.) 
7.75% 
6.00% 

Not Applicable 
5.00% 

(INR In Lakhs) 
6.43 
3.56 

0.49 

0.59 

11.07 

0.28 

0.01 

0.29 

(INR In Lakhs) 

11.07 
0.29 

(10.78) 
10.78 

10.78 

(INR In Lakhs) 
3.56 

0.49 

0.58 

4.63 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 

(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

f . Expense Recognised In the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income 

Remeasuremants of the net defined benefit llab1lrty 

Actuarial (gains) /losses obligation 

Actuarial !gains! / losses on ObllgaUon 
Due to Demographic Assumption• 
Due to Financial Assumption 
Due to Expertenoa 
Return on Plan Assets exc11Jd1ng amounts mcluded 1n interest income 

Total A.ctuartat (G.ainYLoss 

(INR In t..akhs) 

0.97 

0.97 

(0.02) 
2.80 

(1.80) 
0.33 

1.36 

(INR In Lakhs) 

0.59 
0.59 

(0.08) 
0.67 

(0.01) 

0.58 

'This fi!Jure does not reflect interrelationship between demographic assumption and financial assumption when a fiml\ Is 
applied on the benefit, the effect w111 be shown as an expertenoa 

g. Amounts recognised In the Balance Sheet 
Present Value of Obligation as at year end 
Fair Value o f Pian Assets as at year end 

Unfunded Net Uabillty recognised In the Balance Sheet dlsclosed 
under Non Current Provision and Current Provision (Refer Nolo 17 and 20) 

IV. Sensitivity Analysis 

(INR in lakhs) 
(22.76) 

0.31 

2245 

(INR In Lakhs) 
(11.07) 

0.29 

10.78 

The belOw sensUivlty analyses are based on a dlange In an assumption while holding all other assumphons constant . In 
ptactice, this is un5kely to occur, and changes In some ol lhe assumptions may be coo elated. When calculating the sensitivUy 
or the defined benem obtigatlon to Significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value ol the defined benefit 

obligaUon calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end ol the reporting period) has been epplled as when 
calculatlng the defined benefit liablhty recognised In the balance sheet. The methods and Jypes of assumptions used in 
preparing the sensitivity analysis dld not change compared to the prior pefiod. 

a. Gratuity 
A quantrtahve sensitivUy analysts lor signiflcanl assumption as at Mardl 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are as shown 
below; 

Increase/ (Decrease) increase/ (Decrease) 
Change 1n 1n Present Value of Change 1n Salary 1n Present Value of 

Particulars D1scounl Rate Ob11gahons Escalation Rate Obhgahons 

I· March 31 , 2020 

p h 31 . 2019 

+ 0.5% 

-0.5% 

+0.5% 

• 0.5'1. 

(INR 1n Lakhs) (INR m Lakhs) 

(1.62) 

LBO 

(0.72) 

0.80 

... o.s,. 

·0.5% 

+0 .5% 

• 0.5 ... 

1.31 

(1.30) 

065 

(0 .63) 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITEO 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

V. Risk Exposure 

Through i ts defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks. the most significant of which are 
detailed: 

Interest Rls1\ 

Longevity Rt.k 

Salary risk 

A decrease in the mat1tet y1e"ds •n the govemmenl bofld will lfiC'!ease the plan kabiltty 

Thtt present valu-e of datined bonotrt ptan hablltty is ctlkulotlod using a diSCOllnt rate whiCh is 
determJn&d by reference to the Mst ostimate of the 11'101ta.Jdy of plan participants both during 
and afler employment All mcraase in the life expectancy ot tho plan paruclpants will mere.a.se 
the plan's liabil<ty. 

The present value of <l<!fo:>ed benefit plan liab[l~y Is calculated using a discoun1 rate whteh Is 
delerlTiined by relecence to the h.llure safaries ol p&tl.n participants. As such. an Increase •n the 
salary of the plan part;dpants wilt Increase the plan's fiablflty. 

Note 36 : Related Party Disclosure 

a. Details of Related Parties 

Description of Rata·Uonshlp Names 01 AoJated Parties 

a. Key Management Pe...,.,. (KMP) and ll>elrrelatlves Mushtaq Sha>kh (O.rectO< w.e.f 28.05.20t8) 

b. Enterpr.ses over whk:h Key Manegenal Personnel 
are able to exercise significant int11.1ence 

e. lnve$Ung Pany of which tho reporting eornpany 
Is an aS&Ocinle 

Notes: 

Deepak Ranjan Nayak (Director & CFO w.e.f 29 03.2019) 
SundartaJ Sanwarma.l Baga.na 
Ekta Anu!hka Gupta (Dir<octor w.o.l 6.02.2019) 
Blndl Vlnay Vora (Director & CFO) (upto 6.02.20t9) 
GovWid Patodra (Managing Dlreetor) (upto 6.02.2019) (Director) (w e.f 30.05.2019) 

(Man:.Jg•ng O~rector w.eJ OCiober 1, 2019) 
Vlfondra Ja~n (Oiroctor w eJ 30.05.2019} 
Sweta Baja) (Compeny Secretary) (upto 14.06.2019) 
SwaUGupta (Company Secretary) (w.e.f. t4.08.2019) 
Vansl\a Patodla (Relative ol MD) (upto 6.02.20t9) 

'Anaye Trading Private Um~ed 
Samank Coosumer ProdtJCIS Private limited (uplo 6.02.20t9) 
Clear Displays Pnvate limited (upto 6.02 20t9) 

JBS Realty And OeveiopmCflt Private Limited (upto 6.02.2019) 
BHS Realty And Oovofopmont Pnvate Umltcd (upto 6.02.2019) 
Samank Apparels Private Umlted (upto 8.02.20t9)' 

Cho.ee tnlomatlonal Umited (upto 30.03.20"19) 

1) The list ol related parties above has been llmHed to entities with which transactions have taken place 
during the year. 

2) Related party transactions have been disclosed till the time the relationship existed. 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

b. Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31 , 2020 

Enterpnses over wh1ch lnvestmg party oi 
wh1ch the report1ng 

company IS 

Key Managenal Person KMP and thetr 
are able to exerc1se relatives 

Loan repaid 

Reimbursement of expenses 

Sllhng Foes 

Salaries & Perquisites 

Balances o.utstandlng at the end pt the year 

Salary and Expenses Payable 

an assoCJate 

Note : Flgutes In bnlckats reptecsent figuf<:.& of previous year. 

s•gmf1cant 1nfluence 

5.65 

(2.03) 

2.40 

34.29 

(33.28) 

1.43 

(4 .n) 

Note 37 : Additional Information required under Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013: 

Name of ltte EnUty • Parent Subsldlarlu Indian: 
Choice Really Private limited · 100% Subsidiary 

Net Asset$. I.e. totAl 8SSCI mloos toml 
UabiOIIeS as at Matt:n 3 1. 2020 

Share In profit I (lou) fat the yea1 ended 
on MBrch 31 , 2020 

Share In otller compreh-ensive inoome tor the year 
ended on March 31. 2020 

Sh~re Jn total comprehensive InCOme for the year 
end(Mf on March. 31 , 2020 

As % ol COI\SOIIdatcd net asseLS 

Amount (INR In Lsklls) 

As ~ ol consolidated Profit or LMS 

Amount (INA in Lakhs) 

As % ol consolidated o1her comprehensrve Income 

Amount (tNR In l11khs) 

As ~ ot consolrdaled other comprehensive 1ncome 

Amount (lNR In Lakhs) 

+ 

5.65 

(2.03) 

2.40 

34.29 

(33.28) 

1A3 

(4.n ) 

2.05% 

33.71 

90.26% 

(602.08) 

NA 

q,~ 
(802.08) 
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PARAMONE CONCEPTS LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited) 

Note 38 : Change in name of the Company 

During the year, the Company has rece1ved fresh certificate of incorporation from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(MCA). consequent to change in name of the Company. The name of the Company has been changed from 

erstwhile Aqua Pumps Infra Ventures Limited to the bew name, Paramone Concepts Limited with effect from April 

3, 2019. 

Note 39 : Impact of Covid·19 

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 globally and In India. the Company's management has made Initial assessment 
of likely adverse impact on business and financial risks on account of COVID-19, and believes that the Impact is 

likely to be short term in nature. The management does not see any medium to long term risks in the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern and meeting Its llabimles as and when they I all due, and compliance with the 

debt covenants, as applicable. 

Note40 : Previous Years' Figures 

The Group has re-grouped, re-classified and/or re-arranged ligures lor previous year, wherever required to 

confirm with current year's classification. 

As per our report of even date auached 

For Agarwal Desai & Shah 

Chartered Accounlants 
Firm Registration Number: 124850W 

Sdf. 

Rishl Sekhrl 
Partner 

Membership Number:126656 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : June 26, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sdl· 
Govind Patodia 
Managing Director 
DIN : 02794184 

Sdl· 
Swat! Gupta 
Company Secretary 

Place : Mumbai 
Date :June 26, 2020 

Sdf. 

Mushtaq Shaikh 
Director 
DIN : Da144509 

Sdf. 

Deepak Nayak 
Director & CFO 
DIN : Da406471 
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Notice Is hereby given that the Twenty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company 

will be held on Monday, December 28. 2020 at 11.00 A.M. through Video Conferencing ("VC") I Olher 

Audio Visual Means ("OAVM")totransactthe following Businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To Consider and adopt I he audiled financial slatements (Including the consolidated financial statements) ot 

lhe Company tor the tinancial year ended March 31. 2020, along wilh the reports ot the Board of Directors' 

and Auditors' thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director In place ot Mr. Mushtaq Shaikh (DIN:08144509) who relires by rotation and, being 
eligible. offers h1mse11 for re-appoinlment 

3. Re-appointment of M/s. Agarwal Desai & Shah, Chartered Accounlant as Sla\ulory Audilors ollhe Company 

and In this regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

" RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139. 142 and other appfiCable provisions, if any, ot 
lhe Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed !here under, as amended from lime to lime. M/s. Agarwal 

Desai & Shah, Chartered Accountant (Firm Registration No. 124850W), be and Is hereby re·appolnled as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion ot this Annual General Meeting until the 

conclusion of !he next Annual General Meet.ng to be held 1n year 2021 to examine and audh the accounts of 

lhe company for Financial Year 2020·21 of !he Company at such remunerallon plus service tax, out-of· 
pocket, travelling and living expenses, etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the 

Company and the Auditors.· 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4. Re-appointment of Mr. Sundarlal Sanwarmal Bagarla (DIN 07269962) as an Independent Director 

of the Company 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions. If any, of the Companies Acl, 2013, as amended from lime to lime ("1he Act•), the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modifica\ion(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the lime being in Ioree), Regulations 16, 17 and other 

relevant provisions of the SEBi (Usllng Obllgalions and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended ("SEBI Usling Reguiationsj and the Articles of Association of the Company. Mr. Sundarlal 
Sanwarmal Bagaria (DIN 07269962), Independent Director of the Company. and who has submitted a 

declaration that he meets the criteria for independence specified under Section t 49 of the Act and SEBI 

Ustlng Regulations, and In respect ol whom the company has received Nobce from a Member under 

Section 160 or the Act proposing his reappointment as an Independent Director and whose re· 
appointment has been recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and by the Board 

of Directors, and who is eligible for re-appointment. be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent 

Director of the Company, not liable lo retlre by rotation, to hold office lor a second term of five conseculive 

years with eflecl from November 06, 2020 to November 05, 2025 

5. To consider & approve the appointment of Mr. Surendra Kumar Kulhari (DIN No · 00727964) as an 

Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 
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" RESOLVED THAT, Mr. Surendra Kumar Kulharl (DIN No • 00727964) , who was appointed as an 
Addi tional Executive Director with effect from November 06, 2020 and who holds office until the dale of 

this Annual General Meeting pursuant to the provisions of Section 16 1(1) the Companies Act, 2013the 

Act, but who Is eligible tor appointment and has consented to act as a Director ot the Company and in 

respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 olthe 

proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and Is hereby appointed as Director of the 

Company liable to retirement by rotation. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 

Including any Schedules and the relevant Rules thereof (including any statutory modification(s), 

enactment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time betng tn force) and subject to the approval of the 
Central Government If required and such other consents and permission as may be necessary and 

subject to such modifications, variations as approved and acceptable to Mr. Surendra Kumar Kulharl (DIN 

• 00727964) and the Company, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 

for the appointment of Mr. Surendra Kumar Kulharl (DIN • 00727964) as an Executive Director of the 
Company with effect from November 06. 2020, at such remuneration and on the terms and conditions 

approved by the Nomination & Remuneration CommiUee. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Board ot Directors which term shall be deemed to Include any 
committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers, including powers conferred by the resolutions 

be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds. and things as may be required to give effect to this 
resolution Including but not limited to the power to alter or amend or revise or vary the terms ot 

remuneration from hme to lime and obtaonlng the Central Government's approval It any. 

6. Re· classification of the Status of Existing Promoter's Group To Public Category. 

To consider and, If thought fit. to pass,lhe following resolution as an Ordinary Resolutlon : 

" RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Regulation 31A ot the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 ~ncluding any statutory 

modificalion(s), amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereot tor the lime being In Ioree] and other 
applicable provisions if any; and subject to necessary approvals from the Stock Exchanges and other 

appropriate statutory authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions as may be 

prescribed by any of the concerned authorities while granting such approvals, and in view of compliance 

ot the condition that entl~es mentooned herein falling under the Promoter group do not directly or Indirectly, 
exercise control over the aHairs of the Company, approval of the members of the company be and is 

hereby accorded to reclassify the below mentioned existing Promoter Group (hereinafter Individually & 
joinUy reterred to as the "Applicants") to the Public category . 

.... l ·-··-···-·-· 
1 Ct.loce lnlernalionalllmllecl 

2 Choice Equity Br<~lung Provale UmHecl 

No. of Shares held as on date of apptlca.tJon for 
reelassiflcallon tc. 3rd Septembet. 2020 

Nil 

Nil 
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" RESOLVED FURTHER THAT on approval of the Stock Exchange(s) upon application for reclassification 
of the aforementioned applicants, the Company shall effect such re-classification in the Statement of 

Shareholding pattern from immediate succeeding quarter under Regulation 31 of SEBI (listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and comply with the provisions ol Securities 

and Exchange Board ol India (Substantial Acquisition ol Shares and Takeovers) Regulations. 2011 . 

Sacurilles and Exchange Board ol India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations. 20t5 and other 
applicable provisions.• 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the any one from amongst the Directors and the Company Secretary of the 

Company, be and is hereby authorized to perform and execute all such acts, deeds, and things Including 
but not limited to making timely Intimation to stock exchange(s). and to execute all other documents 

required to be filed with regard to this resolution and to settle all such queslions, difficu"ies or doubts 

whatsoever which may arise and take all such steps and decisions In this regard to give lull effect to this 
resolutions: 

Place: Mumbai 

November 06, 2020 

Registered Office: 

12 A, Narayan Plaza, 

Near Boomerang Building, 

Chandlvali, 

Mumbal· 400072 

Emallld : info@ paramoneconcepts.com 

NOTES 

By Order of the Board ol Di rectors Date: 

Sd/ 

(Amit Soni) 

Company Secretary 

General instructions lor accessing and participating in the 28TH AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and 
voting through electronic means including remote e·Voting: 

1. In view of the continuing Covid·19 pandemic. the Ministry or Corporate Affairs ("MCA "} has vide its 

circular dated 5th May, 2020 read with circular dated 8th April , 2020 and 13th April, 2020 (collectively 
referred to as (' MCA circular") permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (•AGM") through 

VC I OAVN, wilhout the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 20t 3 ("Act"). SEBI (listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI listing Obligations") and MCA Circulars, the AGM olthe Company is being 

held through VC/OAVM. 

2. Pursuant to the provlstons of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting Is entitled to 
appoint proxy to attend and vole on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the 

Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC/OAVMpursuantto the MCA Circulars , physical 

attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly the facili ty for appointment of proxies 

by the members will not beavallable for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance slip are 

not annexed thereto. 

3 The explanatory statement pursuant to the provisions or section 102 of !he Act setting out the material 
facts concerning the business under Item No.4, 5 & 6 of this Notice. is annexed thereto. 
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4. Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (PDFIJPG Format) of Its Board or 
governing body Resolution I Authorization, etc authorizing its representative to attend the AGM 

through VC I OAVM on Its behalf and to vote though remote e-voting to the scrutinizer by email 
through its registered email address to info@paramoneconcepts.com. 

5. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 

Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.paramoneconcepts.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 

Exchanges i.e. BSE Umtted at www.bselndia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminat.ed on the 
website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote a-Voting facility and a-voting system during the 

AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com 

6. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to register I update their postal address, 
email address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN) mandates, 

nominations, power of attorney , bank details such as name ol bank and branch details, bank account 
number, MICA Code, tFSC Code etc, to their Depository Participants, with whom they are maintaining 

De mat Accounts. 

7. Members holding shares ln physical form are requested to register I update their postal address, email 
address telephone/ mobile numbers, PAN, mandates, nominations, power of Attorney, bank details 

such as name of the bank and branch details, bank accounts number, MICA code, IFSC code. etc., 

with the Registrar and Transfer Agent i.e. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. ltd, by sanding an email to 

mumbai@skyilnerta.com 

8. Non • Resident Indian members are requested to inform Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd 
immediately on : 

a. The Change In the residential status on return to India for permanent sett.lement; and 
b. The particulars of the bank aocount(s) number and address of the bank, if not furnished earlier. 

9. Members attending the AGM through VC I OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 

quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

t 0. Since the AGM will be held through VCI OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed In this notice. 

11. As mandated by SEBI, effective from April 1, 2019 that secun1les of listed Companies Shall be 

transferred only in de materialised form. In order to facilitate transfer of share(s) in view of the above 

and to avail various benefits of dematerialisation, Members are advised to dematerialise share(s) held 

by them In physical form. 

12. As per SEBI Circular dated 20th April, 2018 Shareholders whose PAN and Bank details are not 

mapped:· 

Shareholders holding shares in physical mode are requested to compulsorily fumish the details to 
the Share Department/Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode are requested to furnish the details to their 

respective Depository Participant (DP). 

13. In case of Joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder In the order of names as 

per the A Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 
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14. In Compliance wllh lhe provisions ot Secllon 108 ot lhe Act, 2013 read wilh Rule 20 oi l he Companies 

(Managemenl and Adminislration) Rules. 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated 

April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company Is providing a faclllly of to Its Members to 

casVexercise !heir voles. On lhe resolulions proposed 10 be considered at this AGM by electronic 

means and the business may be transacted through e·voting services. For this purpose. the Company 

has entered Into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for tacilitating 

voting through electronic means, as the authorized e· Voting's agency. The tacitily of casting votes by a 

member using remote e·voling as well as the e·votlng syslem on the dale ot I he AGM will be provided 

byCDSL 

15. The Members can JOin the AGM tn the VCIOAVM mode I 5 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time ot the commencement ot the Meeting by tollowing the procedure memloned in the Notice. The 

facUlty ot panlcipallon at lhe AGM through VCIOAVM will be made available to alleast 1000 members 

on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2'% or 

more shareholding), Promoters, lnstilutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 

Chairpersons of the Audll Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 

Relal,onshlp Comminee, Auditors ale. who are allowed 10 anend lhe AGM without resl ricllon on 

account of first come first served basis. 

16. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 

of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act. 2013. 

17. The AGM has been convened through vcr OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions or the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 

1712020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 2012020 dated May 05, 2020. 

18. The EqUity Share Transfer Registers will remain closed from Tuesday, 22nd December, 2020 10 

Monday, 28th December, 2020 (bolh days inclusive) for lhe purpose of Annual General Meeting. 

19. MI S Nldhi Bajaj & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer 

to scrutinize the remote e-voling process as well es the evoting system on the date of 28th AGM In a 

falf and lransparent manner. 

20. The Member who have cast their vote by remote e-voling prior 10 the AGM may also auend /participate 

In AGM through VC I OAVM but shall not be entitle lo cast their vote again. 

21 . The Voting right of Members shall be proportion 10 their shares in the paid up equity share capfial of the 

Company as on cut olf date. 

22. Any person. who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after 

sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut off date, should follow the same procedure fore· 

Voting as mentioned below. 

23. The voling results will be declared on receipt of Scrulinizers Report. The voling results along wi th the 

Scrutinizer's Report will be placed on lhe website of lhe agency www.evotingindiacom and also on the 

website of the Company www.paramonconcepts.com, within 48 hours after the conclusion of the 28th 

AGM of lhe Company and wilt also be submiued 10 the BSE Limlled (BSE) where lhe shares of the 

Company are llsled 
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THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLORES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

i. The voting period begins on December 25, 2020 at 09.00 AM and ends on December 27, 2020 at 

05.00 PM. During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or 

in dematerialized form, as on lhe cut-off date (record date) of December 21 , 2020 may cast their vote 

electronically. The a-voting module shalt be disabled by CDSllor voting thereafter. 

ii. Shareholders who have already voled prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at lhe 

meeting venue. 

m. The shareholders should log on lo thee-voting website www.evoungindia.com. 

iv. Click on "Shareholders• module. 

v. Now enter your User ID 

a ForCDSL: 16d•gi1s beneticlary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 

Ailematlvely, It you are registered for CDSL's EASVEASIEST e·services, you can log-in at 

hltps:/twww.cdshndia.com from Login· Myeasiusing your login credentials. Once you successfully log-in 

to CDSL's EASVEASIEST e·services, click on e-Voting opt ion and proceed directly to cast your vote 

electronically. 

vi. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

vii. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 

earlier a-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

viii. If you are a first time user follow the steps glven below· 

-

PAN 

DrvJCfend Bank Details 
DBIO of Birth (DOB) 

For Shareholdeta holding shares In Demat Form and Physical Fotm 

Eow your 10 cilg11 alpha-nume<lc 'PAN Issued by Income Tax Depllt1men1 
(Applicable for bot/1 demal shareholders as well as physical shareholdeJS) 

Shareholdenl who !)ave not updated !heir PAN wlllllhe Company/Deposilory 

-

Enlcr the DMdend Bank Delaas or Dale of Birth (In ddlmmlyyw fomiBI) as recorded OR 
In your demat account 01 ln the company tecord$ln order to login. 

If b~h the deta1ls ore not recorded w1th the depos1tory or company please enter the 
member ld I foho number In tile Dividend Bank detalls lle6d as mentioned'" lnslluctiofl {v), 

ix. Aller entering lhese details appropriately, cftck on "SUBMIT" tab. 

x. Shareholders hOlding shares ln physicallorm wllllhen directly reach lhe Company selection screen. 

However. shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu 

wherein lhey are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly 

nola that this password Is to be also used by the demat holders lor voting lor resolutions or any other 

company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts ror a-voting through CDSL 

platform. It Is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and lake 

utmost care lo keep your password confidential. 
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xi. For shareholders holding shares In physical form. the details can be used only for e-votlng on the 

resolutions contained In this Notice. 

xii. Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Paramone Concepts Limited> on which you choose to vote. 

xlll. On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and agafnstthe same the option 

"YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 

to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

xiv. Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

xv. Arter selecting the resolution you have dectded to vote on. click on "SUBMIT'. A confirmation box will 

be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on 

"CANCEL • and accordingly modify your vote. 

xvl. Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

xvli. You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting page. 

xviii. If a demet account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the Image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

xlx. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app "m-Votlng". Them-Voting app can be 

downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while 

Remote Votingonyourmobile. 

Process for those shareholders whose email addresses are not registered with the depositories for 

obtaining logm credentials for e-vohng lor the resolutions proposed in this notice: 

1. For Physical shareholders· please provide necessary details like Folio No .. Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card) , 

AADHAR {self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company!RTA emallld. 

2. For Demat shareholders-. please provide Demat account dellals (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or 

NSOL-16 digit DPID + CLID), Name. client master or copy of Consolidated Account statemenL PAN 

{self attested scanned copy of PAN card) , AADHAR (sell attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 

Company/RTAemall id. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS 

UNDER: 

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL a­

Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https:I/Www.evolingindia.com under 

shareholders/members login by using the remote e-votlng credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be 

available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed. 

2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops /!Pads for better experience. 

3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience AudloNldeo toss due to Fluctuation tn thetr respective 

network. It Is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-A or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind ot 

aforesaid glitches. 
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5 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least seven days prior to meeting 

mentioning their name, demal account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company 

emallid). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during1he AGM but have queries may send thetr 

quenes In advance seven days prior to meeting mentioning their name, de mat account number/folio 

number, email id, mobile number at info@paramoneconcepts.com. These queries will be replied to by 

the company suitably by email. 

6. Those shareholders who have regtstered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the meeting. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E·VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:· 

1. The procedure for e· Voting on the day of the AGM Is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

Remote e-voting. 

2. Only those shareholders, who are present In the AGM through VC/OAVM lacllity and have not casted 

their vote on the Resolutions through remote a-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 

shall be eligible to vote through a-Voting system available during the AGM. 

3 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-votlng available during !he AGM and II !he 

same shareholders have no1 participated In I he meeting through VC/OAVM facility ,!hen the votes cas! 

by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e·voting during the meeting is 

available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remo1e e-Voting will be eligtble to attend the AGM. However, 

they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

xx. Note for Non ·Individual Shareholders and Custodians 

Non-Individual shareholders (I.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to 

log on to www.evotingindla.com and register themselves in the "Corporales• module. 

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the en lily should be em ailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

The list of accounts linked In the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evotlng@cdsllndla.com and on 

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast thetr vote. 

A scanned copyofthe Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in lavour 

of lhe Custodian, If any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system lor the scrutinizer to verify !he 

same. 

Alternalively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 

Authority leiter etc. together with attested specimen signature ol the duly authorized signatory who are 

authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the emall address viz; 

info@paramoneconcepts.com (destgnaled email address by company), il they have voted from 

individual tab & not uploaded same In the COSL e·voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 
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If you have any quenes or Issues regarding attending AGM & e-Vollng lrom lhe e-Voting System, you may 
refer the Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e·voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com. 

under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022· 

23058738)or Mr. Rakesh Dalvl (022-23058542) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543). 

All grievances connected with the facilily for vollng by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 

DaM. Manager, (CDSL.) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing. 25th Floor, Marathon 

Futurex, MalaUal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Pare! (East), Mumbai · 400013 or send an email 

to helpdesk.evollng@cdslindia.com or call on 022· 23058738/022-23058542/43 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(Pursuanr to Section 102 of !he Companies Act, 2013) 

The following Explanatory Statement sets out material facts relating to the business under Hems 4 of 

the accompanying Notice. 

Item No 4 

The Members at the 23rd Annual General Meeting held on 26th September 20t5 approved the 

appointment of Mr. Sundertal Sanwarmal Bagaria (DIN 07269962) as Independent Director of the 

Company for a lerm of 5 years from November 06, 2020 up to November 05, 2025. 

The Company has received noUce pursuant to secUon 160 of lhe companies Act, 2013 (the Act) proposing 
his candidature for the office of the Director of the company. Mr. Sunde rial Sanwarmal Bagaria. has given a 

declaration stating that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) ol the Act, 

and the regulation 16(1) (B) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulatlons, 
2015. 

In the opinion of the Board , Mr. Sunderlal Sanwarmal Bagaria fulfil the conditions specified in the Act and 

the Rules framed there under for appointment as Independent Director and he is independent of the 

management. Funher the Board considers !hat his continued association would be of immense ben eli! to 

the company and It is desirable to continue to avail his services as independence director. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Act, the Re-appointment of Mr. 

Sunderlal Sanwarmal Bagariaas Independent Non Executive Director for a second term of 5 consecutive 
years from November 6, 2020, to November OS. 2025 requires approval of the members by passing speclal 

resolution al the General Meetings. 

Mr. Sunderlal Sanwarmal Bagaria, being an Independent Director. shall not be liable to retire by rotation. 
The details including lhe qualification and the list of the Companies In which Mr. Sunder1al Sanwarmal 

Bagarla serves as Director and Member/Chairman of various committee are stated In the annexure 
attached to lhe Notice 

The Board commends the Special Resolution set out a t Item No.4 of the Notice for approval of the 

Members. 

Except Mr. Sunderlal Sanwarmal Bagaria, to extent of his appointment none of the Directors or Key 

Managerial Personnel of the Company or !heir relatives are In any way concemed or interested, financial or 

otherwise, in passing the resolution setout at Item No.4 of the Notice. 
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Ite m No.5 

The Board or Diroctors, on the recommendation or Nomination and Remuneration Committee, appointed, 
Mr. Surendra Kumar Kulhari (DIN- 00727964). as an add~ional Director ol the Companyw.e.l. November 

6, 2020, to hold lhe office upto the date ol this Annual General Meeting pursuant to lhe provisions of 
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). The Company has received notice pursuant to Section 

16 or the Companies Act, 2013 (lhe Act) proposing his candidature for the office of the Director of the 

Company. Mr. Kulhari is also liable to retire by rotation 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 152 and 160 of the Act, the appointment of Mr. Kulharl as an 

Executive Director of the Company is now being placed before the Members at this AGM for their approval. 
Further, The Board considers that his association with the Company would be of Immense benefit to the 

Company and It is desirable to avail his services as a Director of the Company. Further is remuneration and 

other terms of his appointment shall be decided by the Nomina lion and Remuneration Committee of the 

Board In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act. 

Mr. Surendra Kumar Kulhari (DIN · 00727964) aged 57 Years, has more than two decades of experience in 

Infrastructure Consultancy. Mr. Kulhari holds a Diploma In Marine Engineering and had served "The Indian 

Navy" for a tenure of 15 Years as an Engineer. 

The details Including the qualification and the list of the Companies in which Mr. Surendra Kumar Kulhari 

serves as Director and Member/Chairman of various committees are stated In the annexure attached to 

the Notice. 

The Soard commends the Ordinary Resolullon set out at Item No.5 of the Notice for approval of the 

Members. 

Except Mr. Surendra Kumar Kulhari, to extent of his appointment, none of the Directors or Key Managerial 
Personal of the Company or their relatives, are In any way ooncemed or Interested. financial or otherwise, 

In passing the resolution setout at Item No.5 of the Notice. 

Item No. 6 

Reclassification of the Status of Promoters Group into Public Category Regulation 31 A of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligat1ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (here1naner referred as "Listing 

Regulatlons") has provided a regulatory mechanism for classification ol Promoters & Promoter group as 
Public Category subject to fulfillment of conditions as provided therein. 

In this regard , the Company received application from Choice International Limited ("CIL') along with Its 

Subsidiary Mls. Choice Equity Braking Private Limited (" CEBPL') pursuant to Regulation 31A of the 
Listing Regulations for classifying them under the Public Category since their names have been included 

as the Promoter and Promoter group. However, they do not hold any shares In the Company. 

' CIL" and Its subsidiary" CEBPL • are linandally independent entities. who take lndependemlnvestment 

decisions. Further none or the promoters/directors or KMPs or CIL or its subsidiary· CEBPL' hold any key 

managerial position or representations of the Board of Directors in the Company. Since they do not hold 
any voting rights in the Company ,they are not in a position to control the management or policy decisions ot 

the Company. Further, none of their promoters/directors or KMPs shall act as a key management person of 
the Company for a period of three years lrom the date of the shareholders approval In relation to this 

reclassification. 
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Sr.No Name ot tho Proposed No. of Shares held In tho % of Holdtng in tho total 

2 

I Shareholder proposed Company as on date of capital of the Company as on 
to b6 recla&SUiad Notfeo to the Mombora: data of notJee tho member& 

Ch<>lce lntemot.onal Umlted Nil N1l 

Choioo Equity Srol\lng Pnvato Limited Nil 1 N1l 

Vide their letter dated 3 September, 2020, the Choice International Limited ("CIL "') along with Its 

subsidiary• Choice Equity Braking Private Limited have requested the Company for reclassnication of its 

status of "Promoter & Promoter Group• to "Public Category. 

In consideration to the conditions as stipulated in Regulation 31 A of the Listing Regulations, the Board of 

Directors of the Company a1 their meeting held on 1oth September, 2020 have approved their application 

for reclassification received by the Company as above from Promoter and Promoter Group category to 

Public category subject to approval by the members and relevant regulatory authorities. As required, 

intimation has been sent to Stock Exchanges based on declaration received from the aforesaid entities. 

Further as per Rule 19A of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, the public shareholding as 

on date of the notice fulfils the mimmum public shareholding requirement of at least 25% and the proposed 

reclassification does not Intend to Increase the public shareholdlng to achieve compliance with the 
minimum public shareholdlng requirement 

Further, in accordance with Regulation 31 A of the Listing Regulations, the said reclassification requires the 

approval of the Stock Exchanges, where the shares of the Company are listed. In terms of the procedure 
adopted by the Stock Exchanges lor granting such approval, the Stock Exchanges, Inter alia, require that 

the Company obtain the consent of the Shareholders of the Company, for the said reclassification. 

None of the directors, managers, key managerial personnel of the Company and their respective relatives 

are In any way interested in the resolution except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company. 

The Board recommend Ordinary Resolution out under Item no.6 for approval of the Members 

The relevant documents in this regard are available for Inspection In physical and/or electronic form, 

between 11:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. on all workmg days i.e., Monday to Friday, till27 December, 2020, at the 

Registered Olfice of the Company. 

By order of the Board of Directors 

Place: Mumbal 

Date: November OS, 2020 

Sd/-

(AmitSoni) 

Company Secretary 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

Details of Directors Seeking Re-Appointment I Appointment at the Annual General Meeting 

Pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and 

Secretarial Standards on General Meeting) 

Mr Mushlaq Sha1kh 
Mr Sunderlal Sanwarmal Mr Surendra Kumar 

Name of the 01rector Bag ana Kulhan 
(Re·appo~ntment) (Re-appointment) (Appointment) 

' 

Date ot Appomtment I 27-o!l-2019 26-c!)-2015 I 06-11 · 2020 

Oato ot Bir111 I 23·11-1991 29.05-1957 I 05.07·1963 

Relationship wi1h O•eetofs & Key l I 
Managefial Personnel Executive Oarector Independent Director Execuuve Olteaor 

• 
OuahficattOn MMS Graduate Ojploma 1n Marine Enganeenng 

Experti~ In spe:elf.c functionaJ zueas I Operahons Marko ling (}pbt4.6on$ & Finance 

Tetms and Conditlons of Executive Qjj'eetof Non-ExecutNe Independence Relet Uem No.5 ol the 
appoll\tment UebJe to retire by rotation D•reelD< explatlatory statement 

Non liable 10 retire by rotatiOn 
Term of appointment 

w e.l. November 06,2020 
to November 05. 2025 

Ouector$hip 10 other public oompanm 1 Aura Spinewell ltd 
exeJudlng foreign oompa.l"'CS NIL 2. Everflow Techno T ex Ud NIL 

Mombctshlp ol Committees In olho.r 
public companies NIL NIL 

t 
NIL 

Sharehokllng In lhe C001pany NIL NIL NIL 

The proposal for appointmenV re-appointment has been approved by the Board pursuant to the recommendation 

of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee considering their skills, experience and knowledge and positive 

outcome of performance evaluation. 
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(Formf!fly known •• Aqua 1'\Jmps 1nlrn Venl!Jros LlrrW!O) 
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